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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five years.

TIRETEBEEEERARNTARBA D EENBAR(ABIAEE D NBEEFABE=ZA=T"RILFEZ
BEE #RBE FENEBYBKEHGE-

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Financials (HK$ million) MBEE (B¥EBT) —E-mF —T-=F —T-ZF —T——F —T-ZF
Total assets BEE 13,926 12,796 10,592 8,595 7,313
Total liabilities Bmak 6,849 6,585 5,274 3,716 3,088
Total equity BHER 7,077 6,211 5,318 4,879 4,225
Non-controlling interests FER 463 390 324 399 377
Shareholders’ funds REEE 6,614 5,821 4,994 4,480 3,848
Share capital AR
— in number (million) -HE(EBR) 293 281 278 278 278
— in value (HK$1.25 per share) -HE(EREEL5T) 366 352 347 347 347
Revenue A 4,113 4,189 3,850 3,491 3,934
Profit attributable to equity holders ~ ZXA AR ERFH A
of the Company FEAE &R 470 1,012 658 798 417
Per Share Basis (HK$) SRIE(EY)
Earnings - basic BN -EX 1.65 3.64 237 2.87 1.50
Dividends RE 0.85 0.85 0.95 115 0.70
Net assets value BEFE
- excluding non-controlling interests ~ — B IEFEE R 22.6 20.7 18.0 16.1 13.8
2014 2013
—E-NEF —=—=
HK$ million HKS$ million
BERAET BEBEET
Segment Revenue’ oL N
Construction and engineering B TR 3,697 3,872
Insurance and investment R REE 318 211
Property S 1,043 831
Food and beverage B 659 756
Others Hh 2,944 1,421
Total B 8,661 7,091
Segment Profit/(Loss)* 2B, (FE)¢
Construction and engineering BREREMITE 293 302
Insurance and investment IR R ig & 62 96
Property ES 407 919
Food and beverage B 22 (11)
Others Hith (42) (39)
Total B 742 1,267

* Included share of revenue/results of associates and joint ventures
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph”

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*
Professor POON Chung Kwong*

Dr KO Chan Gock, William

# Independent Non-Executive Director

SECRETARY
Mr MUI Chin Leung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Appleby
Deacons
Robertsons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2318 1818

Facsimile: (852) 2757 5138
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 25

ADR DEPOSITARY BANK
BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 30170

College Station, TX77845

Stock Symbol: CHVLY

WEBSITE

http://www.chevalier.com

Financial Calendar

Announcement of Results

Interim Results
Final Results

Book Close Dates
Interim Dividend
Annual General Meeting
Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting

Payment of Dividends

Interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share
(with scrip option)

Final dividend of
HK$0.65 per share
(with scrip option)

28 November 2013
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11 November 2014
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Chevalier Group was founded in 1970 by Dr Chow Yei Ching and the group holding
company, Chevalier International Holdings Limited, is listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. Chevalier Group is a diversified conglomerate with about 10,000
employees working under its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures around the
globe, with business operations in Australia, Canada, Hong Kong, Japan, Macau,
Mainland China, Philippines, Singapore, Thailand, US and Vietnam.

Chevalier Group’s diverse business portfolio includes Construction and Engineering,
Insurance and Investment, Property, Food and Beverage, Car Dealership, Enterprise
& Network Solutions and Fresh Produce Supply. This diversification has created a
competitive edge for the Group to thrive and meet the challenges of the rapid changing
global market. Over the years, while the Group actively expanded its businesses, it
remained committed to corporate social responsibility and participated in various

community services to give back to society.
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Chairman’s Statement
EN 140

Following from an exceptionally strong 2012/13 financial year for the Group,
the Group expectedly saw a decline in profitability for the 2013/14 financial
year. However, if profits from revaluation of investment properties and
disposal of properties are excluded, the Group’s operating performance was
actually quite stable comparing these two financial years.

The stability in the Group’s operating contribution was underpinned by the
consistently good performance of the construction and engineering segment
of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau despite mounting operational
pressures from severe shortage of labour and qualified professionals in
the market. At the same time, the aluminium windows and curtain walls
business in Australia and the lift and escalator business in Singapore and
Mainland China continued to show progress, setting foundations for
promising long term growth.

Our insurance and investment segment had lower profit than last year solely
due to lesser returns from the investment portfolio, which was in line with
market trends during that period given our concentration in lower risk fixed
income securities. Meanwhile, our insurance operation further reinforced its
position as a key player in the construction workers’ compensation insurance
market.

The volatility in the Group’s performance in this financial year was partly
contributed by the property segment. Despite steady progress in the cold
storage and logistics business and contributions from the senior housing
portfolio coming online for the entire financial year, much slower than
expected sales in Mainland China residential development projects have
resulted in a drop in this segment. While the People’s Republic of China
government maintains its policies to control the property market, we remain
cautious on the pace in which our sales will progress.

10 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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The much lower gain on revaluation of investment properties in this
financial year compared to last year is mainly a result of the Hong Kong
government’s introduction of the special stamp duty measures, which
has dampened market sentiment. While this policy is maintained, further
substantial fair value gain derived from Hong Kong investment properties is
not expected.

Food and beverage segment showed a strong turnaround this year. While
continuing to strengthen operation of Cafe Deco Group in Hong Kong,
Macau and Sydney, the Group has made initial steps to invest in quick service
restaurant concepts in Mainland China.

Finally, in the other businesses of the Group, it was promising to see
that the car dealership business showed a marked improvement while
the information technology business and the food trading business had
performed steadily. On the other hand, our new investment into the
fresh produce supply business in Australia performed significantly below
expectations during the year. Further time and resources will be invested
into each of these developing business lines such that, in the medium to long
terms, they would grow into more significant business operations of the
Group.

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic that, US will continue to
show gradual recovery while Mainland China will manage to sustain 7.5%
GDP growth in the year to come. Nonetheless, with the challenges faced in
the real estate sector on the Mainland, the Group will assess on an ongoing
basis its allocation of financial resources in this sector to maintain a moderate
risk exposure. At the same time, we are optimistic that while Hong Kong,
Macau and Singapore will each continue to have buoyant construction
markets, the Group will have stable performance in its construction and
engineering segment. Having made a good start in its senior housing
business in US from a couple of years ago, the Group will actively look for
opportunities to further grow its senior housing business in the region taking
advantage of the aging demographics and the increasing demand for quality
elderly care.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere gratitude towards
our management and staff for their dedication and relentless efforts over
the past year. In addition, I would also like to extend my appreciation to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders for their
continuous support to the Group.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman
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The Group’s consolidated revenue decreased slightly by 1.8%, from
HK$4,189 million in 2012/13 to HK$4,113 million for the year ended
31 March 2014. The slight decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
revenue of the Group’s business in construction and engineering segment
while offsetting partially by the revenue increase in insurance and
investment segment and property segment. After taking up the share of
revenue of associates and joint ventures, especially the contribution from
the fresh produce supply associates in Australia, the total segment revenue
was boosted up to HK$8,661 million for the year, a 22.1% increase over
the last financial year.

Profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$526 million
(2013: HK$1,083 million). Excluding the increase in fair value of HK$202
million (2013: HK$670 million) arising from the revaluation of the
Group’s investment properties for the financial year, the Group recorded
a profit of HK$324 million in 2013/14 as compared to HK$413 million in
2012/13. Such decrease was mainly caused by the decline in profit of the
property segment and the finance costs of the senior housing business in
North Carolina, US that accounted for the whole financial year. Profit
attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31 March 2014 reached
HK$470 million (2013: HK$1,012 million) and earnings per share of
HK$1.65 (2013: HK$3.64).

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.65 (2013: HK$0.65) per share payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Friday,
12 September 2014. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday, 29 August 2014 (the “AGM”), the dividend warrants will be
distributed and paid on or about Tuesday, 11 November 2014. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2013: HK$0.20) per share paid on
Friday, 14 February 2014, the total dividends for the year amounted to
HK$0.85 (2013: HK$0.85) per share.

14 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The construction and engineering segment’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2014 recorded a decrease of 4.5% to HK$3,696 million
(2013: HK$3,872 million). The drop in revenue was attributable to the
completion of certain large construction projects in last year including the
building construction, building supplies and pipe technology divisions.
However, such decrease had been partially offset by the increase in
revenue earned by the electrical and mechanical engineering division and
lift and escalator associates. Profit of this segment reduced by 3.0% from
HK$302 million last year to HK$293 million this year.

The booming construction market in recent years has given numerous
opportunities on business growth for the building construction division.
However, the increase in materials and labour costs has made the division
very cautious in submitting tenders. As part of its long term resources
planning and cost control measures, the division has been providing more
training opportunities for graduates and experienced expertise so as to
strengthen the team’s competitiveness and make it well positioned to take
up more projects in the future.

During the year, the electrical and mechanical engineering division
continued to allocate its substantial resources in Macau market. With
the proven track record, the division has been actively involved in the
large-scale casino and hotel complex development projects. Riding on
the rapid development in Macau Cotai area, the division further secured
two contracts amounting to over HK$1,000 million during the year from
integrated resort and casino developers in Macau.

The aluminium windows and curtain walls division made steady progress
for all the projects on hand during the year under review. In order to meet
with market demand, new machineries were purchased for the fabrication
center and workflows were redesigned to improve working efficiency.
Other than Hong Kong market, the division also served clientele overseas.

The environmental engineering division actively participated in the
tendering of the contracts offered by CLP, Water Supplies Department
and Drainage Services Department of the Hong Kong government during
the year. For delivering of top quality services to its clients, the division
will also consider to form partnership with experienced professionals.

Renowned kitchen cabinet brand “Manhattan” that distributed by the
building supplies division has earned a good reputation in the market
with very positive feedback. The building supplies division has undergone
an internal restructuring to strengthen its services to clients. Apart from
focusing on large-scale projects in the past, the division will allocate some
of its resources to serve smaller-scale projects and individual households
in the near future.
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To maintain sustainable business growth and to meet market demand for
environmental friendly lift and elevator products, the lift and escalator
associates has launched a new generation of green-powered products to
the market. During the year, the associates secured sizable supply and
installation of lift and escalator contracts from integrated resort and
casino developers in Macau and will continue to look for further market
opportunities in Macau in order to ensure business growth in the coming
year.

As at 31 March 2014, the total value of the outstanding construction and
engineering contracts in hand of the Group’s subsidiaries amounted to
HK$4,341 million. Major contracts are:

1. Construction of the superstructure works at TL117 Tseung Kwan O;
2. Construction of Sports Centre at Tsing Yi;

3. Construction of the superstructure works for the Proposed
Composite Building at No. 140-146 Camp Street, Sham Shui Po;

4. Electrical and mechanical works for expansion of Tai Po Water
Treatment Works Stream II and piping works at CLP Black Point Gas
Supply project;

5. Electrical and mechanical works for Galaxy Phase 2 and Wynn Palace
in Macau;

6. Supply and installation of mechanical ventilation and air-
conditioning for Kellett School New Campus at Kowloon Bay;

7. Replacement of Emergency Generator Set at Wanchai Tower and
Police Stations at Tseung Kwan O and Tsuen Wan for Hong Kong
Police Force;

8. Supply of prestige “Manhattan” kitchen cabinets for luxurious
residential at Lee Tung Street, Wanchai and TL 200 & 201 Tai Po;

9. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls for proposed
residential development at Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan and Pak Shek
Kok, Tai Po; and

10. Replacement and rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains in
East Kowloon (Package B).
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INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Total revenue of the insurance and investment segment rose by 50.7%
from HK$211 million in 2012/13 to HK$318 million in 2013/14 primarily
due to the increase in the gross insurance premium written in employees’
compensation from large construction projects.

The segment recorded a profit of HK$61.7 million for the year end 31
March 2014, a drop from the last financial year of HK$96.0 million. Such
decrease was mainly derived from the impairment loss of available-for-
sale investments recognised, decrease in dividends from private equity
funds and reduction in gain on equity and debt securities investments.

During the year, the operation further enhanced its competitiveness
to expand the employees’ compensation premium business despite the
prevailing fierce competition. Good performance of the employees’
compensation sector was partly because of the large number of
construction projects taking place in Hong Kong including New World
Centre and Palace Mall remodeling projects, and it also reflected the
Group’s efforts to enlarge specialised risk management capacities in this
sector.

The property insurance sector was able to maintain its underwriting
performance and net profitability which was the result of the limited
exposure to any major losses during the year. This continued positive
performance reflects ongoing efforts to attract and grow high-quality
business and to maintain prudent balances between property and casualty
insurance.

The global economy continued to be volatile in 2013. The overall
investment sentiment was mixed hence investors had taken a more
cautious approach. The Group’s investment performance in the year
under review was relatively steady given extra focus was placed in asset
classes with less volatility.

PROPERTY

The property segment’s revenue increased by 25.6% from HK$831 million
in 2012/13 to HK$1,044 million for the year ended 31 March 2014.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the full year contribution from
senior housing business in North Carolina, US, since the completion of
acquisition in December 2012 and the increase in sales recognised by the
joint ventures on property projects “My Villa” in Beijing and “Chateau
Ermitas” in Chengdu, notwithstanding the significant reduction in
disposal of properties for sales in Hong Kong.
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Segment profit for the year amounted to HK$407 million (2013: HK$919
million). Excluding the increase in revaluation gain of HK$202 million
(2013: HK$670 million) from the Group’s investment properties for the
year, profit of this segment recorded a decrease of 17.7% from HK$249
million in 2012/13 to HK$205 million during the year under review.
The absence of share of revaluation and disposal gain of an investment
property from an associate this year led to the fall of the profit in this
segment.

During the year, the People’s Republic of China government further
reinforced its tightening policies on the property market, including
expanding the coverage of home purchase restrictions, controlling the
mortgage loans and selling prices, and piloting the implementation of
property tax. The performance of property development business in
Mainland China experienced a challenging year.

Pre-sale of Phase 1 of “Chevalier City”, a residential development project
located in Luyuan District, Changchun, in which the Group has 96%
equity interest, was launched in 2013. During the year, 44% of residential
units were sold. Construction of Phase 2 is expected to commence in the
coming financial year.

All the residential apartments in both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of “My Villa”
situated at Huairou District, Beijing, in which the Group has 44% equity
interest, were sold. Outstanding areas available for sale amounting to
70,000 sq. ft. for villa and 133,470 sq. ft. for commercial areas.

“Chateau Ermitas” in Shuangliu County, Chengdu, in which the Group
has 49% equity interest, was launched in 2013. During the year, 10% of
residential units and 5% of villa under Phase 1 development were sold
respectively.

Senior housing operation began to deliver a good operating performance.
In March 2014, the Group had refinanced 15 senior housing facilities with
the US government insured fixed rate loans after rigorous application
process, with the aim to reduce debt serving and cope with potential
interest rate increase in the future. During the year, the Group acquired
2 additional senior housing facilities in North Carolina, US, adding 208
assisted living beds to the portfolio. Together with previous acquisitions,
the Group currently owns 23 senior housing assets providing 1,014
assisted living beds, 733 memory care beds and 119 skilled nursing beds to
serve different needs of the aged population.

The cold storage operation continually achieved a satisfactory
performance and generated steady revenue and profit to the Group during
the year. The capabilities of the cold chain logistics operation has been
strengthened in providing B2C services in addition to its existing B2B
services.

18 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

AR RG2S o R A s T 4,07 (BT (. — =
4 91918 0) o AR ASENAE MG
Wy E AL AR B M e 2.02 8 0 (R — =
B 6.70fE00) > R BB > B
Rl =T — = — AR 2,49 ot
17.7% 2 2.05 1870 o A AT 815 ATk
— M A T RCE YN B R Bk E S
Be o J50 A D o

ARIA > rp N R LT B R 3 — 28 i o L
Wy i A AR LA RO 7 PR
B~ e R SO EE S DG B
FEL o A% 45 J5 Hh B A) o 49y 3 % i S5 2 R B
Ty FE PR —4F -

AR AR AR Th fok e [ 1) 2 8 S T I [ 7 78
W BEA 96% HEdE > WD —F— AR R
PHTEEE « 4F R > 44% 2 EEHMCES < 28
HATEEHRE R B B B AR T o

AREERACE R 2 TECHS ] THE #EA
44% HESE o B RS WM A A EHE
B2 o [ R M Y I BT LA S 7 S B TR
435 % 70,000 7~ R % 133,470 - F7 IR

A SE B A 49% HE 1 i BB TH BERAR T2 1L
WAL ITHE O B — AR - 4R 4
A8 A — 1 B B A0 1 2 B 2 109% K | BE
A2 5% ©

TS S P R BT AR AR 2 - A
LA ZH > AREER R PR
1215 92 B BUR AR PR 2 18 2 R REE K > 515
RE LRSI HRE B ARG
FLE RS ORI e BTl o AR > A
AL 53 2 TR A 2B AL R B AN M 1) %
E eyt > SR 208 M LR R A7 o B 2 A
B I > ASE [ H AT 23 RLERiw > 7
FEME 1,014 M0 2 KA~ 733 M0 2 780w 2K £z
K19 EERERR AL > AR FENRER
HERRFS

Y TR A T R AU EARR B > A4 A
TR B B AR E A i A1) o BRI A 4
SR FEZ WA S > Ve U S I 1
RSN T 2 IR RETT -



FOOD AND BEVERAGE

The food and beverage segment’s revenue decreased by 12.8% to HK$659
million in 2013/14 as a result of the divestment of the remaining 20%
equity interest in Pacific Coffee Group in June 2013. On the other hand,
good performance of the outlets in Hong Kong, closure of unprofitable
outlets and gain on disposal of warehouse during the year ended 31 March
2014 turned this segment from a loss of HK$11.2 million in 2012/13 to a
profit of HK$22.3 million in 2013/14.

The management team of Cafe Deco Group has responded promptly
to turn around its performance from a loss situation last year. Facing
challenges such as higher food costs and soaring rental expenses, Cafe
Deco Group closed down another 5 outlets, bringing the number of
outlets in the portfolio to 35 as at 31 March 2014. Shortly after the end
of the financial year, Cafe Deco Group disposed the brand of Wildfire to
redeploy the capital in developing a new brand — Cafe Deco Pizzeria. The
management of Cafe Deco Group will also focus on expanding scalable
concept of Berliner as the leading German restaurants in Hong Kong by
opening two new outlets in the near future.

Cafe Deco Group has entered into a franchise arrangement with
Fauchon, a leading force in contemporary French culinary culture, to
open franchising outlets in Hong Kong. The first shop is expected to
open next to the flagship Cafe Deco on the Peak at the end of 2014.
Furthermore, Cafe Deco Group partnered with American Express
during the year under review and received satisfactory results. Given
the overwhelming feedback, Cafe Deco Group will continue to explore
further collaborations and look to enhance the brand’s image by teaming
up with established partners.

Cafe Deco Group has also successfully integrated the centralised food
processing facility to provide cost effective value-added products to a
broad spectrum of customers in Hong Kong including Cafe Deco Group
itself and offer a wide variety of specialty foods which enables Cafe Deco
Group to have more control on the food quality as well as to further
enhance efficiency.

In capturing opportunities in Mainland China, the Group has partnered
with a team of seasoned food and beverage industry specialists to
form a management consultancy business to provide management and
operations consultancy services to food and beverage retail operators. Via
this consultancy platform, the Group successfully acquired a minority
stake in GLL Wonton (7 #£ £ fifl ), Mainland China’s largest wonton
quick service restaurants with almost 2,000 stores. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to look for expansion opportunities in Mainland
China and Asian regions.
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OTHERS

The segment’s revenue grew by 107.0%, from HK$1,422 million in
2012/13 to HK$2,944 million during the year under review. Such
significant increase, in particular from the share of revenue of associates,
was mainly due to the improvement of revenue from the car dealership
associates in Mainland China and the contribution of revenue from
Moraitis Group, a fresh produce supply group in Australia, acquired by an
associate in April 2013. Nevertheless, the Group recorded a segment loss
of HK$41.6 million in 2013/14 compared to a loss of HK$38.7 million last
year. The acquisition-related expenses and goodwill impairment made by
the associates in fresh produce supply business eroded the improvement
on the associates’ car dealership.

The revenue of the network solution and document processing solution in
Hong Kong and Thailand increased slightly during the year under review.
In addition to focus on voice and data network solution, the Group will
also provide surveillance system and intelligent building solution to
service apartments and hotels. Under the rapid change in the consumers’
preference, the commercial sector for the notebook market is relatively
stable and the Group is continuously extending the scope of services to
corporations.

Following the improvement of the global economy, both revenue and
results from car dealership business in Canada and Mainland China had
increased. In Chengdu, a total of 11 4S shops are operated by an associated
group, in which the Group has 40% equity interest, in different cities
of Sichuan province under the car dealership business. There were over
12,000 units of cars sales reaching turnover exceeding RMB1,800 million
during the year. These 4S shops provide full scale of services including car
rental, spare parts sales and after-sale services of repair and maintenance.
With the accumulation of the customer base in car dealership, there will
be an increase in the demand for after-sale services, which will become an
integrated part of the profit contributor to the Group.

Moraitis Group performed below expectations during the year under
review. Conditions have been challenging with market, weather and
supply disruptions which resulted in an unsatisfactory trading and
growing performance. The management is of the view that the financial
year 2013/14 was an unusually difficult year in which several adverse
factors impacted Moraitis Group contemporaneously. In response to
such challenges, several strategic initiatives were implemented towards
the end of the financial year. These initiatives including, but not limited
to (i) the acquisition of an innovative startup company that owns license
rights to produce varieties that would reinforce our product offering to
key customers; (ii) the forming of a joint venture with an international
import/export specialist to add to the service offering of Moraitis
Group in tapping into opportunities outside of Australia; and (iii) the
implementation of best practice controls and processes to maximise
efficiencies across packaging operations across the country.

With the benefits of the strategic initiatives taking effect in 2014/15,
coupled with improved conditions, the Group is optimistic that Moraitis
Group is well positioned for recovery and will gradually regain lost
grounds in the coming few years.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue of the Group slightly decreased by 1.8% or HK$75.9 million
from HK$4,189 million last year to HK$4,113 million this year.
The decrease was mainly attributed to the decline in revenue from
construction and engineering business, offsetting partially by increase in
gross insurance premium written in employees’ compensation from large
construction projects and the full year revenue from the senior housing
business in North Carolina, US, since the completion of acquisition in
December 2012.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased from HK$1,102 million in 2012/13 to HK$1,067
million in 2013/14 and gross profit margin slightly decreased from 26.3%
to 25.9%.

Other income, net

There was a net other income of HK$118 million this year (2013: HK$147
million). The decrease was mainly resulted from the reduced gain on
financial investments and derivative financial instruments of HK$36.7
million (2013: HK$78.1 million). Included in the gain on derivative
financial instruments was a fair value gain of HK$5.7 million (2013:
HK$33.1 million) on put option in relation to the disposal of 20%
equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, “Pacific Coffee Group”), which was exercised early this year.

Other gains, net

Net other gains of HK$175 million were recorded for the year ended
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$617 million). The decrease was mainly
contributed by decline in increase in fair value of investment properties
to HK$202 million (2013: HK$670 million), despite the fact that there
were reduced impairment losses on trade and other debtors and retention
receivables of HK$2.7 million (2013: HK$36.4 million).

Share of results of associates

The Group’s share of results of associates decreased to HK$79.4 million
(2013: HK$96.6 million) in this year. There were a share of gains on
revaluation and disposal of an investment property of HK$14.0 million
and HK$28.6 million respectively from an associate in last year. On the
other hand, the share of loss of associates in food and beverage business
improved from HK$32.2 million in 2012/13 to HK$2.7 million in 2013/14
after the disposal of the remaining equity interest in Pacific Coffee Group
on 11 June 2013.

Share of results of joint ventures

The Group’s share of results of joint ventures recorded a loss of HK$9.0
million (2013: HK$18.6 million) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The
decline in loss was mainly resulted from the reduction of share of losses of
joint ventures in Mainland China under property segment.
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Finance costs, net

Net finance costs rose significantly by 71.7% or HK$42.9 million because
the finance costs of the senior housing business in North Carolina, US
were accounted for the whole financial year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$470 million
was resulted for the year ended 31 March 2014, reduced 53.5% or HK$542
million over last year.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Investment properties

The increase in the carrying value of investment properties of HK$240
million to year end balance of HK$3,647 million was basically due to the
fair value gain of the properties amounted to HK$202 million.

Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had changed its accounting policy for
the remeasurement of staff quarters to revaluation model, which led to a
surge of HK$416 million in the carrying value of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment to HK$2,095 million as at 31 March 2014.

Interests in associates (under non-current assets) and amounts due from/
to associates (under current assets/liabilities)

Interests in associates consisted of interests in associates, including
goodwill, of HK$507 million (2013: HK$560 million) and non-current
portion of amounts due from associates of HK$242 million (2013:
HK$413 million).

For the interests in associates, including goodwill, of HK$507 million,
in addition to the share of results of associates of HK$79.4 million
and dividends received from associates of HK$214 million, further
allotment of the ordinary shares from CAAM Limited (“CAAM”)
and the completion of the acquisition of an associate under food and
beverage segment also contributed HK$40.4 million and HK$38.3 million
respectively to the interests in associates.

The amounts due from/to associates (under non-current and current
assets/liabilities), net increased from HK$447 million to HK$531 million
as at 31 March 2014 represented mainly the advance of loan to an
associate engaged in car dealership business in Mainland China during the
year.
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Interests in joint ventures (under non-current assets) and amounts due
from joint ventures (under current assets)

Interests in joint ventures consisted of interests in joint ventures,
including goodwill, of HK$301 million (2013: HK$330 million) and non-
current portion of amounts due from joint ventures of HK$1,206 million
(2013: HK$893 million).

The increase in amounts due from joint ventures (under non-current
and current assets) from HK$1,271 million to HK$1,335 million as
at 31 March 2014 mainly represented net advances to joint ventures
in Mainland China under property segment slightly offset with the
impairment loss of $14.1 million.

Available-for-sale investments

The significant increase in available-for-sale investments of HK$263
million to year end balance of HK$456 million was basically due to the
investment in convertible preference shares in CAAM.

Properties under development (under non-current and current assets)
The additions of HK$246 million to properties under development
(under non-current and current assets) represented the costs incurred for
a property development project in Changchun, Mainland China.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

The decrease in investment at fair value through profit or loss of HK$85
million to year end balance of HK$321 million was basically due to the
disposal of investments during the year.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2014, bank balances and cash amounted to HK$1,201
million (2013: HK$1,280 million), of which 66.3% (2013: 66.6%) was
denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars while 25.4% (2013: 24.5%)
was denominated in Renminbi.

il fEREZHER (H AR B E E) &
WA A WK (B R ENE )

G A B R TE S8 S MR
(ELFRPEAL) W 3.01 (800 (22— =4F « i
33018 00) KNG & IR FE B 4
#2068 70 (T —=4F  #i¥8.93(%T)
AR -

RoE-IAE=A=+—0 > BlkaEME
WRAK (B £ IF i Bl i M T ) B S
R7ME T B 1335t FEAMY
SNSRI T A B A A 2
SR WORE TR HE 1,410 W ST VAT AY -

AT g 4 R

Tk B 2 A5 R G o 2,63 4 0 4R
& B RN 5608 T - EEABEINCAAM
Y AT A R S

B bk (B 7 Ik 30 B0 B 2 I i B e )
IR YSE (B 5 IR B SR ) 1Y
I 2.46 1570 - BETI LA HH B A R AR T
Z WS EERIAH BT E A R RAS o

A MR R 2 '

FION SRAEH AR 25 i P 2 $5% E D HE H 8,500
LRGBS 2100 FEHPD
EINHERCEITEL -

RoEIAE=A=+—0 > fIT5HEIE
S AW 12.01 800 (F— =48 % 12.80
BIT) > Hh66.3% (& —=4F : 66.6%) LA
W S I A > T 25.4% (—F— =
24.5%) LI EEWE B BN o

HEMBEEERAE 53
—T-mER



Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

The significant increase in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals
of HK$302 million to year end balances of HK$1,214 million was basically
due to deposits received on pre-sale for Phase I of property development
project in Changchun, Mainland China.

Bank and other borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank and other borrowings decreased to
HK$4,067 million (2013: HK$4,323 million) due to the settlement of bank
loans by operating funds and proceeds from the pre-sale of properties
under development. At the end of the reporting period, 95.3% and 4.0%
(2013: 90.5% and 8.4%) of bank and other borrowings were denominated
in Hong Kong and US dollars and in Renminbi respectively.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings in respect of the portion due
within one year dropped to 16.1% (2013: 21.8%) as at 31 March 2014.

Majority of the borrowings are carrying floating interest rates, of which
most of them are based on Hong Kong or London Interbank Offered
Rates with small portions based on prime rates.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement during the
year rose to HK$117 million (2013: HK$74.4 million).

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$6,614 million (2013: HK$5,821
million), an increase of HK$793 million or 13.6% when compared with
2013. Such increase was mainly resulted from the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$470 million, revaluation surplus
of properties upon transfer to investment properties of HK$33.5 million,
revaluation surplus of properties for own use under revaluation model of
HK$350 million, offsetting by the payment of dividends (net of issue of
shares under scrip dividend schemes) of HK$83.1 million during the year
ended 31 March 2014.
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LEVERAGE RATIOS

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated cash
flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and US.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total debt of HK$4,067 million (2013:
HK$4,323 million), included HK$933 million (2013: HK$874 million)
attributable to senior housing business, in which HK$867 million (2013:
HK$746 million) was without recourse to the Company. Analysis of the
net debt is set out below:
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2014 2013
e 11142 TR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
L3 TH iyl i
Unsecured: SEFE A -
— senior housing business — G A 46,560 —
— other businesses — HAhZHs 1,642,375 2,268,571
1,688,935 2,268,571
Secured: PEEILIN
— senior housing business — G A 886,362 873,580
— other businesses — HAhZHs 1,491,758 1,180,640
2,378,120 2,054,220
Total debt HAEWS 4,067,055 4,322,791
Bank balances and cash RAT &5 A7 SO 4 (1,200,835) (1,280,016)
Net debt FES 2,866,220 3,042,775

As at 31 March 2014, with the decrease in bank and other borrowings,
total debt to equity ratio decreased to 57.5% (2013: 69.6%), which was
expressed as a percentage of the bank and other borrowings over the
Group’s net assets of HK$7,077 million (2013: HK$$6,211 million). The
net debt to equity ratio became 40.5% (2013: 49.0%), which was expressed
as a percentage of the net bank and other borrowings (representing
the total debt net of the bank balances and cash) over the Group’s net
assets. The ratio of total debt to total assets of HK$13,926 million (2013:
HK$12,796 million) decreased from 33.8% last year to 29.2% this year.

With adequate banking facilities in place and the recurrent cash
generation from its operations, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet the funding requirements for its ongoing operations as
well as its future expansion.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group’s treasury activities are centralised in order to
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits with majority denominated in Hong Kong
or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are
frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of
bank loans, the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an
appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES

AND INTEREST RATES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had arranged foreign currency swap
contracts amounting to HK$368 million (2013: HK$79.7 million)
to hedge part of its foreign currency risk from the available-for-sale
investments denominated in Australian dollar in relation to the Group’s
share subscriptions in CAAM and exposure from various foreign
currencies used in business operation. The Group had outstanding
interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$800 million in total
as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1,070 million), enabling the Group to
manage its interest rate exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, bank and other borrowings of HK$2,378 million
(2013: HK$2,054 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were
secured by charges on investment properties of HK$2,100 million (2013:
HK$2,069 million), property, plant and equipment of HK$1,364 million
(2013: HK$930 million), interests in joint ventures of HK$202 million
(2013: nil), inventories of HK$28.6 million (2013: HK$47.2 million),
no properties for sales (2013: HK$1.9 million), debtors, deposits and
prepayments of HK$52.8 million (2013: nil) and deposits at bank of
HK$200 million (2013: HK$235 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements. The commitment is to be financed by borrowings
and internal funds.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries had provided financial assistance
to and guarantees for financing facilities granted to affiliated companies
as at 31 March 2014, which together in aggregate amounted to HK$1,855
million as loans and HK$426 million as guarantees issued for financing
facilities granted. These amounts represented a percentage ratio of
approximately 17.0% as at 31 March 2014 and exceeded the assets ratio
of 8% under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an
unaudited proforma combined statement of financial position of those
affiliated companies with financial assistance from the Group and the
Group’s attributable interest in those affiliated companies as at 31 March
2014 are presented below:
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Proforma
combined
statement of Group’s
financial attributable
position interest
% & vF AR H
B R DR JRE A B 25
HKS$ million HK$ million
AT B EET
Non-current assets B G 3,213 1,372
Current assets MBS E 3,929 1,812
Current liabilities it B (2,838) (1,202)
Non-current liabilities e i=K (591) (258)
Shareholders’ advances i TN (2,151) (1,855)
Total equity AREDS 1,562 (131)

As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group had provided guarantees, amounted
to HK$235 million (2013: HK$232 million).
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Management Profile
LG v

DR CHOW YEI CHING G.B.S., O.B.E., Executive Director, Chairman
of the Board and Executive Committee, aged 78, is the founder of
Chevalier Group since 1970. He is also a director of certain companies
of the Group. Dr Chow is an independent non-executive director of
Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Fellow by
The University of Hong Kong. In 1997, he was conferred an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong. He is also a
Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor
of Sichuan Union University in Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was
awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social Science by City
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Dr Chow was also awarded with an
Doctor of Social Science honoris causa in The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public services
is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The
Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary
Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. Dr Chow also
actively participates in various professional bodies and associations on
fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding President
of International Ningbo Merchants Association Company Limited,
the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent
Honorary President of the National Taiwan University — HK Alumni
Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas
societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain,
Belgium, France and Japan and especially the Order of the Rising Sun,
Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow
was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the HKSAR Government in
2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow,
Executive Directors of the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG, Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, a member of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged 64, joined Chevalier
Group in 1972. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
He is the President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in
Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch of
The International Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of
The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in
business development and is responsible for the strategic planning and
management of the operations of lift and escalator, building construction,
building supplies, aluminium windows and curtain walls, electrical and
mechanical engineering, civil engineering, property investment and
development as well as investment projects of Chevalier Group.
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MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director
and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 53, joined Chevalier
Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
Overseeing the operation of insurance services, property investment
and development, property management, cold storage and logistics as
well as travel agency businesses, he is also responsible for legal affairs of
Chevalier Group. Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing
University of the People’s Republic of China, a Master of Arts Degree
from City University of Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Corporate Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr
Tam is also a Chartered Member of the Chartered Institute of Housing.
Mr Tam is appointed as a Deputy Director of the Hong Kong Macao
Taiwan Overseas and Chinese Foreign Committee and a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Changchun. Mr Tam
is elected as the President of The Hong Kong Association of Property
Management Companies as well as the Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and also serves as the Vice Chairman in
its Education Committee. He is an Honorary Secretary of The Insurance
Claims Complaints Bureau.

MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Executive Director, a member of the
Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, aged 40, joined Chevalier Group in 2000. He is also a
director of certain companies of the Group and is currently in charge
of the project development, assets management, food and beverage and
fresh produce supply businesses of the Group. He is also responsible
for Chevalier Group’s finance and accounting, information technology,
company secretarial, corporate communications, human resources and
general administration activities. Mr Chow is an independent non-
executive director of Towngas China Company Limited. He holds a
degree in Master of Engineering from The University of Oxford, U.K.
and is currently a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and a General Committee Member
of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. He is also
a member of the Shanghai Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, a Committee Member of the Advisory Council on the
Environment of Environment Protection Department, and a member of
the SME Development Fund Vetting Committee of Trade and Industry
Department of the HKSAR Government. Mr Chow is also a court
member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and The University
of Hong Kong and also a Council Member of The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Mr Chow is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching,
the Chairman of the Company and is also a brother of Miss Lily Chow,
Executive Director of the Company.

Management Profile
B A

B R > YUATHE S > RIS AR R
TZRAEWE > BAFELT =5 R—JLAR
EMAR LR - PR AAEEE T ARZ
EH o BRI R R IR - P
G -~ WSRAT B Ve U EE R > I
N QB A 2605 - PR B R A 2 R
HH o WRACERRA P B AL R B L A A
{37~ 7 s T R B SCBRE - B0 2 A B T
REL AR S BRI SUIR, » B0 S 3 b K
B KPR MERTHRABLE > LR
FHFFREAG L EREH - WA
TR R T B RS AL G R R H o BN 5
SerE AT Ty N R EUA 1 i & sk R R T
ZEBZE > LHBHRABMINEZ B G
AR ; BURFRRLSE A AT 2 B s 1 3648 BN R
TR MHEFERINELAGRER
RHBEZRAGRIER - BOUREEERRER
AR R 2 B

JAEE A - ATE S WARITZRE®
HiME B e MR ZRERA > BAENt
W0 R R RRAEMAR LM > BIREA
EMETARZESR > BRI A AL
EHE R EEEH - BRIGHEREY
PEHESETS « P B LR WM M5 &g
Ft o EERVRHS ~ A FBE - MG AT
BN AT BUE B o JA TR S v R
S PR Al S IR AT 3 o PR A 2L A4
HEOREE TRERH B2 > IR S Aol AR e e Bl
TEAMEEPEREGSETE - SN
HENREGRH R E®R LT EZEREE
B BB RS R B R R H g &
B e TR 5 8 b /M S8 I SR e wT
ZHEEZE o FSEIN AR TR K&
EREFHZEGME » DRFER RS
RO G AR o AR Ry AR 0% R T T I 1
T2 BT RA S AT E S AFA M2
o

HEEBEEERAT g
e



Management Profile
B

MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 64, joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He is also
a director of certain companies of the Group and is responsible for the
internal audit activities of Chevalier Group. Mr Ho is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING, Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, aged 45, joined Chevalier Group in 1993. He is also a director
of certain companies of the Group. Mr Ma has extensive experience in the
project management and is currently in charge of the senior housing, car
dealership, hotel investment and trading businesses of the Group. Mr Ma
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from The University of
Warwick, U.K., a Bachelor Degree in International Business Studies from
City University of Hong Kong, a Corporate Finance Certificate from UC
Berkeley, US, and a Professional Certificate in China Construction from
Tsinghua University, PRC.

MISS LILY CHOW, Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, aged 51, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is also a
director of a subsidiary company of the Group. She is responsible for
strategic planning and business development of the Group. Miss Chow
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of British Columbia.
Miss Chow is currently a member of each of Harbourfront Commission
of Development Bureau, Transport Advisory Committee of the Transport
and Housing Bureau of the HKSAR Government and Independent
Member of Appeal Board of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong.
She is also currently a member of the Ningbo Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Miss Chow is the daughter of
Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and is also a sister of
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Executive Director of the Company.
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DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH O.B.E., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged 72, joined
the Company in 2002. He is the Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners
Ltd., an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings
Limited, Road King Infrastructure Limited, Harbour Centre Development
Limited and Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Dr. Chow is a civil
and structural engineer by profession. He has over 40 years of experience
in the planning, design and construction of many major engineering
projects in the U.K., Middle East, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He
was formerly the Chairman of the Hong Kong Construction Workers
Registration Authority and Hon. Senior Superintendent of the Hong
Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was previously the President of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’
Registration Board, Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority
and Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing Committee
as well as a Member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hospital
Authority.

MR SUN KAI DAH, GEORGE, Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged 74, joined the
Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in business management.
He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company incorporated in 1978
and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position
of Chief Executive Officer of Zindart Limited since 1998.

MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.B.S., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged 55, joined
the Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Cass Business School London in 1983 and is currently
a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising firm of Accountants and
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
as well as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a director of Phoenix U Radio Limited. His community duties include
the Director and ABAC chairman of The Community Chest, member of
the Social Welfare Advisory Committee, Occupational Safety & Health
Council, Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), an independent director
of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong and a member of Hospital
Governing Committee of Caritas Medical Centre. Mr Yang was selected
as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was appointed as Justice of Peace by the
HKSAR Government in 2004 and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
HKSAR Government in 2011.

Management Profile
B A

B L O.BE, P, W IFHATES
WREHMZE B G FE - FREEGRIEAE
BEWE  BAELT 8 M EE AR
AT o 5 R WITHE T AR AR A FR A 7 2
FRE - FISER A RRA R ~ ML A R
) A 2 PR ) OB B S i 4 1 A R
NEVESLHEPUTES - AL AHET AR
GERE TRRAT o BREEA AR AR RS - o
O AR R AR BEat B
TARIEE 2 8855 o T H U EmE T AGE
A A5 RSy T T e A s i B SR R K 2 B
HEE] o s AT B LIRS e R Hilk
TARRR GRS ~ 75 2 al KA R SR s
BERANFATE RSN EE G T > Y
MHEFREZEGRBREMRZES -

WAL BT ES W ARS
ZEGEN  TEEBEGRHMEE TN
B BAFEL T A ERARNFEMARL
F] o R M N A BB o A — THR
— LB /NAEIRAL o R 3 B A g v R 2 T
5 2N ] — Zindart Limited Z BIHEN o
A= JULNAERAREZ A RIAT BLAR R — B -

Bt % B.B.S, JP. o WAL EATHEE
WHHREZBGEN - FiMZ B G REA %
Bem g  BAER TR B FEE
AANT] o Mg et — JLN ZAF A i 2 Cass
Business School 2 T4 4 FLAE £ > B Ahs
B EGEHRIT 2 BN o Sl A Ak B 8
WA s A & L EBEFIA ST E -
TN 75 SRRV S B AT FR s Rl 2 # s - TR
WEAEZ AT > G A i S HH BN
ZAGFER - HEEAGREE S BREL
EERRE - LFFZ 8 R R E) R
B~ B AR Lk o 2 o S K P R B
EWRZBAGNE o o R LB eE
Mg [ FHIiR AR ] o Bt — R F AR
MER US4 R BUN AT B KT8 L > IR =%
— AR PSR R UM R S R R o

HEEBEEERAT 3
e



Management Profile
B

PROFESSOR POON CHUNG KWONG G.B.S., J.P., Ph.D., D.Sc.,
Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 74, joined the Company in
2012. Professor Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science (honours) degree
from The University of Hong Kong, a Doctor of Philosophy degree and
a Higher Doctor of Science degree from the University of London. He
was a postdoctoral fellow at the California Institute of Technology and
University of Southern California. He also held the Honorary Degree
of Doctor of Humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2009. Professor Poon is currently the chairman of Virya Foundation
Limited (a registered non-profit charitable organisation). He is an
Emeritus Professor and the President Emeritus of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and had devoted 40 years of his life to advancing
university education in Hong Kong before he retired in January 2009
from his 18-year presidency at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Professor Poon was appointed a non-official Justice of the Peace in 1989
and received the OBE award in 1991, the Gold Bauhinia Star award in
2002 and the “Leader of the Year Awards 2008 (Education)”. In addition,
Professor Poon was appointed as a member of the Legislative Council
(1985-1991) and a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (1998-2013). Professor Poon is
a non-executive director of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited and
an independent non-executive director of Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited and K. Wah International
Holdings Limited, all of which are public companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM S.B.S., Ph.D., Non-Executive
Director, aged 68, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated from
The University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in the HKSAR
Government for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide range of
departments including the Water Supplies Department, the Highways
Department, the Civil Engineering and Development Department and
the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as the Director of Water
Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service in January 2007.
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Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES

FOR OWN USE

Location

W

Approximate

gross

Usage floor area*
Mg A T TR A0
sq. ft. P

A2 EEY I
(D) FEfedesH

Lease term

RHEM

The Group’s
interest

A4 T A i 2
%

Hong Kong
i

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor,
19th to 23rd Floors and
one-third interest in 201
car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

JUREHE K B 8\ 5%

HEmEp o8
—F-—E - E
TREZFEME

0 =4y — R 2 A #6201 f

Chevalier Engineering Service Centre,
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay
JUHE S B 0k
Hod TR MR o0

Chevalier Warehouse Building,
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen,
Fanling

A8 22 Y bh e A = 0%
HEtBARE

Ground Floor of Blocks A and B,
East Sun Industrial Centre,
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong
BLYE R TR
TE A 20 A JBE e B R L N

8 Kwai Hei Street,
Kwai Chung

I E A\t

Office premise and 174,600
carpark

N R AT

Industrial/ 177,500
Office premise

T WAE
Industrial 118,300

T3

Industrial 14,900
T

Cold storage warehouse 380,000
A P

Medium
Hh

Medium
T

Medium
T

Medium
A

Medium
GRb]

HIEREEARAF

100

100

100

100

75

—E—ER 33



(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES

) FiEE BRYE @)

FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
Hu & A 1 i A R/ A5 B A E 4
sq. ft. “F IR %
124-130 Kwok Shui Road and Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
79-85 Yau Ma Hom Road, Vo U B i
Kwai Chung
1 I T B
TR =R R e B
LB+
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi Industrial 253,500 Medium 87.5
BRERE - E=1=5 T3 )
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Long 100
5] L B R AE LR B =M
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
A BUE A8 i R H
Singapore
B e
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 106,500 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T¥% K SERE
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road, Industrial 16,900 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 T K ERE
Canada
JE N
838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C. Hotel 66,000 Freehold 90
s TKAKENE
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Ontario, Office and workshop 20,200 Freehold 100
MIF 2M8 for automobile KR ZERE
dealership
MPERE RSS2
WAE R T
14535-14583 Yonge Street, Aurora, Office and workshop 25,000 Freehold 100
Ontario for automobile KR ZERE
dealership
IR
WAZER T
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(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES

) FEE BRWE @)

FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
o & A T i RE A5 T A 2
sq. ft. “F M %
Us
£H
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA 94080 T2 /fHE KA
13258 Nelson Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 38,600 Freehold 100
City of Industry, Los Angeles, T /AR Tk K EERE
CA 91746
4510 Duraleigh Road, Raleigh, Senior Housing 52,700 Freehold 100
NC 27612 Ere A TR
1700 Montana Dive, Charlotte, Senior Housing 34,400 Freehold 100
NC 28216 e TR
3060 SE Stark Street, Portland, Senior Housing 143,000 Freehold 100
OR 97214 A TR ERE
14420 SW, Farmington Road, Senior Housing 35,000 Freehold 100
Beaverton, OR 97005 Y K ERE
535 U.S 158W, Yanceyville, Senior Housing 38,300 Freehold 98.6
NC 27379 g TR
2560 Willard Road, Winston-Salem, Senior Housing 33,300 Freehold 98.6
NC 27107 e TR ERE
Thailand
#H
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom KA ZEHE
Debsirin Sub-district, TN S A %
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
HIEBEEERAR

—E-NFR 35



(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES

) FiEE BRYE @)

FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
Ho & v 4 B A5 T A 2
sq. ft. “F M %
Mainland China
Py
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark =i
bR R AR — AN TSI E - A R
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, WA= w18
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou
JEE M T 5B 5 v BN - Lk
U = 0
(II) PROPERTIES FOR SALE () ek
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
Ho 8 e 4 LW A5 1 A 2
sq. ft. “F A M %
Hong Kong
ik
Units 1601-1603 on 16th Floor, 3,800 Medium 100
Chevalier House, 45-51 Chatham Road South, i
Tsim Sha Tsui
NS PLUCRE 5 1= (ALt TR T 78 S BN
TAB AT -E-AEZE
Mainland China
o I Py 3
My Villa — 23 villas and 15 shop units, 215,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing T
b T S [ AR ] 5 A7 23 {18 K% 7 il 15 1
Chateau Ermitas — 51 villas, 100 residential units and 334 588,000 Medium 49
car parking spaces, Lushan Avenue, Chengdu T
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(II)PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(1) 3§ e vh P 3

Estimated
gross floor
Stage of Expected date of Approximate area after The Group’s
Location completion completion Major usage site area completion interest
LI SR 56 1 MR KEH
o R HHEE LAY TERR [TpEOLY TR A 8 i 1
sq. ft. T-HR sq. ft. TH M %
Mainland China
bl S
Luyuan District, Changchun ~ In progress 2015 to 2027 Residential and 3,370,000 7,460,000 96
REFHR R BN CE-HEE commercial
s RV TES
Shuangliu County, Chengdu  In progress 2017 Villa and residential 455,000 1,142,000 49
JRCAR T R TR Rt 8 R
*  Excluding carparks * AL F L
*  Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement N ARG T %~ 4 AERE - B

buildings and clubhouses

Loy i 2 A T T

HEAREBERAT 55

—E-NEFER



Corporate Governance Report

SRR

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasing stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
sets out two levels of corporate governance code namely, code provisions
that a listed company must comply with or explain its non-compliance,
and recommended best practices that a listed company is encouraged to
comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The
Company is in compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code
except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. All the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George, an Independent Non-Executive
Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 6 September 2013 due to an oversea commitment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors
and evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the
corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, notifiable transactions,
director appointments or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting
policies. Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report
is set out on pages 28 to 32.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full Board
met four times during the year under review. The attendance of Directors
at the Board Meetings, the Board Committees Meetings and General
Meeting is set out in the table below:

HHE )

FREHCANTER  —AFRTEFR
DY 4 985 37 I AT AL o T R AR
FENILERAT TR ik > S HAEEEGE
R T SsRogor Y Yilg N R ikl
TR :

Meetings Attended/Held

kR BT
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration = Nomination General
Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
#% #HE  BHERAG  HMEHE  HNABAR RIOEEAE
Executive Directors
HITEH
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 1/4 - - - 1/1
JEARIp I A ()
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and
Managing Director) 4/4 - 1/1 1/1 1/1
SR LE S (R T e AR AERY)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing
(Deputy Managing Director) 4/4 - - - 0/1
a B ST () AR
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4/4 - 1/1 1/1 1/1
JEIHEIE Se 4
Mr Ho Chung Leung 4/4 - - - 171
fsR R oE
Mr Ma Chi Wing 4/4 - - - 171
HRBASEE
Miss Lily Chow 3/4 - - - 1/1
JEIFTH /MR
Non-Executive Directors
HHITEF
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph” 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
JE W 1 1+
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George® 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 0/1
b S
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 171
Wi st ot s
Professor Poon Chung Kwong’ 4/4 - - - 1/1
iR
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 4/4 - — - 1/1
[FE4 ALEs

M Independent Non-Executive Director

WL HBTES

ATEREEERAE 39
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SRR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other except that Dr Chow Yei Ching is the father
of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow; while Miss Chow is a
sister of Mr Chow.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company met at all times
the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at least three Independent
Non-Executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board
and with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise and
professional qualifications.

The Company has received from its Independent Non-Executive
Directors annual confirmation of independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company also provides reading
materials updates to the Directors on the latest developments and changes
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws and regulations relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company arranged a seminar to the
Directors to update them on the relevant topics regarding the IT trends
and best practices and trends of Board Effectiveness. All Directors
attended or received the materials at the seminar. Directors’ training
is an ongoing process, all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to
provide records of training they received to the company secretary of the
Company for records.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Board shall have power to appoint any person as a Director either
to fill a vacancy or for expansion of the Board. The Company has set
up a Nomination Committee for formulating nomination policy for
consideration of the Board and making recommendations to the Board
on the selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during
the year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following their
appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from office by
rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting since the last
re-election or appointment of such Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei Ching and
the Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the Managing Director
is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
revised in March 2012 in compliance with the provisions set out in the
CG Code. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He has extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls. Other members include all other
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen,
Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is responsible
for the appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial
information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
internal control procedures and risk management frameworks. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior
to recommending them to the Board for approval. Its terms of reference
are accessible on the Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk
and the Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
March 2014. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if
any), the interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2013 and
last year’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2013, and has reviewed
with management the accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting
matters and risk management systems of the Group. The final results for
the year ended 31 March 2014 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in
its meeting held on 19 June 2014.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March 2005 with
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the
provisions set out in the CG Code. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the
Chairman of the committee. Other members of the committee include
Messrs Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi
Sang and Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure on the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
operation model where it has the responsibility, powers and discretion
to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management of the
Company. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
March 2014 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2014. Details of the
emoluments of Directors and senior management by bands are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March 2012 with
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee have been revised in June 2013 so as to incorporate Board
Diversity Policy effective from 1 September 2013. A Board Diversity
Policy has been adopted to set out policy for designing the composition
of the Board with diversity in Board members having balanced skills
and expertise. The diversity of the Board members should be assessed
on a diversity of perspectives including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience, skills and other individual qualities. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and review annually the structure, size and
composition of the Board and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and make relevant recommendations to
the Board for adoption.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Mr Sun Kai Dah, George is the Chairman of the committee. Other
members of the committee include Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Messrs
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive. The
Nomination Committee has the responsibility to consider, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. Its terms of reference are accessible on the
Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at http://www.chevalier.com. The Nomination Committee held
a meeting during the year ended 31 March 2014 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s business to an Executive Committee which was established
in 1991. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee have
been revised in March 2012 so as to incorporate corporate governance
functions as stipulated in the CG Code. Members of the Executive
Committee comprise seven Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei
Ching, Chairman of the committee, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok
Wing, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung, Ma Chi Wing and Miss
Lily Chow.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control,
covering financial, operational, compliance control and risk management
functions. The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by management or the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit
reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key management.
The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for following up
the implementation of recommendations and corrective actions. The
Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of the Board or
management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014,
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Directors have adopted generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are fair and reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 62 to 63.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the fees paid/payable to
the auditors in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services
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Amount (HK$’000)

IR 785 kBT £HOB¥%T )
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 7,885
Az BRI PricewaterhouseCoopers
BBt S Al g S 5 T B A6 A A I Ak A BR AR A i S
— other auditors 3,449
Al A% B i
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 1,238
FE s PricewaterhouseCoopers
Bl L A T g S 5 I B A B A A I i A A IR AR A i S
— other auditors 1,370
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code throughout the
year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The requisition must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposit at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary and deposit at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
enquiry@chevalier.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or shall not less than one
hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also
be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM”) (continued)

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders
concerned under applicable laws and rules.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a director is posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and
other information relating to the Group are disclosed on the Company’s
website at http://www.chevalier.com.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND BYE-LAWS OF
THE COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The recent introduction of an Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Reporting Guide by the Stock Exchange is a demonstration
of mounting stakeholder interests in ESG disclosure. As consumers,
investors, policy makers and stakeholders demand greater transparency
about all aspects of doing business today, reporting on social and
environmental issues has become more important than ever. During
the year, the Group is committed to a high standard of corporate social
responsibility and four key subject areas for reporting are: (I) Workplace
Quality, (II) Environmental Protection, (IIT) Operating Practices and
(IV) Community Involvement.

(I) WORKPLACE QUALITY
The Group strives to attract, develop and retain qualified employees
by providing optimal talent and professional development
opportunities to them. We are also committed to provide a safe and
healthy working environment for all employees and site staff, and to
implement equal opportunity employment practices.

Working conditions

As at 31 March 2014, the Group including its subsidiaries had a total
of approximately 3,300 full-time employees globally, with 2,160 in
Hong Kong and Macau, 760 in Mainland China and 300 in other
locations, mainly in Australia, Canada and Thailand. During the year,
the Group was affected by the competitive labour markets and staff
turnover rate of 2.4% was recorded in Hong Kong.

To attract, motivate and retain talented employees, the Group
reviews regularly the compensation and benefits programs to ensure
that those benefits are both competitive to the market. Annual
review will be conducted to align pay packages of employees and
other benefits, which include medical scheme, health check program,
travelling insurance, training subsidies and retirement benefits, with
prevailing market conditions.

To increase employees’ sense of belonging with the Group, different
recreational and health-related activities were arranged by our
Human Resources Department during the year. The Group also
cares about the family members of employees and strives to help our
employees to maintain a balance between their work and personal
lives. In Hong Kong, a total of 6 events were organised including
“Chevalier Winter Carnival 20137, held at West Kowloon Cultural
District on 29 December 2013, which was participated by more than
3,500 employees and their family members.
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(I) WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

48

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to all employees and site staff. Regular monitoring of
the work environment and facilities provided for staff is undertaken
to ensure that employees enjoy a safe and healthy working
environment.

In meeting with stringent regulation, for employees who are assigned
to work on construction sites, they are required to follow additional
safety guidelines. This is to ensure a high standard of occupational
safety, protecting employees from occupational hazards. Special
safety equipment such as safety helmets, ear plugs, dust masks,
goggles and safety shoes are provided and well-maintained. They
are also provided additional rest periods and the provision of
shelters, ventilation facilities and potable water for workers during
hot weather. The Group has also conducted safety and health care
trainings to relevant personnel and newcomers at our construction
and engineering sites at regular intervals.

Occupational Health and Safety Committee

Our property management division has obtained OHSAS18001
to ensure the compliance of the occupational health and safety
requirements since 2006. Head office and selected sites are being
audited periodically by British Standards Institution to renew the
certificate. There is a Safety Committee which consists of members
from head office property management staff and site level operation
staff to formulate site safety measures and policies. Regular meetings
are scheduled every 3 months for post-implementation review of
audited sites, as well as information on any recent accidents or
injuries and respective precautionary measures to be taken. Trainings
are organised in each audited site every 3 months to enhance
their awareness of occupational safety. Thus we had successfully
maintained the accident rate of these audited sites at zero for the past
few years.

Site Safety Subgroup

Site safety inspections are carried out in our construction and
engineering division on a regular basis and any findings in major
unsafe act and unsafe condition is rectified promptly. The site safety
subgroup comprising representatives from our project companies
and subcontractors and meetings will be held frequently.
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(I) WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

Employee Development and Training

As knowledge and skills of our employees are vital to the Group’s
continued business development and success, we strive to ensure
the professional development of our staff to their fullest potential.
The Group nominates staff members to attend internal and
external training programs every year, with the Human Resources
Department actively seeking employees’ feedback. The programs
range from professional and technical training to personal
development skills. The Group has also provided education subsidies
encouraging staff to develop their skills and broaden their knowledge.
To ensure continuous supply of new talent, the Group also organised
apprenticeship programs and provided apprentices with on-the-job
training.

Equal Opportunities

The Group advocates a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities. The Group complies strictly to equal
opportunities legislation, such as the Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Race Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination Ordinance. To
ensure diversity and equality, we recruit, remunerate and promote
employees based on their experience, skills and performance, without
prejudice to age, race, disability, gender or family status.

Code of Conduct

The Group upholds high standards of business ethics and personal
conduct of its employees. The Personal Conduct and Staff Conduct
Code in the Human Resources Policies and Procedure Manual, which
is published via intranet, is regularly updated.

(IENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well reflected by
our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness
in all business practices. The Group also has a committed partnership
with World Wild Fund for Nature (WWF), a well-established
conservationist non-governmental organisation, to contribute to the
sustainable development of our environment.

The Group has also been taking part via its environmental
engineering subsidiary in various large-scale projects related to water,
wastewater and air quality, as well as solid waste treatment disposal
including but not limited to the natural gas pipework installation
at CLP Black Point Power Station for receiving natural gas from the
Second West-East Gas Pipeline (WEPII); the conversion from heavy
fuel oil to ultra-low sulphur diesel at CLP Castle Peak Power Station;
and the construction of the Tai Po Water Treatment Works Stream
II.
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(IDENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (continued)
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Energy Efficiency

The Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the awareness of
environmental protection among staff with the aims of saving energy,
fully utilising resources and recycling wastes in daily office operation.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives to reduce
paper usage including usage of electronic devices, and encouraging
the use of websites and online version of corporate communications.
The paper usage dropped by 12% this financial year though there
were many new projects/sites. Since 2008, Forest Stewardship
Council-certified (FSC) papers have been used for the production
of our Annual and Interim Reports to reduce the impact on the
environment and community. To reduce the power consumption
of our lighting systems, the Group had replaced all lighting basins
continuously throughout our offices with T5 florescent tube set,
saving 20% of electricity energy as compared with T8 florescent tube.
Most of our office equipment carries Energy Label issued by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department which would further
save the energy in the offices.

Our construction and engineering divisions have put in considerable
efforts in protecting the environment at our project sites. Measures
were implemented in the area including noise control, waste water
discharge, chemical waste disposal, dust control, use of recyclable
waste materials, prevention of chemical leakage, etc. An example
would be the use of biodiesel in some of our machineries on site.
Environmental protection policies and plans were set up for different
projects. Some of our group companies have obtained the 1SO14001
certification awarded by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
which also demonstrated our commitment in our environmental
protection.

Property management division of the Group has possessed the
ISO14001 certification. Activities were held in organising the
recycling and promotion of green projects to support a green living
lifestyle for its residents. In saving energy and expenditure, it is
targeted for audited sites to reduce 5% consumption of electricity in 5
years by changing the light tube from T8 to T5 and turning off some
lifts during non-peak hours. In our managed sites, we have organised
the collection of clothes, moon cake container, red pocket, toner
cartridge, battery, electric bulb/tube to promote recycling concept to
our customers.
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(II) ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (continued) (I1) BRBEOR G ()
Energy Efficiency (continued) REIRRL AR (40
Moraitis Group, one of the major fresh produce grower-aggregators Moraitis 4 [ /2 1 P 3 B S AAT & 4L T
in Australia, continues to protect our environment by enhancing P2 — o JE A R B AR R A AR T IR
our farming process. Moraitis Group has its own Hydroponic i o Moraitis & [# A A B R /K B it - A]
facility where crops are grown in a glasshouse under an isolated and A 8 P T A7 R 5 1 U 5 BR A v B A R AR
protected environment. Hydroponic growing also delivers huge Wy o K 5 TR AR IR T 4 7K K B VR A 8
savings through water and energy efficiencies. All the packing facility ROCRAE T A KRB - T B sk
will have its own waste water treatment infrastructure enabling us to YR BEK RIS > 765 S5 E vE L
recycle all daily water used in the potato washing process. FFH Y HE K] DUJEER R -

(I OPERATING PRACTICES (IL) 2 32 168
Supply Chain Management 3 R 4 B
The Group has been stringent in selecting qualified suppliers to 7 B 1B e 6 T 7 5 S AL R TR A EOR &2
ensure that the whole production process is in line with our standards PR AR 7 7 A 45 A 2 T 0 R Y S L o
and specifications. Not only do we require our new suppliers to 2 AL [ R R T (L RE P AR S T A
submit all relevant documents for review, we also run background SCHELABE AR BR o IR e BT AL A DLRE
checks to evaluate their reliability. We conduct regular inspections Al HAT SEE o AN S [ WA T A B K
and evaluations to review the standards of our suppliers and cease ity D 2 25 AL IR P A EE > P A IR BN
cooperation with unqualified suppliers. REALRERT 19 S 1F -
Fair Operating Practices 2T 18 FE TR 451
The Group upholds fair operating practices in its contracting A B2 75 8 0 SF R 0 AR R A~ BRI
with subcontractors and suppliers through a fair and efficient PeAs o DA I B P e B R Y R
procurement system, adopting competitive tendering and Bl A BTGP S B RE R RT A R p R
subcontractors’ performance monitoring and reporting. Regular RS- o Rl OR A 25 [ Ak
reviews of terms and conditions of subcontracts and supply contracts S HIAIE 78 B EL 7360 1 R AR I B 2 [ R [
are carried out with the objective of ensuring fair operating practices HAFR)EEBIR » 3-AM € & A
between the Group and its subcontractors and suppliers enabling the A H B AR A % 0 W ik B A A - A B
development of effective and strong partnerships. Such reviews also Tl IR 2 B T L K S B RE A A A
cover the potential enhancement of social, ethical, environmental A~ B LREE MR R R AT e
and gender equality criteria in subcontracts and supply contracts. Al o
Product/Service Responsibility BB AT
The Group recognises good customer and after-sales services are AL R R R P R EAE R T4
keys to the success and sustainability of a corporation. Following TG KB R B o
this belief, the customer service teams under different business units RAGR — A > HT RS K EAE AR
were set up to handle queries from customers in a timely and efficient SETS T I LN B IR e AR R F
manner. figt P IR $
The Group respects personal data privacy and has formulated a A A 7 O A R RA R SIF R B R i
policy on collection and usage of personal data. Review and revision K fd AR &R AT EUR o il E R R
of the personal data and privacy policy are carried out to ensure its A B R & AT AR T NI AR 4B AT DA £
effectiveness and compliance with relevant laws. HAR AR A Bk -
For our property management division, our management will discuss AU S BRI 5 - AN S A L A
any occasional incident related to property management with site B 355 Hb 5 H K 4 4 & B e B AR AT
managers and members of Safety Committee, and to share the views o] B 4 2E 45 PR B O (8 BF S > SIF ak
regarding various aspects of 1S09001, 1SO14001, OHSAS18001 1S09001 ~ 1SO14001 ~ OHSAS18001 5% M
or statutory compliance. The management will also remind site S L AR 7 T S L B o A B R R IR
managers to review existing terms of contractors’ contract regularly TR e R 5 i AR P E WA R R A A
and take necessary precaution measures whenever applicable. FAY B I $R B BE TR B 1 it o
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Food Safety and Product Quality

Public awareness of food safety and product quality has increased
over time. The Group requires all of its business divisions to meet
the relevant quality indicators and to provide better products and
services, in order to maintain the Group’s brand reputation. Cafe
Deco Group has implemented safety measures in compliance with
the relevant health and safety guidelines enforceable throughout our
restaurants. The inspections of workplaces are carried out regularly
in order to ensure health and safety requirements fully complied
with. The Group has also integrated the centralised food processing
facility to provide cost effective value-added and safe products to the
customers which enabled us to have more control on the food quality
and in compliance with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points
(HACCP), a management system for food safety.

For the farming operations in Australia, the adoption of the
integrated pest management technology in the controlled glasshouse
environment allows our team to manage pests and disease in an
efficiency way. By using a healthy ecology of the glasshouses, we
can provide our customer with a safe product from a sustainable
production system.

Customer Satisfaction

To consider the needs and satisfaction of customers is always the
target of the Group. Food and beverage division is committed to
deliver attentive and impeccable customer service guaranteeing
diners a delightful and heart-warming dining experience with
international standard. In addition, customers are invited to provide
feedbacks on food and service quality by completing comment cards
available at selective outlets. Customers can also share their views
via VIP Hotline or electronic mail channels. The VIP program is to
build customer loyalty through special promotions to our members,
monthly e-newsletters and birthday special offers. Computer
and information communication technology division provides a
comprehensive order processing, fulfillment and back-office services
to consumers. Customer service centre has provided a wide range
of information and assistance to answer customers’ inquiries and to
offer repair and maintenance services to consumers.

Anti-Corruption

The Group adheres to stringent anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in the Group’s Human Resources
Policies and Procedure Manual that includes provisions for conflicts
of interest, intellectual property rights, privacy and confidentiality of
information, bribery and corruption and equal opportunities. As part
of the Group’s orientation training, a topic about anti-corruption
will be presented to all new employees during orientation program.
The Group’s gift policy under the “Acceptance of Advantage in
Employment” has clearly stated the required process and procedure
for handling and accepting gifts and advantages. No cases of
corruption were reported within the Group during the year.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Over the years, the Group is dedicated to corporate social
responsibility with a strong belief of “taking from society and
giving back to the community”. The Group has pledged to serve
the community by participating in community services, sponsoring
charity, education, culture, sport activities and promoting
environmental protection. Besides, it also establishes “Chevalier
Culture & Education Foundation” to facilitate cultural, academic and
educational exchanges among Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan,
and Macau.

Community and Charity

In the past year, the Group sponsored in a number of charitable
events such as “Channel Charity Concert”, “Lifeline Express Charity
Golf Day”, “HKGCC Free Ride Day” organised by the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and “Chevalier Blood Donation
Day” co-organised with the Hong Kong Red Cross. Besides, the
Group actively participated in various fund raising activities
organised by The Community Chest, such as “The Community for
the Chest TV Show”. The Group’s contribution to and caring for the
society has been widely recognised and was conferred the award of
“Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
since 2011.

Education and Culture

The Group acknowledged that young people are the future leaders
of the society and education is crucial in building a prosperous
society. The Group has sponsored various programs in providing a
better learning environment for teenagers and encouraging them for
lifelong learning. Sponsorship includes the renovation of computer
room in Ning Po College, scholarship scheme of CMA Secondary
School Education Trust and academic activities of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In addition, the Group has sponsored various
programs of HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education,
Asian Cultural Council and Harmony Foundation International
Limited to promote cultural and art development, and foster public’s
interest in the field.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

54

Sports

The Group is a keen supporter of Chevalier Cup Race Day of Hong
Kong Jockey Club for the past 18 years. During the year, the Group
took a step further to sponsor “Hong Kong Masters” to popularise
equestrian sport among public. It was an Asia’s first and only
international 5-star accredited indoor show jumping event with the
world-class top elite riders and horses gathered in Hong Kong.

Aimed at promoting tennis development and bringing world-class
tennis competitions to Hong Kong, the Group gave full support to
“Chevalier Hong Kong ITF Women’s Circuit Series 2013” which was
organised by Hong Kong Tennis Association. Moreover, the Group
also participated in “The Community Chest Corporate Challenge”
and “The Community Chest Swim Wheelock for a Million” to
encourage healthy lifestyle and sport, as well as to raise fund for the
needy.

Volunteering

To sustain a never-ending momentum in our community service,
our employees across the Group serve the communities in a number
of ways. We are determined to develop a strong volunteer team —
“Chevalier Cares” which was formed in 2011. The team has nurtured
volunteer leaders to drive and deliver meaningful services to the
needy. Partnered with various non-profit organisations including
Hong Kong PHAB Association, Hong Kong Young Women’s
Christian Association, Hong Kong Family Welfare Society and The
Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong, the team organised 6
voluntary programs during the year and served the people in need
including the elderly, the children, the disabled and low income
family.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are shown on pages 172 to 180.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2014
analysed by operating segments are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 65. An interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share was paid on Friday, 14 February 2014. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.65 per share
in cash, with an option granted to shareholders to receive new and fully
paid shares of HK$1.25 each in the share capital of the Company in lieu
of cash or partly in cash and partly in shares under the scrip dividend
scheme (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The circular containing details of
the Scrip Dividend Scheme and the relevant election form will be sent to
shareholders on or about Thursday, 9 October 2014.

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal
in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme. Final
dividend will be distributed and the share certificates issued under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme will be sent to shareholders on or about Tuesday,
11 November 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 25
August 2014 to Friday, 29 August 2014, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 August 2014.
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EHEERE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is Friday,
12 September 2014. For determining the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend (subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 8 September 2014 to Friday, 12
September 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5
September 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$791,960,000 (2013: HK$719,127,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2014
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 5 and on pages 21 to 27 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than 30%.
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five
largest customers.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2014 are set
out on pages 33 to 37.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 3,300 full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2014. Total staff costs amounted to
HK$978 million for the year ended 31 March 2014. The remuneration
policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature
of job, market trend, company performance and individual performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis,
medical schemes and retirement schemes.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$12,720,000 to
charitable bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph”
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*
Professor POON Chung Kwong*
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

# Independent Non-Executive Director
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr CHOW Yei Ching,
Messrs KUOK Hoi Sang, MA Chi Wing and YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
shall retire from office at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors are subject to the
same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Company — Shares
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Number of ordinary shares
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Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

HEAW =i 6]\ BE 25 FIRHELR Ha RE#5 W20

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 183,676,770* - 183,676,770 62.72
JA R Haa A

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 106,313 - 106,313 0.04
it Haa A

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 182,949 35,149 218,098 0.07
[ 2% j- gt XN

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
(EERY j- gt PN

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 183,676,770 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 62.72% of the issued share capital of the Company. These
shares were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests in Securities” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during
the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The ORSO
Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both employees and
the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group. For members of the
MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per
employee, at a maximum of HK$1,250 per month for the year ended 31
March 2014, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in countries
or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required to make
defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage or sum of
the monthly payroll.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$34.8
million against which no forfeited contributions have been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EREEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

ERORZ @I

REF—E=ZA=+—H » BAREES
e FEATENB BT > R AN A S0k MR A
2 ) Bty SSORH R B A7 o T I ZEAR R R O M
SRR R XV 5 2 I 370 BRI G S A
FIEEE > BORRLER AR 2y R AR R IR MO
51156 336 1 B AT 2wl ok M A0 2 AR e S A A
T

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial shareholders Capacity Shares held of interest

FEBHK =gl Jir ¥ B B H HE 25 5 20

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 183,676,770 62.72
JE TR Hama A

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 183,676,770* 62.72

HIINEE T A A

* Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow Yei Ching, is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 183,676,770 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2014, with deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and A.6.7 which have
already been stated in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual
Report. Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on
pages 38 to 46 of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
share which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares as at 27 June 2014, the latest practicable date
to ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 1 A% B Bl e +F

i
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 180, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Income Statement

A W AR A

For the year ended 31 March 2014
WEF-WE=H =+ —HILFE

2014 2013
ZB s CE A
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 i1 T T
Revenue N 5 4,113,381 4,189,258
Cost of sales B A (3,046,603) (3,087,616)
Gross profit EA 1,066,778 1,101,642
Other income, net HAbg A > 58 6 118,273 147,196
Other gains, net HAb Uk %5 - 155 7 175,274 617,039
Selling and distribution costs BH S I A B A (496,981) (507,319)
Administrative expenses FTEL S (220,579) (196,340)
Operating profit 2828 1 A 642,765 1,162,218
Share of results of associates RN & gNCIE S 79,376 96,583
Share of results of joint ventures R e (9,033) (18,611)
713,108 1,240,190
Finance income WA 8 14,355 14,606
Finance costs B 2 8 (117,012) (74,403)
Finance costs, net WMES A - AR 8 (102,657) (59,797)
Profit before taxation R Ay Jas 1) 9 610,451 1,180,393
Income tax expenses FT B S 10 (84,270) (97,107)
Profit for the year AR PR A 526,181 1,083,286
Attributable to: WEAK Ty -
Equity holders of the Company EN/NEIN G ESEEDN 470,369 1,011,923
Non-controlling interests JE 2 M 5 55,812 71,363
526,181 1,083,286
Earnings per share 7 A
— basic (HKS$ per share) — A (BN 11 1.65 3.64
— diluted (HK$ per share) — R (g AR ) 11 1.65 3.64
Dividends ;38 12 248,406 238,414

The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 FUR 180 FLZ MRE S AR5 A BA RS TR 2 4Lk
statements. T4y o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
s 4 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-WE=H=+—H ILFEE

2014 2013
e S 1B 2 —E =
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT T
Profit for the year AR A 526,181 1,083,286
Other comprehensive income for the year A At 2 T AR
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss W REAS £ OB R A I H
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer T B BB SERF Y S
to investment properties DI RN S 33,540 31,833
Fair value surplus of properties for own use B AW A A E R R 349,790 =
Release upon disposal of a property for own use A —TE ) SE AR R (123) -
Share of other comprehensive income of Jr Al — T BB 22 w1 Y
an associate HoAh A T A 3,865 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HgeEMEEE
profit or loss 18 1k i I H
Impairment loss on available-for sale investments ATt A 2 O B 1
transferred to consolidated income statement R R A AR R 10,532 4,639
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments AR B AR
transferred to consolidated income statement R BRI R = (289)
Exchange difference on translation of operations L AN R 2~ 7]~ W A R
of overseas subsidiaries, associates and BEEELEHMEEZ
joint ventures IR 5,46 2= B (15,466) 18,358
Change in fair value of available-for-sale Ak E RS AUEEE)
investments, net VR AR 23,348 (15,462)
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial 167 L Bl
instruments designated as cash flow hedge 1A B s T H A BRI
in respect of interest rate swap contracts UG # B 2 AUE TR 1,041 41
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax R HAb AT > BRBLE 406,527 39,120
Total comprehensive income for the year AR A TN AR AR R 932,708 1,122,406
Attributable to: JEAL T
Equity holders of the Company AN A RAERET A 875,963 1,050,029
Non-controlling interests JE P2 M 45 56,745 72,377
932,708 1,122,406
Note: Wi
Ttems shown within other comprehensive income are disclosed net of tax. A 2 TS AR TR 2 T H TR B B o
The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 FLE 180 FLZ M1 55 45 G B IR 2 AU
statements. whay
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA BRI R

As at 31 March 2014

REFE—E=H=+—H

2014 2013
TR PR SR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5 BT T
Non-current assets IV B
Investment properties &Y 14 3,646,873 3,407,266
Property, plant and equipment W2~ R K 15 2,094,523 1,678,889
Goodwill [iGkS 16 681,743 681,743
Other intangible assets HoAth TR & 17 26,199 28,023
Interests in associates Fir Ak Wk 8 W 2 4 19 749,811 973,514
Interests in joint ventures S &8 RS 20 1,507,333 1,223,129
Available-for-sale investments a2 21 456,041 192,892
Properties under development R 22 757,459 702,569
Deferred tax assets 7R S Bl T 36 33,856 26,323
Other non-current assets HoAth IF 0 Bh 23 133,859 106,137
10,087,697 9,020,485
Current assets WHE B
Amounts due from associates JRE AW 2\ ) R K 19 318,122 33,830
Amounts due from joint ventures ML A A R 20 128,799 378,065
Amounts due from non-controlling interests JRE WA 2 5 R K 20,281 -
Investments at fair value through F s S AR 2 Sl 21
profit or loss Pai'd -y 24 320,732 405,694
Inventories peyte 25 169,506 203,694
Properties for sale R VES 26 54,808 57,248
Properties under development BER ) 2 22 410,748 211,974
Debtors, deposits and JEMCARR ~ F7 th 4 I
prepayments T ERIE 27 1,025,520 942,101
Amounts due from customers for B 4 AR [6) 2 i B
contract work Z A 28 171,754 175,155
Derivative financial instruments AT RS T A 29 10,342 82,364
Prepaid tax TEATBLIE 6,282 5,153
Bank balances and cash SRATHAE M E 30 1,200,835 1,280,016
3,837,729 3,775,294
Current liabilities wE Al
Amount due to an associate JREASE— [T TR K 19 29,372 -
Amount due to a non-controlling interest JREAH B — IF 2 M 25 B K 4,154 4,644
Dividend payable to a non-controlling interest JREAST B — I 42 R 4 A B 1,400 2,400
Amounts due to customers for WA ) LA [ % 5 S A5
contract work pa ¢ 28 549,509 582,625
Derivative financial instruments fiTA: B Es T H 29 7,094 30,921
Creditors, bills payable, deposits JFEATARR - MEAT S
and accruals LN Sy SRk S 31 1,214,569 912,430
Unearned insurance premiums and I TE A5 i 2 T R it 1A
unexpired risk reserves JE\ i 126,170 111,391
Outstanding insurance claims R P B &= A 32 368,327 276,931
Deferred income RIEYA 23,250 23,628
Current income tax liabilities HI T A A 53,591 55,990
Bank and other borrowings RAT B Ho A 3K 33 653,968 944,285
3,031,404 2,945,245
Net current assets B 806,325 830,049
Total assets less current liabilities HEE 7 U B £ A 10,894,022 9,850,534

HEEBEEERAT o
—Z—nEg



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BA MBI

As at 31 March 2014
RE—HE=A=1—H

2014 2013
“ o R
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wt 51 W T T
Capital and reserves T A K fits
Share capital &S 34 366,093 351,734
Reserves fEAG 35 6,248,138 5,469,085
Shareholders’ funds A 6,614,231 5,820,819
Non-controlling interests FEPERRESS 462,568 390,223
Total equity HARE £ 7,076,799 6,211,042
Non-current liabilities Ik vt Bh £1
Unearned insurance premiums R SR i 2 141,715 75,476
Bank and other borrowings SRAT S ARG R 33 3,413,087 3,378,506
Deferred tax liabilities HEHEBLIH £ 1% 36 262,421 185,510
3,817,223 3,639,492
Total equity and non-current liabilities HARE 75 KRR B B A 10,894,022 9,850,534
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014 and signed on its behalf by: KEFRGR _FE—MEANH L HHE - il
TOHESRRREE
KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
R A JE 4 IE
Director Director
HH HH
The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 FUR 180 FLZ ML AR 55 A BE RS TR 2 4Lk
statements. i
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Company Statement of Financial Position
o W) JABSIR DL

As at 31 March 2014
BoB—MEZA = —H

2014 2013
= UTE: —E—=
Note HK$’000 HKS$’000
R 5 BT T
Non-current assets I & B
Interests in subsidiaries I A A4 J 2 ) 2 A i 18 3,194,303 3,189,585
Interests in associates T A B s W 2 M A 19 89,594 89,594
Other intangible assets HoAbf I ¥ 599 599
Available-for-sale investments A it s 2 RE 21 217,973 192,892
3,502,469 3,472,670
Current assets WEE B
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE g B 2 ] B K 18 2,451,445 2,480,524
Amounts due from associates T AT B 2 ) R K 19 15,057 38,083
Investments at fair value through Fe s S S) AR 2 i 1
profit or loss ZHE 24 33,853 48,380
Debtors, deposits and MEN AR R ~ 74
prepayments Fe TR AT I 27 3,181 1,530
Derivative financial instruments fiiE i TR 29 1,082 62
Bank balances and cash SRATEEAT I B 4 30 185,712 215,955
2,690,330 2,784,534
Current liabilities Wi B £ 4%
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B JEE 2 wI R K 18 2,789,829 2,777,599
Derivative financial instruments AT E T A 29 = 5,870
Creditors, deposits and PEATHRSX ~ FE A4 I
accruals TR 2 31 5,354 15,719
Bank borrowings SRATIE X 33 52,000 47,000
2,847,183 2,846,188
Net current liabilities B A (156,853) (61,654)
Total assets less current liabilities B2 o D U B B 3,345,616 3,411,016
Capital and reserves JBe A% B fiti
Share capital A 34 366,093 351,734
Reserves fit i 35 1,474,148 1,207,011
Total equity HHRE R 1,840,241 1,558,745
Non-current liability I i B £ 5
Bank borrowings SRATIE K 33 1,505,375 1,852,271
Total equity and non-current liability HARE 25 K% I T B £ 3,345,616 3,411,016
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014 and signed on its behalf by: HERGN -E—MEANH L HMHE did
THERREREE
KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
IR A JR] 4 1F.
Director Director
#=H #=H
The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 H & 180 ELZ sk Ty e A5 47 G A B R 2 SH AR
statements. B4y o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-WE=H=+—H ILFEE

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling Total
Company interests equity
A 2w B HE
FE AN AN RE Fk 4 B e i HEHE g5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 R_B—=4EMA —H 5,820,819 390,223 6,211,042
Profit for the year A B Vs ) 470,369 55,812 526,181
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer g BB ERY L
to investment properties N AEEL R 33,540 — 33,540
Fair value surplus of properties for own use B A ZEZ N RE S 349,790 = 349,790
Release upon disposal of a property for own use i~ i 8 —JH [ 14 2145 B (123) = (123)
Share of other comprehensive income of I Ak — P B 2 2 E )
an associate Hofth A 7 i 3,865 - 3,865
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments R {i 8 2 % & (1) 3 (H 5 18
transferred to consolidated income statement (e ety 10,532 = 10,532
Exchange difference on translation of operations 5. SN} B A 7] ~ B 48 7 I
of overseas subsidiaries, associates and BN ER I EEZ
joint ventures A1 BE 53 25 HE (16,399) 933 (15,466)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A 2 BB RN AU EEE)
investments, net FEA 23,348 = 23,348
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial — $8 & 2 Bl 4 il & #H (1)
instruments designated as cash flow hedge A B LB A B AR
in respect of interest rate swap contracts LG A2 S 1,041 = 1,041
Total comprehensive income for the year AT JBE 2 T W i KRB 875,963 56,745 932,708
Dividends paid LS S (240,939) = (240,939)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes ARAE LU B AC S S8 AT 4y 157,811 - 157,811
Deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries 5y B T A 6 S R 2 A 577 4,079 4,656
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ELAT T I HE FBEAE 25 1 JE - (10,797) (10,797)
Capital contributions by non-controlling interests e HE RS EARTEA - 22,318 22,318
At 31 March 2014 R-FZ-WE=ZA=1—H 6,614,231 462,568 7,076,799
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling Total
Company interests equity
AR ) R
FEA N 1 i I PR A AL
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T BT T
At 1 April 2012 W =AM A —H 4,993,725 323,845 5,317,570
Profit for the year A B Vi ) 1,011,923 71,363 1,083,286
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer R B REY) ERY
to investment properties APIRIRARS 31,833 - 31,833
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments  #] i B 2 8 & 1 Wl (E 5 48
transferred to consolidated income statement I 2 AR A s R 4,639 - 4,639
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 5 0] {it 5 2 3 & 1 i £
transferred to consolidated income statement W R LA iR R (289) - (289)
Exchange difference on translation of operations  #5¥g SMHfH & A 7 ~ B 28 7] &
of overseas subsidiaries, associates and BENEZEEEEZ
joint ventures AN 5 $ 25 R 17,344 1,014 18,358
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A 2 BOE R S E)
investments, net pEiE1) (15,462) - (15,462)
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial 3§ & £ 31 & i &= ¥ 70 (1)
instruments designated as cash flow hedge fir A B ES T2 A BE A
in respect of interest rate swap contracts FUHA G 4000 28 S o 41 - 41
Total comprehensive income for the year AR 4 T U %5 AR 1,050,029 72,377 1,122,406
Dividends paid CATALE (263,686) - (263,686)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme ARE ABACE T AT IR0y 40,751 - 40,751
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR IR AR IS - (12,942) (12,942)
Capital contributions by non-controlling interests I 8 Bt 4 & AR A - 6,943 6,943
At 31 March 2013 REE - EE=A= 5,820,819 390,223 6,211,042
The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 H %180 H Z M5k TI L& 45 A IS ¥R 35 2 AL A%,

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaia®

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-WE=H=+—H ILFEE

2014 2013
TR PR TR
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
b5 T T I
Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from operations A 4 2 B4 45(a) 707,563 558,758
Interest paid oA FILE (134,166) (93,845)
Profits tax paid EL A R AR BL (91,445) (72,857)
Profits tax refund [EANERIEER TR ET Y 2,736 1,100
Net cash from operating activities PRSREE-& 37 PRt | 484,688 393,156
Investing activities BEEW
Interest received E LS 14,355 14,606
Dividends received from associates BB s T 2 S 214,157 78,034
Dividends received from joint ventures ClaEAEZRE 25,502 2,831
Dividends received from investments B g S 32,360 44,931
Purchase of investment properties [ s'a LB = (15,533)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties ) 2 TS B - 8,088
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WE B2~ W BGREAR (65,573) (95,466)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - RR)E K
plant and equipment 2 A5 EIE 16,659 6,051
Net cash outflow from acquisition of Wi 22 s B i SE T 2 Bl
senior housing business Wi A 45(b)(i) (67,038) (928,204)
Net cash inflow from LT & H 2 Bl
disposal of A TR
— other subsidiaries — Ho A B} JEg 2 7 - 2,388
—20% equity interest in — Pacific Coffee
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
(Holdings) Limited 2 20% R HE 45(b) (iii) 81,660 -
Deemed disposal of interests 2% B A 6 IS
in subsidiaries Z g 4,656 -
Capital contributions by non-controlling interests TV B i E AN 22,318 6,943
Investments in associates RSN 2 & (78,735) (4)
Advances to associates WA R TEZ B3 (85,714) (69,656)
Repayments from associates A 1 W A T 2 AR ERE 2,596 44,588
Advances to joint ventures A ESETEZ EK (143,466) (384,916)
Repayments from joint ventures A A R EIE 68,451 534
Purchase of available-for-sale investments W AR 2 1 (270,337) (827)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEEREZREZ
investments RGE e 17,103 30,681
Net cash used in investing activities HRBEEBZHETH (211,046) (1,254,931)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEBAHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BEE—IES A=t — B R

2014 2013
e S 11 E: 2 —E A
Note HK$’000 HKS$’000
B 51 BT WET T
Financing activities il SE
Dividends paid CAT R (83,128) (222,935)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests CA T IR R IR i R (10,797) (12,942)
Drawn down of bank and other borrowings PREUERAT T HAt A 3K 5,184,688 3,092,987
Repayment of bank and other borrowings B SR AT S LA i 3 (5,439,530) (1,751,651)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EARIPAE B D (B 35,412 (182,456)
Net cash (used in)/from financing (AR KEHME X%
activities bRy ] (313,355) 923,003
(Decrease)/increase in cash and B4 R B & S|y
cash equivalents (9E4),/ B (39,713) 61,228
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year JR4EHIZ H & KRB &% EY 1,044,931 982,580
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates A T [ 28 58 ) 2 5% 48 (4,056) 1,123
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RAERZBERB&EEY 1,001,162 1,044,931
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents 34 J 8l & % B W &5 1750 i
Bank balances and cash SRATRAE M & 1,200,835 1,280,016
Less: Pledged deposits o CHCITAE K (199,673) (235,085)
1,001,162 1,044,931
The notes on pages 74 to 180 are integral parts of these consolidated financial 5574 HL & 180 ELZ Miak o 55 45 A B 3R 2 AL AR

statements. %B/ﬁ‘ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 WA 5 Hh R P o

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-WE=H=+—H ILFEE

74

General Information

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public listed
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and 22nd Floor,
Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 27 June 2014.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, staff quarters, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by HK$156,853,000. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going concern
taking into account committed available banking facilities and cash flows
from operations and consequently prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKEFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had changed its accounting policy for
the remeasurement of staff quarters to the revaluation model. This
change in accounting policy has been dealt with as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”. The Group
considered the usage of the staff quarters could be easily converted and
leasing out for rental income and therefore it would be appropriate to
account for these properties under revaluation model to reflect the fair
values at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B IR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2 EREFHBORME ()
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) HRAELHE (%)

(i) New or revised standards and amendments and i) NRF—=ZFENH—HMK=2
improvements to existing standards that are effective for A 45 T o A JRE A 280 R AT B
the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April 2013 A8 T e ) K B A HE R 2 i ET

N T &

The following new or revised standards and amendments and
improvements to existing standards, that are relevant to the
Group’s operation, are mandatory for the financial year of the
Group beginning on 1 April 2013:

HKAS 1 (amendment), “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

HKAS 19 (2011), “Employee benefits”
HKAS 27 (2011), “Separate financial statements”

HKAS 28 (2011), “Investments in associates and joint
ventures”

HKFRS 7 (amendment), “Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities”

HKEFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10 (amendment), “Consolidated financial statements —
Transition guidance”

HKEFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”

HKFRS 11 (amendment), “Joint arrangements — Transition
guidance”

HKERS 12, “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

HKFRS 12 (amendment), “Disclosure of interests in other
entities — Transition guidance”

HKEFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”

Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
published in June 2012

The amendment to HKAS 1 focuses on improving the presentation
of components of other comprehensive income items. It requires
items presented in other comprehensive income to be grouped
on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit
or loss subsequently or not. The Group’s presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements has
been modified accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

76

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New or revised standards and amendments and

improvements to existing standards that are effective

for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April 2013
(continued)

HKEFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor
controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee. To
meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, all three criteria must
be met, including: (a) an investor has power over an investee; (b)
the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (c) the investor has the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. The application of this new standard has no impact on the
consolidation of investments held by the Group.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The application of this
new standard has no impact on the Group’s results of operation or
financial position while “jointly controlled entities” and “jointly
controlled assets” have been superseded by “joint ventures” and
“joint operations” respectively following the adoption of HKFRS
11.

HKEFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entities, including joint arrangements, associates,
structured entities and other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group
has included the disclosures in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 13 measurement and disclosure requirements are applicable
for the year ended 31 March 2014. The Group has included the
disclosures in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of the other standards and amendments and
improvements to existing standards does not have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated results and financial position
nor any substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B IR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2 EREFHBORME ()
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) #BILHE (4)
(ii) New or revised standards, interpretation and amendments () CHEfiEMmARERS > BAEHE

and improvements to existing standards that have been
issued but not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group

The following new or revised standards, interpretation and
amendments and improvements to existing standards, that are
relevant to the Group’s operation, have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year of the Group beginning on 1 April
2013 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (amendment), “Classification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”

HKAS 19 (2011) (amendment), “Defined benefit plans —
Employee contributions”

HKAS 32 (amendment), “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”

HKAS 36 (amendment), “Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets”

HKAS 39 (amendment), “Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 (amendment), “Mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures”

HKEFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) (amendment),

“Investment entities”

HKFRS 11 (amendment), “Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operation”

HKERS 14, “Regulatory deferral accounts”
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21, “Levies”
Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS

published in February 2014

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state whether
there will be any substantial changes to the Group’s significant
accounting policies and presentation of financial information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

78

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint
venture, representing the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s interest in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at the fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportional share of the recognised amount of
acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill arising on
an acquisition of an associate or a joint venture is included in the cost of
the investment of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

80

(c)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is included
in investments in respective associates and joint ventures and is tested
for impairment as part of the overall balance. For the purposes of
impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units
(“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint venture,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a joint venture represents the excess of the share of net
fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of the
acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair value at the
date of acquisition.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and of changes in other comprehensive income of the associates, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, unrealised
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full
amount of losses is recognised. Accounting policies of the associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) Interests in associates (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in associates
are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. The results of
associates are accounted for on the basis of dividend received and
receivable during the year.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control and over which none of the participating parties has
unilateral control.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified either
as either joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the contractual
rights and obligations each investor has.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator recognises
its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities
(including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue
(including its share of revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation) and its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well
as revenues and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in
accordance with the applicable standards.

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest
in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

82

(f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each reporting period end date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amounts due from subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-controlling interests, debtors and
receivables and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

As at 31 March 2014, loans and receivables represent amounts
due from associates, joint ventures and non-controlling interests,
debtors and receivables, bank balances and amounts due from
subsidiaries of the Company.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories set out
above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are stated at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be reversed
in subsequent periods.

Bk RSN
B S MBS 5y 3 T A 0 B T 0
S A T RS A T A AT 7 R
RIE B G o TR I R AR 45 1
IR A - A SRR (RL5RE
WPt 2 ) B AR S B
B e 42 IO 2 B~ B R % g
WCHKIH S BRAT S5 A7) T BR PR %
J7 AR WS A TR > 0N BRAE fa]
.l 1 DR e 18, = v 5 T o )
H LA > B el (R 1 R AR
R Sl R TR (L B R R
F ARG BL 2 Al 5 AR ACH 6 0 i 2 Bl
(B ] 2 ZE R o i 0 T i (o]
2 AR AR & LML b B R R
(HARPr g 2 05 - MR o
T DA R 0] 45 > e dok (L o] 435
R R T LS 715 2 ) 0 e 0
{ELIRF 2 U M AAS

SRS S S
T TSI R A ) - 4
A3 TR P T 26 B 3K~ B 3
HEC RIS - AT S BB A 2
B 24 A -

A il 0 2 B 5

TRk A 2 B T WA E R
A BN By L SO A HAR R 2 JF A
AR TR o A T URE RE AR A5 R
R ATk A 2 B T R SR fE
WIOE o 0% FUfE 2 A B FoAt A T 0
At I RS - L2 RS B L
B E A BT e R A A A
R 2 Bt sk SR e B A
ZTAT S i S B o ST T A R AR
ATk 2 A R AT R
TR RAR A ERT o

Tk 2 AR 5 0 BB 1R
AT LAAR ) (M7 4 48 i ] 48 o 3
TR TATE L 2 BURSCE - B 2
A FAE 2 B WR RR R B AR v S
PRI R I g e 2 F A HIA
I 9 (e P B A J0 ] [ 4

A% 7 A 3 R TR L Al
RRET] 52 ik 2 T4t i A 2 Fe AR i
B E U RDAR 2 A5 R
LSRR ERONSY SR RN 7% =E]l
MR o i LA % 180 A ol e >
R TR 18 A A R o (L 1R
SRR 2 Y DR T (L B RO B S
7 2 BRAT 111 35 1ol 4 2 i B 2 Al iR
B BUE ) 2 A A
B AL EEO AN B 7 LA S ] 43¢

HEEBEEERAT g3
—Z—nEg



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

foi T s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including dividend payable to a non-
controlling interest, creditors and payables, outstanding insurance
claims, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to an associate
and a non-controlling interest and amounts due to subsidiaries of
the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss, except for those
derivatives qualified for hedge accounting are recognised directly in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as held-
for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, and the combined contracts are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances, derivatives
embedded are not separated and are accounted for together with the
host contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. Where the
Group needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable to
measure the embedded derivative separately, the entire combined
contracts are treated as designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

®

(g)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Derivatives (continued)
Gains and losses from the changes in the fair value of the derivatives
(excluding the interest component and those derivatives qualified
for hedge accounting) are recognised in other income, net. The
interest component is reported as part of interest income from
investments included in revenue.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional valuation
conducted as at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the asset
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in profit or loss as part of the other
gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of
property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under HKAS
16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses except for the staff quarters.

Staff quarters are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Revaluation
are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from the fair value of a revalued asset
at the end of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

86

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same
asset previously recognised in the profit or loss, the increase is recognised
in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset
recognised in equity.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to the retained
profits is made for the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation original cost.
Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal,
any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred to retained profits.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences depreciation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Depreciation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs or fair
values to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the
following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Building Over the shorter of 20 to 50 years
or the remaining lease term

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Over the remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, office 10% — 33'/,%
equipment and motor vehicles

Others 10% — 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

@)

(G)

@

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended for sale upon
completion comprise prepaid lease payments, development expenditure
and borrowing costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net realisable
value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs to complete
development and selling expenses.

Impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications of
impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their businesses.
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these future cash
flows and discount rate. Management estimates the future cash flows
based on certain assumptions, such as revenue growth.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted average method. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds
in the ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses.

(m) Properties for sale

(n)

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and buildings
held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of properties for sale comprises prepaid lease payments and related
development costs.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out during the
year.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

88

(n)

(o)

(p)

Construction contracts (continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When
it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an
amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the statement of financial position, as a
liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the statement of financial position
under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in
the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Trade creditors
Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair values and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(q) Provisions and contingencies (continued)

(r)

(s)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided by banks to certain property buyers, and
credit facilities provided by financial institutions to its subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and joint venture partner as insurance
contracts.

Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk reserves

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portions of the
premiums written which relate to periods of insurance subsequent to the
end of the reporting period and are deferred to subsequent accounting
periods. Unearned premiums are computed on the basis of net premiums
written for all classes of insurance. Net premium written represents gross
premiums received or receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected value
of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies
in force which, at the end of the reporting period, exceeds the unearned
premiums provision in relation to such policies.

Insurance claims

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the end of the reporting period and an estimate
of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) which is calculated with
reference to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and reported.
Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and expenses paid during
the year and the change in the reserve for outstanding claims during the
year. Reserves for outstanding claims are reported on an undiscounted
basis which include reserves for reported claims and reserves for IBNR
claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The reserve of a
reported claim is made by the claims handler based on his experience and
based on the information, documents and the claim amount submitted
by the claimant and is checked by the officer before updating the
information into the claims system. The reserve is reviewed and revised
regularly to reflect the development of the claim and the change of the
market practice.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

90

(s)

(u)

Insurance claims (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs a liability
adequacy test to ensure the adequacy of the insurance claim liabilities.
In performing these tests, current best estimates of all future contractual
cash flows are made. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit or
loss.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured with reference to the value of work carried out during the
period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever is
later.

Income from sale of goods such as information technology equipment,
motor vehicles and food and beverage are recognised when goods are
delivered and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is
arrived at after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added
tax.

Income from rendering of services such as provision of maintenance and
property management services, warehouse and logistics services, hotel
operations and senior housing operations are recognised at the time
when services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services
are accounted for as deferred income.

Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income when
an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note is issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

2 EREHHEORBER (5)

(s)

(t)

(u)

DRBE R M (41)

WS R - AEREST A TR R
TEKLLRECR R B o R BRI © (EMEAT
A% BB > H A H R A A B E R
R AR AR A T o AT TR SR BE R R
FEATER

JReA
BB R A o

L B AL AT 0T L 1 B B 2
AR 2 T A5 K ET R (N BR AL
JARER RFI7R o

LN 373

W AR A 2 A R A R ST A
N A AT S ARSI it T 2 A A
58 LA 7 Hk R o 9 — A #UR
ASHETT B2 HUAh IR - FUHE O AR T T
T[] 2 5 B A HERD R A o

Yo Esl A 2 WA TS AE B ] T B B A
EOIPASAUT BRIt/ E S ANYIE P
AR ) ABR -

B T (I aRURH S el ~ R e
BR) Z WA T i L AR SR o A
PR FARANR < A TR P A 815
BRI P SR -

PR AU (Ui iR R S s -
T B B W R RS ~ T % e B
B Z WA TSR AR PR R D,
FEBOARS HI 2 WA TS BT R IE A <

ELRARBR T < R E TR R R S
BN T R R AR B 2 ARl R R I e
AN

e | B 5 2 LS A T i R TR L A3
AR o SRR A 4 2 5 B T ) R R R
HAE I > T PR S J 0 i B
ZTARHE A > Al FE R A BLE A
S B 2 T BRI (L PE € o

T T A I B A T 1A A 4 B SRR O
ZRERI ST AR

BB 2 ATy iR E ARSI
BN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v)

(w)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the statement of financial position as an obligation
under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs as stated in note 2(x) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans
Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an
expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

92

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes profit or loss items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(y)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are determined based on
the presumption that the carrying amount of such investment properties
will be recovered through sale with the corresponding tax rate applied.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value has determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation, which are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that gain
or loss are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences so
arising are recognised in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
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2

94

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(aa) Impairment
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

(ab) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets, and
other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank and other borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments, debtors and receivables, creditors and payables,
outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies and
non-controlling interests, dividend payable to a non-controlling interest,
bank balances and bank and other borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the consolidate financial
statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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3 WL A B H AR S R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 AR R &R
(a) Market risk (a) T EkE

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from derivative financial
instruments, bills payable, floating rates bank and other borrowings
and floating rates bank deposits. Majority of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings carry interests at floating rates and expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The management monitors
interest rate exposure and hedges significant interest rate exposure
by using financial instruments such as interest rate swap contracts.
Certain instruments are qualified for hedge accounting.

As at 31 March 2014, if interest rates had been increased/decreased
by one percentage point and all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax profit of the Group and the Company, excluding
impact of fair value changes of derivative financial instruments,
would decrease/increase by HK$14,316,000 and HK$5,396,000
(2013: HK$20,727,000 and HK$8,118,000) respectively, resulting
mainly from the change in the borrowing costs of bank and other
borrowings and finance income of bank deposits.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from various currency exposures. Foreign
currency risk arises when the Group’s recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies that are not the entities’
functional currency.

The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign currency
risk mainly comprise of investments in debt and equity securities,
accounts receivable balances arising from sales to overseas customers,
bank balances and cash and amounts due from related parties and
group companies (on entity level). The Group’s financial liabilities
that are exposed to foreign currency risk mainly comprised of
accounts payable balances arising from purchases from overseas
suppliers and amounts due to group companies (on entity level).
It is the Group’s policies to ensure that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
hedges significant foreign currency exposure by using financial
instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts. Certain
instruments are qualified for hedge accounting.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than the
functional currencies of the Group’s entities) that are exposed to
foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated in Australian dollar,
Canadian dollar, Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Japanese Yen, Macau
Pataca, Renminbi, Singapore dollar, United States dollar (“US
dollar”) and Vietnam Dong. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
(on entity level) and the Company’s foreign currency denominated

3 s B A PR H AR K BUR
(%)
3.1 MABEBEHEE ()
(a) TIPS (%)

(i) AMERE S (FE)
A g AR ST\ M A RS LB OR
WAL EAE YRR T
It~ &R0~ BREE - % H
C WM ONREE S Bnsioe
ot (T 5T )) K rs & BB - A
L (ZETB ) JARA \] LAANE £
A BAS B S R

financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date are as H2ZBREEIF -
follows:
Assets Liabilities
HE A1
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR ZFE =4 DR R CE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
The Group AL BT T o W T T T
Australian dollar T 247,227 23,345 (7,080) —
Canadian dollar JIEw N 191,120 218,522 - -
Euro Jef At 31,909 27,417 (60,475) (56,706)
Hong Kong dollar ik i 16,785 131,594 (79,055) -
Japanese Yen H & 10,380 119,235 (13) (52)
Macau Pataca TR - - (357,984) (286,677)
Renminbi N 406,234 362,603 (42) -
Singapore dollar g o 119,307 126,181 - -
US dollar FEIT 671,257 711,043 (4,511) (9,118)
Vietnam Dong R 29,924 - = -
Others HoAth 25,436 18,598 (1,206) (10,918)
Assets Liabilities
& s
2014 2013 2014 2013
e~ 111 e S —E Y4 e S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
The Company A T BT T T WET T
Australian dollar ot 26,632 22,055 = -
Canadian dollar &R ot 191,120 218,522 = -
Euro [ 2 24,854 23,289 (60,399) (56,706)
Macau Pataca L e = - (357,984) (286,677)
Renminbi ANRH 290,194 304,592 = -
Singapore dollar EeIlIbs 119,285 126,178 - —
US dollar EIC 224,745 224,912 - (2,074)
Others HoAth 29,702 22,064 — -
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 B A PR AR R BR
(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WBEBEHEE (4)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) TG EBE (%)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivity to every percentage point increase and decrease in the
functional currency of corresponding group entity against the above
foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for every percentage point increase in
foreign currency rates. Positive numbers below indicate an increase
in profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above foreign
currency strengthens every percentage point against the functional
currency of corresponding group entity.

(i) SMEEFE (FE)

RGN A W A T 2 A B 4
H £ T Re B R DL B AN 2
n B b — 18 E o B 2 U -
JESE oy BT FALFE i AF AR AT DA SN 2
A2 BEEE > 0 E R R
[l 23 A 158 o0 — {181 T B 2 B T LA
SR o DUN IE SR DL B AN R
BB A Tine BT E—
B 43 B 2 1 DU e A PR
A s o

2014 2013

B TR AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

The Group AL E BT T T
Increase in profit T A B 7,913 11,837
Increase in investment revaluation reserve % & it #4554 4,560 1,929
2014 2013

ZB g TE A

HK$’000 HK$’000

The Company AR H] #WH T T T
Increase in profit Y A 58 2,699 4,034
Increase in investment revaluation reserve & F il ff A 189 hn 2,180 1,929

(iii) Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to listed debt and equity
securities price risk because investments held by the Group and the
Company are classified on the consolidated statement of financial
position and the Company’s statement of financial position either
as available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted debt and equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one percentage point
and all other variables held constant:

—  the post-tax profit and investment revaluation reserve
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 would
increase/decrease by HK$2,200,000 and HK$299,000 (2013:
HK$2,579,000 and nil) as a result of the changes in fair
values of investments at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale investments respectively;

(iii) 115 B
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

98

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk (continued)

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments of the
Company had been increased/decreased by one percentage point
and all other variables held constant:

—  the post-tax profit of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014 would increase/decrease by HK$275,000 (2013:
HK$265,000) as a result of the changes in fair values of
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale investments,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments, debtors and receivables, amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling interests and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and assessment of
the impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected revised estimates of
expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers
in each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted
to trade debtors is 60 days, except for insurance business where
credit period granted to certain debtors is over 60 days. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies and non-controlling interests
are continuously monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is
made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

Available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, interest receivables
and bank balances are limited to financial institutions or investment
counterparty with high quality. The Group controls its credit risk
to non-performance by its counterparties through monitoring their
credit rating and setting approved counterparty credit limits that
are regularly reviewed. The Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure that
the limits are strictly followed.

The Group has assessed the credit risk arising from guarantees
given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to certain
property buyers, subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and a joint
venture partner taking into consideration the realisable value of
the underlying projects/assets. The Group does not expect any
significant credit risk arising from these guarantees.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual
debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed short
term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has obtained
sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit facilities
from banks for working capital purposes.

The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan covenants
are monitored closely by the management of the Company. The
following table details the Group’s and the Company’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities at the reporting date. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group or
the Company respectively can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

fo 1 A A M e

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 B AR B H AR B

(%)

3.1 AR EBRI R (48)

(c) E&WBEBE (%)

Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
ABEH
B&w e
B4 —F 4 ZEHY A AR Mz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
The Group AL T wHT o T T T BT T
2014 —E g
Amount due to an associate JREAST— 1w K 29,372 - - - 29,372
Amount due to a JRE AT L — I P R W i
non-controlling interest R 4,154 = = = 4,154
Dividend payable to a JRE AT L — JF R W i
non-controlling interest il 1,400 = = = 1,400
Creditors and payables JREAS B R B JRE AR 3R E 400,140 - - - 400,140
Outstanding insurance claims AP f B A 368,327 = = = 368,327
Derivative financial MRS TR
instruments (net settled) (FEEE) 7,841 = = = 7,841
Derivative financial fiiE s TR
instruments (gross settled) (RRRAETD)
— outflow — Wi 5,772 = = = 5,772
— inflow WA (5,715) = = = (5,715)
Bank and other borrowings  #R47 B HA A5 # 702,894 1,799,299 955,348 1,433,123 4,890,664
Financial guarantees in HAREA L
contingent liabilities B fR 124,318 25,500 411,848 = 561,666
2013 TE-ZAR
Amount due to a AT B — FE P A 45
non-controlling interest R 4,644 - - - 4,644
Dividend payable to a JREAsF B — P I A
non-controlling interest i35} 2,400 - - - 2,400
Creditors and payables JEEAS B 2R B RE ARt 30 372,420 - - - 372,420
Outstanding insurance claims KRB R E 276,931 - - - 276,931
Derivative financial fiiE g TR
instruments (net settled) (F4sE) 28,330 506 255 - 29,091
Derivative financial fiiE g TR
instruments (gross settled) (HEEEH)
—outflow =it 45,504 - - - 45,504
— inflow —WA (68,570) - - - (68,570)
Bank and other borrowings  #R4T S HiAth 5K 982,005 1,490,742 2,255,387 - 4,728,134
Financial guarantees in sARAKRZ
contingent liabilities B IR 287,555 - 112,975 - 400,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
bR A A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IE= A=t — B R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 B A PR AR R BR
(continued) (%)

3.1 BAE BRI R (4E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c) EE&WBEBE (%)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors the capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio,
which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises total debt less
bank balances and cash) over total equity. Total debt represents bank and
other borrowings.

Total
Less than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
A8
Bl&w &
B4 —HTA ZEAE M
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
The Company AR T T T T T T T
2014 e oL EE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAST Ff Je 7 v Bk 2,789,829 = = 2,789,829
Creditors JREAT Bk 907 - - 907
Bank borrowings AT 53,074 1,592,889 = 1,645,963
Financial guarantees in WRAFNZ
contingent liabilities WHBsHE IR 1,859,682 25,500 253,535 2,138,717
2013 “E -
Amounts due to subsidiaries A JB 2 ) Rk 2,777,599 - - 2,777,599
Creditors JER IR 5,709 - - 5,709
Derivative financial itk s LR
instruments (net settled) (FHEH) 3,330 506 255 4,091
Derivative financial ATt s TH
instruments (gross settled) (HAZEEEE)
— outflow — W 42,588 - - 42,588
— inflow —mA (39,898) - - (39,898)
Bank borrowings AT 48,270 224,666 1,873,023 2,145,959
Financial guarantees in WRARAL
contingent liabilities B IR 2,575,603 - 112,975 2,688,578
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 B A B

AR [ B A 2 R S R B AN A Ay
MRS 2 RETT > TR I i A 2 A5 %
R A7 5 SR A S R [T

AL T A T O A T B A
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it R BB E ARG g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014

wE_Z

—PE=H =+ —H IR

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

3.2

Capital risk management (continued)
The net debt to equity ratio of the Group is as follows:

3 B AR B H AR B
(%)

3.2 EARREBEE B ()

ASER 2 AT LA A6 LA T

2014 2013
= UK k=

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T

Total debt AT 4,067,055 4,322,791
Bank balances and cash RATHE A MR 4 (1,200,835) (1,280,016)
Net debt B 2,866,220 3,042,775
Total equity AR 7,076,799 6,211,042
Net debt to equity ratio TS B 45 LL R 40.5% 49.0%

The net debt to equity ratio decreased from 49.0% as at 31 March 2013
to 40.5% as at 31 March 2014 mainly due to the settlement of bank and
other borrowings by operating funds and proceeds from the pre-sale of
properties under development.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to maintain
an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a required solvency
margin. For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s
relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency margin requirements as
set out by the relevant authorities in Hong Kong.

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair
values as at 31 March 2014 by level of inputs to valuation techniques to
measure fair values. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March 2014:

3 WL A B H AR S R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BWE_F—WE=H=+—H ILEE

(%)
3.3 o SufifhEr ()
TAREIIR E-MEZH =+ A%
O SRAEFH i 2 AR [ A R P

f&
The Group The Company
A%EH AR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% B8 =8 A % B B A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT #Wrx  #WTx  EWTx #WTx #%Tx  w%Tx @ Tx
Assets B
Financial assets at fair value /3 f2{EFI AR5
through profit or loss S S
— debt securities —fEH R 167,279 66,108 - 233,387 - - - -
— equity securities — A S 69,874 - - 69,874 32,966 - - 32,966
—exchange-traded funds ~ — X H ITEE LS 680 - - 680 680 = = 680
- mutual and hedge funds ~ — T 2 ¥ ¥4 1,404 - 15,387 16,791 - - 207 207
Derivative financial fiit B
instruments TE - 4,035 6,307 10,342 - 1,082 - 1,082
Available-for-sale ke
financial assets Mg
- equity securities — AR S 29,900 - 11,640 41,540 - - 3,880 3,880
— private funds — Ak - - 214,093 214,093 - - 214,093 214,093
— convertible preference  — AJ
shares B = = 200,408 200,408 = = = =
269,137 70,143 447,835 787,115 33,646 1,082 218,180 252,908
Liability fifd
Derivative financial i
instruments TE = 7,094) = 7,094) = = = =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured as at fair values at 31 March 2013:

3 BB P H AR R EOR
(#81)
3.3 ARl ()
THRBIIR B ===+ — A&
O ST 2 A T B B B

104

&
The Group The Company
48 A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R piid =8 M F— 8 F=H Rk
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000
BT WETr BETr WMT w%Te w¥Te wBTro BETx
Assets B
Financial assets at fair value /3 foE¥ AR5
through profit or loss SR 2 B
— debt securities —fEH R 97,407 76,724 - 174,131 - 15,512 - 15,512
— equity securities S 170,342 - - 170,342 31,756 - - 31,756
—exchange-traded funds ~ — R 5 FFEERS 606 - - 606 606 - - 606
- mutual and hedge funds  — F H K ¥4 - 41,709 526 42,035 - - 506 506
— foreign exchange — HME 45
linked notes Ly - - 18,380 18,380 - - - -
Derivatives financial T
instruments TH - 82 82,282 82,364 - 62 - 62
Available-for-sale Wtz
financial assets Mg
~ equity securities — s % - - 3,880 3,880 - - 3,880 3,880
— private funds —RAHEE - - 189,012 189,012 - - 189,012 189,012
268,355 118,515 294,080 680,950 32,362 15,574 193,398 241,334
Liability fifg
Derivatives financial fik B
investments IH - (5,921) (25,000) (30,921) - (5,870) - (5,870)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 B A PR AR R BR
(continued) (%)

3.3 o SufifhEr ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The Group uses quoted market prices for financial assets included in
level 1. The quoted price which is used, is the price within the bid-ask
spread that is most representative of the fair value.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves;

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period with
the resulting value discounted back to present value;

For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active market,
the Group establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, reference to net
asset value of investee and discounted cash flow analysis, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in
a reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses;
and

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 AR E B AS PE H B R BUR
(continued) (#4)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 2 e (G
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy of TR RN REZE R BB L
financial instruments for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013: H#EE - F—-NEL - —-=HF=H
= HIRAE R 5
The Group
g3
Mutual Equity  Foreign Convertible
and hedge linked  exchange Put Equity Private  preference
funds notes linkednotes  options  securities funds shares Others Total
HER i& HbiE WH
Hivke  BEER O BETE DIME  BkER REER BER i ek
HK$000 HK$000 HK$§000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$§000 HK§000 HK$'000
BT W% T W%To BT BRI BRI W%t % T BT
At 1 April 2013 RoE—-=FNA—H 526 - 18,380 50,975 3,880 189,012 - 6,307 269,080
Purchases/capital contributions A/ EASA 15,535 - - - 7,750 2,539 238,421 - 264,245
Receipt for capital returns W& A - - - - - (17,061) - - (17,061)
Fair value losses/(gains) LA 2 TR HERR
recognised in other ZAREER/
comprehensive income, net (fes) » 58 - - - - 10 39,603 (24,538) = 15,075
Fair value gains/(losses) MEGERZ ARE
recognised through profit i/ (E8) >
or loss, net T (152) - 1,623 5,685 - - - - 7,156
Fair value adjustments hedged % HISMNEA 41
by foreign currency HARE
forward contracts e - - - - - - (13,475) - (13,475)
Disposals ik (522) - (20003)  (81,660) - - - - (102,185)
Derecognition FI - - - 25,000 - - - - 25,000
At 31 March 2014 REF—PE
=H=1—H 15,387 - - - 11,640 214,093 200,408 6,307 447,835
At 1 April 2012 p-Z—"HNH—H 507 18,910 - 17,926 3,880 234,328 - - 27551
Purchases/capital contributions A/ EASA - - 18,600 - - 827 - - 19,427
Receipt for capital returns W EAR - - - - - (22,572) - - (22,572)
Fair value losses recognised T A A it e R
in other comprehensive P&/ SNL TR
income, net B - - - - - (15,462) - - (15,462)
Fair value gains/(losses) MBS
recognised through profit Al
or loss, net () > 56 2,090 (220) 33,049 - - - 6,307 41,282
Disposals i (37)  (21,000) - - - (8,109) - - (29,146)
At31 March 2013 S
“H=1—H 526 - 18,380 50,975 3,880 189,012 - 6,307 269,080
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 AR R B A PR H B R BUR
(continued) (#4)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A nfafhEr ()
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the TR E = HFLEHEE - F—ER
year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013: (continued) SR -=EFE=EA=Z1HIEEEZE
o (4)
The Company
AL H
Equity
Mutual and linked Equity Private
hedge funds notes securities funds Total
HER JBe 5%
Hop R Bl R bR JBe A i % REES okl
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T T BT T T

At 1 April 2013 h T —ZAENA—H 506 - 3,880 189,012 193,398
Purchases/capital contributions TN, EARTA - - - 2,539 2,539
Receipt for capital returns e [ & A - - - (17,061) (17,061)
Fair value losses recognised oAb 2 T 4R HERR

in other comprehensive 20 fuldkEE

income, net e = = = 39,603 39,603
Fair value gains recognised TR B A R

through profit or loss, net NE R A 200 = = - 200
Disposals i (499) = = = (499)
At 31 March 2014 A E 4R

“H=+—H 207 — 3,880 214,093 218,180

At 1 April 2012 W F— A —H 466 8,579 3,880 229,689 242,614
Purchases/capital contributions WA EARBA - - - 827 827
Receipt for capital returns i 8] G A - - - (22,572) (22,572)
Fair value losses recognised A 2 T i £ T R

in other comprehensive ZARMEER

income, net e - - - (10,823) (10,823)
Fair value gains recognised IRt R

through profit or loss, net AL ETIRRE Y 55 1,421 - - 1,476
Disposals ik (15) (10,000) - (8,109) (18,124)
At 31 March 2013 R T =4

“H=+—H 506 = 3,880 189,012 193,398
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

108

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Fair values of investment properties and staff quarters

The valuations of investment properties and staff quarters held directly
by the Group are made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). They are performed in
accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published
by HKIS. The valuations are reviewed annually by qualified valuers
by considering the information from a variety of sources including (i)
current prices in an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active market, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary
income potential based on market conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results and a
set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its tenancy and
cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in light of current market
conditions including open market rents, appropriate capitalisation rates
and reversionary income potential. For the year ended 31 March 2014,
discount rate in the range of 4% to 6% (2013: 4% to 6%) were used in
the discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value also reflects on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

As at 31 March 2014, if the market values of investment properties and
staff quarters had been 10% (2013: 10%) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the carrying values of the Group’s investment
properties and staff quarters would have been HK$364,687,000
and HK$44,666,000 (2013: HK$340,727,000 and nil) higher/lower
respectively.

(b) Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on the higher of their fair values
less costs to sell and value in use, taking into account the latest market
information and past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

4 BASEEH R BRI B

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued) (#4)

(c) Impairment assessment for goodwill and other intangible (c) T o At SR B & AL A
assets
The Group tests whether goodwill and other intangible assets have suffered FRAB S BB T R B 3 2(a) Tl 2 € 5t
any impairment in accordance with accounting policies stated in note 2(aa) B > A B [ il pa R oAt A
to the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable amounts of CGUs & BT AT Bl (B AT Mt o Bl s A W
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations or their fair values A7 22 ] g [ < B T AT v (B R AR
less cost to sell, whichever are higher, and both bases require the Group to SR FUE TR B B A (AT 3 2
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from CGUs and a suitable UE) B E > W EAEEL IR e E
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future A A TEASR AR Bl i i o 0 DA
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The BRI E B - MEBRKRHE SR E
Group expects that any reasonable change in the key assumptions on which D TATEM o MR EE A R B R I o A
the recoverable amounts are based would not cause the carrying amounts A5 B T AT i e A 2 T SR AT AT
of goodwill and other intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts. £ T A8 ) 516 AS B S5 R A A
Please refer to notes 16, 17 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements JEE 2 W T (R RE AR L vl i m] &2 o BRI
for details. ZREE A B IR EM 16~ 17 %38 °

(d) Useful lives of other intangible assets (d) Hfth e & g 2 vl i A0
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and AR o) 2 T s A AT A A E A
consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its other intangible FERT (R A HA I 52 AL 7 o A BB R (A
assets. These estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual ) o RZAEANFH IR AT S 2 ATk
useful lives of comparable intangible assets in related industries. Actual NI o 2 B T ol T AR 2 R AR A
economic life may vary from estimated useful life. Periodic review could BRVE o B BRAQ AR 1 W] AR BRLA ST
result in a change in amortisable lives and consequently increase or YA A SR o U o ] T A A
decrease in amortisation expenses in future periods. Please refer to note HA o A T B m D A A A T BB S
17 to the consolidated financial statements for details. o FER 2 AR S I B EGR M AR 17 -

(e) Impairment assessment for the Group’s investments in (e) AEFRBEEAFTMEEBELEZH
associates and joint ventures B IAE R A
Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications of B (0 TR (R R A A AR
impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures BE AT AR E BB AT
primarily based on value-in-use calculations. FTEBR AR
In determining the value in use, management assesses the present value AT AE (8 B (ELIRY - 48 2P ST A TR A 4R
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their businesses. SRS E A 2 AL FE R AR B i BUH -
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these future cash it A% 2R 3L 45 U 85 R U B 3R I 1 L A
flows and discount rate. Management estimates the future cash flows FIAIHE o B LR — i RO MRk (1] n
based on certain assumptions, such as revenue growth. AR st R AR 2 B i o

(f) Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments (O VI Z BB WA R A

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an
equity available-for-sale investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the
fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health
of and short-term business outlook for the investee and historical price
volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair values of available-for-sale investments
below cost are considered significant or prolonged, an additional loss
of HK$28,051,000 (2013: HK$13,347,000) would be incurred in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014, being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity on such available-for-sale investments to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

110

(continued)

(g)

Fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Net realisable value of properties under development and
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and properties
for sale to net realisable value based on assessment of the realisability
of properties under development and properties for sale which takes
into account cost to completion based on past experience and net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. If there is an increase in
cost to completion or a decrease in net sales value, the net realisable
value will decrease which may result in writing down properties under
development and properties for sale to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value of properties under
development and properties for sale is adjusted in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the basis
of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing modeling and
other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities are
affected by assessed net loss ratio. As at 31 March 2014, assessed net loss
ratio was 74% (2013: 76%). Differences resulting from reassessment of
insurance liabilities are recognised in subsequent consolidated financial
statements. The Group continually reviews the estimates and makes
adjustments as necessary, but actual results could differ from what is
envisioned when these estimates are made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

()

(k)

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as stated
in note 2(n), the Group uses the percentage of completion method to
determine the appropriate revenue to be recognised in a given period.
The stage of completion is measured by total amount of work done
certified by customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group needs
to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction contract, which
is determined based on the estimated total construction contract costs
and total construction contract sum, including variation orders and
claims. If the actual gross profit margin of construction contract differs
from the management’s estimates, the construction contract profit to be
recognised in the following years will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2014, deferred tax asset of HK$44,553,000 (2013:
HK$22,023,000) in relation to unused tax losses had been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual taxable future profits generated are more or
less than expected, additional deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associates and joint ventures, is subject to
income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

bk 1 B 2 A M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
WE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

4 BASEEH R BRI B
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()

(k)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-F-MNE=A=+—HILFE

5 Revenue

5 WA
2014 2013
= UK k=
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T
Revenue represents amounts received AT B AN HTHZ
and receivable from: CL i S MW K
Construction and installation contracts HERLHEEH 1,471,011 1,755,751
Sale of information technology equipment, AR R~ VRHE R
motor vehicles and others HoAh > g8 766,653 803,188
Food and beverage B 572,114 589,443
Senior housing operations YW H AR 473,588 247,556
Insurance premium 15 b 27 275,378 156,916
Warehouse and logistics operations B S 173,316 172,513
Provision of maintenance and property RO ) 2
management AR % 150,793 140,366
Sales and leasing of properties Y RS 141,632 224,650
Hotel operations I 40,738 40,286
Dividend income from investments KA REZ BRI 32,360 44,931
Interest income from investments K EREZ R B 10,439 8,743
Leasing of vehicles and equipment VRHL i & 5,359 4,915
Total revenue (note 37) BT A (BFEE37) 4,113,381 4,189,258
6 Other Income, Net 6 HAuMA > FH
2014 2013
- Lk TE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
i 2 aPTH T
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value through A MBS AR 45 R B
profit or loss BRI (EE)
— held-for-trading —FHEEEAE 22,861 39,437
— designated upon initial recognition — AW A TR s (310) 3,066
Gain on derivative financial instruments [iA B TR 2 ik ds 14,161 35,587
Other investment income HoAh BB A 6,466 -
Commission income el A 9,264 5,325
Management fee income from associates KEBEAF RGEREZ
and joint ventures (note 44) IR (Pl 3T 44) 33,448 30,304
Sales and marketing services income from an A — [ 7 2 85 KTy
associate (note 44) e MRS WA (B 5E 44) 23,538 22,224
Others HoAt 8,845 11,253
118,273 147,196
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

Other Gains, Net 7 HAptbWds - FH
2014 2013
SIS —F =
HKS$°000 HK$°000
i3 T WET o
Increase in fair value of investment properties ERQALUIE PNy IRy
(note 14) (K5E14) 201,510 670,113
Loss on disposal of investment properties R G R = (300)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment Y2 - FiE Kl 2 d i 9,010 157
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries S BB A ) e (787) (6,169)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 8 ] fit 8 2 # & Ak 25 42 289
Impairment loss on property, plant and W~ R MR 2 W E R
equipment (note 15) (B3E15) = (4,516)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 16) 2 WE TR (it 16) = (6,805)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments ] i Hi 5 2 38 ¥ 1 3ol (5 18 (10,532) (4,639)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate  FE Uz — ] 45 28 W) B 3K 2 Ik (1 16 (908) (2,316)
Impairment loss on amount due from a joint venture fEIi— ] A48 4 2L MR 3K 2 W (B 5 18 (14,087) -
Impairment loss on trade and other debtors B ) B HAh R IR R 2 B (B 1R (2,689) (3,772)
Impairment loss written back/(recognised) 43, (R ) B AR B2 kI 2
on retention receivables IE 1R 25 (32,606)
Exchange (loss)/gain FE 38, (JE518) i (6,310) 7,603
175,274 617,039
Finance Costs, Net 8 WMEEHMH > B#H
2014 2013
e S 1B 2 TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and SRATIE S IR LA N A B
bank and other borrowings wholly repayable i 5 2 $AT S HoAth A Y
within five years FLE 132,378 93,845
Interest expenses on bank and other borrowings DR TUAF TN 2 SRR 2 84T I
not wholly repayable within five years HoA A& R S 1,788 -
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties W R
under development (note) S (MEE) (17,154) (19,442)
117,012 74,403
Less: Interest income from bank deposits W ERATAE R A A (14,355) (14,606)
102,657 59,797

Note:

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development of
properties was between 5.9% and 7.0% per annum during the year (2013: 5.9% and

7.8%).

BFGE

ARAEFE > R AR S A R 1R S e 2 A
K EAILAERA T 5.9% 5 7.0% (& —=4F 1 5.9%
% 7.8%) ©

HIEBREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

9

114

Profit Before Taxation 9 BRBEHG A
2014 2013
R TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at A A1 345 1) E 0B
after charging the following: NAHEH ¢
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LUE RN Y& &P
(note 15) (KfF5E15) 99,673 86,204
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work W BEAH IR &% (1,583) (1,772)
98,090 84,432
Staff costs (note a) B TR (Mtska) 977,788 854,044
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work W ES A IR &5 (113,000) (116,275)
864,788 737,769
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of AEMDFEA 2 SEMEER
— premises (note b) — M (EED) 93,050 92,366
— equipment — ikt 2,950 1,234
96,000 93,600
Auditors’ remuneration A% SR P 4 11,334 10,155
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A AR B HOE B - 26
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 17) ,ﬁ\:ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ/ ﬁ?ﬁfifﬁ ff5E17) 7,077 5,497
Write down of inventories to net realisable value, net M {7 & & Al S I IF(H - FFE 974 7,711
Write down of properties for sale to net MH{%E%¥§T FBLIE(H >
realisable value, net ez - 199
Acquisition-related expenses WS A ) = AL 8,726 35,153
and crediting the following: AEk A NINEE -
Gross rental income of HK$138,655,000 Y2 A A U5 ¥ 138,655,000 TG
(2013: HK$132,037,000) from properties less (CF—=4F il 132 037,00071:)
direct operating expenses (note c) P PR S (B 5T ©) 128,865 121,136

Notes:

(a) Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 39 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Included in staff costs are amounts of HK$794,000 (2013: HK$268,000) in respect
of termination benefits made to staff and HK$34,750,000 (2013: HK$33,309,000) in
respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net of

forfeited contributions.

(b) Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are
contingent rentals of HK$2,551,000 (2013: HK$1,836,000).

(¢) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$2,895,000 (2013: HK$1,663,000)
less outgoings of HK$953,000 (2013: HK$1,097,000) from joint operation.
Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$131,910,000 (2013:
HK$125,485,000) derived from investment properties less direct operating

expenses of HK$8,153,000 (2013: HK$8,931,000).
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10 Income Tax Expenses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

bk 7 B 2 A P
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

10 Fif3 iz i

2014 2013
e 11K s
HKS$’000 HK$’000
#H T T T
Current tax A AR JERLIH
Hong Kong T 51,959 61,565
Mainland China and overseas A ] Ay b K T AR 33,089 23,600
Under-provision in prior years R R A A N 2 92 7,098
85,140 92,263
Deferred tax R ST T
Origination and reversal of temporary TR 2 B 2 A e [l
differences (note 36) (Pt 5t 36) (870) 4,844
84,270 97,107

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits. Taxation on Mainland China and overseas profits

has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates

of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

B s RSB AG w1 BB s AR B 16.5%
(& — =4 1 16.5%) 5HH o 1 b K it ok
i R AR )5 4% AF TR Al T ME SRR T ) A4 A 4 ]
B ER TR B R 2 BUTRURE . -

TR SE B T 2 WA A i 5 TV i MY 5 36 T
5 o

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before S5 U A 3R A BR B I T 1) BRAS A JEE T A5 BE S
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: HZ B
2014 2013
—Pg4g —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
i1 T T oo
Profit before taxation 48 miT v A 610,451 1,180,393
Adjusted for: Bk
Share of results of associates BT A B 5 N T B4 (79,376) (96,583)
Share of results of joint ventures Frih A2 9,033 18,611
540,108 1,102,421
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% }'Eﬂiitﬁﬁgﬁﬁi 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (B — =4 1 16.5%) 7HHE 2 BiIE 89,118 181,900
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries e HoAth j({‘r’sﬁ% Ezé’s&z i Jeg 2
operating in other jurisdictions IR fifi FiAS ] ot 2R 22 i 22 (3,294) (7,568)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN AT HEFD S H 2 A T s e 17,015 22,738
Tax effect of non-taxable income DEIE RERLI A 2 B T A 2 (49,692) (129,494)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KT HERRBLGS s 18 2 BLIE R 2 29,356 25,225
Tax effect of the deductible temporary difference T Tl ER AT 0 I 2 L
not recognised FTE s 6,151 1,241
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and B AR 1 R T R 2 B s R
other deductible temporary difference HAth T Fri 2 W R 2 R
not previously recognised i T 2 (4,093) (8,432)
Under-provision in prior years AR A L 92 7,098
Others FAt (383) 4,399
Income tax expenses for the year A TR 84,270 97,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

11 Earnings Per Share 11 R F
(a) Basic (a) FEAR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable B LA G ] T A AR 2 ) IERE RS AT A
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of JRE A i 1 B DA AR AT i 8 A7 5 A 2
ordinary shares in issue during the year. HEE G
2014 2013
e S 1B 2 —ER =4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T
Profit attributable to equity holders AL FRHERE AN
of the Company JRE A 785 1] 470,369 1,011,923
2014 2013
B4 SR AR
Weighted average number of ordinary B B4 7 30 20 e 2 - 2
shares in issue (’000 shares) (F-B%) 285,102 278,140
Basic earnings per share (HK$) B I A B A (W) 1.65 3.64
(b) Diluted (b) #W
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted g B 2 ) U 9 3 R R R AT A i
average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all JORE - 47 S A A0 T A T A 5
dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2014, an associate TR FH LA o A —F—IFE=H
of the Group had potential ordinary shares which were issuable upon = H o REE - HBE A A
exercise of share option granted. There was no potential dilutive effect I > BZIR A ST 2 W IR HE AT
from such share option during the year. As at 31 March 2013, the Group IR o] T 44T 2 ey o AR 1ol gAY
did not have any dilutive equity instruments. RESI e 7 AR VB AR R R o Y — =

FEZA =B AR A TR
W A TH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fof o B 5 e M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

Dividends 12 B
2014 2013
s —z-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T

Interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2013: HK$0.20) TR Hh 0 8 S A A s 0.20 T
per share paid (CB—=4F #0020 78) 58,038 55,513

Final dividend of HK$0.65 (2013: HK$0.65) ﬁ%*%%@%%%WO@ﬁ
per share proposed TFE A ¥ 0.6500) 190,368 182,901
248,406 238,414
Of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2014, HK$36,873,000 BEZLX—ME=A = T—HILFERNDIK

and HK$121,049,000 were paid in form of shares under the Company’s
scrip dividend schemes in respect of the interim dividend for the year ended
31 March 2014 and the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013
respectively. Of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2013,
HK$40,751,000 was paid in form of shares under the Company’s scrip
dividend scheme in respect of the interim dividend for the year ended 31
March 2013.

A final dividend of HK$0.65 per share totalling HK$190,368,000, with an
option to receive shares of the Company, has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31 March 2015.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company was HK$313,772,000 (2013: HK$6,883,000).

13

T2 BB EE - F—NE=H=+—
HIFFEEZ B R s —F— =4 =5
Z+—HIEEEZ R MBEE R > Hp
36,873,000 7T M 5 ¥ 121,049,000 7T M2 5 A< 24
AL LA A B 5T B4 B LA 4y S AT o B
—EAES A S HIREE IR 2 R
FoEE —EF -SSR
Z R > H A 40,751,000 TCARYE A
28 AR S5 13 DU A S A »

E$Lm0ﬁé§*%ﬁﬁxgﬁﬁx%’ﬁ%‘0 657G > At

#575190,368,0007C > M B SRR A 2 7
Py 2 EF > HZE A R 3 B 2 e OB AR R
R o A FESMERE A
A=+ HIRFEERE R R o

A v B E e AN RE A R R

RGN F) BRERE A A REAG 35 ] b s 313,772,000
JLERIARAFMH#EF (T — =4 5
5 6,883,000 ) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

14 Investment Properties

14 &EWE

The Group AR M
2014 2013
it 12 R4
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T
At beginning of the year ) 3,407,266 2,679,689
Exchange realignment [ffE 50, 34 % (3,142) 8,392
Additions wHE = 15,533
Disposals e = (8,388)
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment WAYZE -~ R B S AT
and prepaid lease payments FHE IR 41,239 41,927
Increase in fair value (note 7) 8 FRAE RN (B EE 7) 201,510 670,113
At end of the year R 3,646,873 3,407,266

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying values are analysed as

A 2 B AR E 2 AT AT

follows:
2014 2013
RN SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Hong Kong e
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FIAFEA) (2R +45) 2,311,562 2,132,748
Mainland China and overseas r I A R v A
Freehold TR EHE 533,360 518,825
On long-term leases (over 50 years) EWHA (LML) 736,947 693,320
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) IR A (2 ) 65,004 62,373
3,646,873 3,407,266
Notes: BRFGE
(a) The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland (a)  ASEEAAEE « R RN g 2 BB Y
China and overseas as at 31 March 2014 had been arrived at on the basis of H_FE—WE=H =+ —H 28 AETIRE
valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited or DTZ e B T R AT AT BR S ) sl R AT A BR A
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, which are independent firms of qualified valuers F (BCEE 2 B S A5 A AR AT - SR A B
having appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties L AT HEAT W) A 2 5 78 A S RSB
in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation FOEAT A 2 R ME TG o RN (T F
Standards on Properties published by HKIS, is arrived at with reference to market U0 R O A 2 e T ) A
evidence of transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the net income (EME RN C 2 B3 LR ¥ 2 22 5 15
allowing for reversionary potential. For all investment properties, their current use i BRI TEAE M B BCE R o T %
equates to the highest and best use. WM E o A A A T
W
(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of HK$38,333,000 (b) LA s 2 BB 3 (BRI A S 1 o A A v A0

(2013: HK$33,667,000) represented the Group’s share of interest in joint operation.

(c) Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value of
HK$2,099,550,000 (2013: HK$2,068,734,000) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 Investment Properties (continued)
The Group (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(d) Valuation of investment properties

The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy of

investment properties for the year ended 31 March 2014:

fof o B 5 e M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

14 BEME @)
AL (45)

(d)

(%)

fild 7 E AN

D IR APV EE S NE < 7/E S -
FWEZH =+ — IR )

Commercial properties Residential properties Industrial properties Total
[LE27ES i 2 /ES B 2/ES At
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Overseas  Hong Kong China  Hong Kong Overseas
B PEM o FiE ER ik s
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EWTT #WT #WTx #WTx ®WTx wWTx #WTe #W T
At 1 April 2013 BoF—=FNA—H 979,407 44,551 5,190 31,780 671,382 1,121,561 553,395 3,407,266
Exchange realignment I 52, 78 8 - 290 (345) - 5,048 - (8,135) (3,142)
Transfer from properties, EAWE - BKER
plant and equipment Bl 32,045 - - - - 9,194 - 41,239
Increase in fair value (note 7) AP fEEn (i aE7) 69,723 1,749 560 1,690 35,642 66,162 25,984 201,510
At 31 March 2014 ACE-E=A=1—H 0 1,081,175 46,590 5,405 33,470 712,072 1,196,917 571,244 3,646,873

The Group includes a team that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the senior management and valuers at least once every six months, in line

with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group:

verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year
valuation reports; and

holds discussions with the independent valuers.

Fair values of commercial, residential and industrial properties in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas are generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and wherever appropriate, by direct comparison method.
Income capitalisation method is based on the capitalisation of the net income
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market rents
adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. Direct comparison method is based
on comparing the property to be valued directly with other comparable properties,
which have recently transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real
estate properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

AN S L 455 i D o S A PR S A B Y
PP (B PR > L% PR e 1o s A P
Pty o AU LG 2 D g N T (AR SR
A B2 F— B0 B A A A (AR
B o

TRA AR > AL

% B S A (R R 0 T A R K A
%

FEAG P 24 (B EAF A (A LR
MsEE) 5 K

LA ST R AN RS T R o

U B ML B AN S R R T
Z Sl — R iR AL S CAnsi ) B
T WESERT R o R B AR TR i
PR < AL IS A TR A
ST LVEARAL » AL A T i
522 5 Z X AT R A R B 2 BR R
SR B A o AEAG(E P PR T 2 BT T
FEL 4 T AR 52 4 3 M HA W] L 2 2 0
BRI UL 5 o P4k POk T A A
(B 2 W) S B IRH0T RG 38 oy 2 HoA T {4 L e 2R
B o SR - SR Y 2 2Rk
B B R R T S (AR PR AR A E
B TR E T o

FEAETT R A4 LG 52 )
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

14 Investment Properties (continued)
The Group (continued)

Notes: (continued)

120

(d)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine fair values

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on recent lettings for Hong Kong and
Mainland China investment properties, within the subject properties and other

comparable properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair values.

As at 31 March 2014, the prevailing market rents from HK$20 to HK$21 per
square feet (“sq. ft.”) per month and HK$112 to HK$819 per square meter (“sq.
m.”) per month were used in the income capitalisation method for majority
of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively. For
residential properties in Mainland China and industrial properties in Hong Kong,
the prevailing market rents of HK$108 to HK$195 per sq. m. per month and HK$9
to HK$12 per sq. ft. per month were used respectively.

Capitalisation rates are estimated by valuers based on the risk profile of the
investment properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower the fair values.
As at 31 March 2014, capitalisation rates of 3.5% and 5.5% to 6.0% were used in
the income capitalisation method for commercial properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China respectively. For residential properties in Mainland China and
industrial properties in Hong Kong, the capitalisation rates of 2.0% to 6.5% and

5.0% to 5.8% were used respectively.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A W B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment 15 Y3k ~ Wm Kkt
The Group AR M
Furniture,
fixtures,
Other properties for own use Plant, office
i E R machinery equipment
Cold storage Hotel Other Staff and and motor
warehouse properties properties quarters equipment vehicles Total
f&f - %8
i BG RAERR
RHEN UIES Hiwink RIf& Rk R A

HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
(L SPTINNE 1 S ST 5 STRNNS L & DA -1 STRNNNN S OTHN il & B

(note c)
(Hto)
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 RZZE—-ZFNH—H 239,038 161,455 981,094 63,263 90,092 308,930 1,843,872
Exchange realignment [EE 5 3 - (2,779) (1,401) - 768 951 (2,461)
Acquisition of senior housing business ol T b & %0
(note 45(b)(i)) (B EE45(b) 1)) - - 327,441 - - 43,549 370,990
Additions NE - 1,620 18,601 - 25,312 49,933 95,466
Disposals hik - - - - (11,080) (12,950) (24,030)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEE AT - - - - (3,267) (7,551) (10,818)
Transfer to investment properties LLESI§LIE S - - (10,902) - - (1,617) (12,519)
At31 March 2013 e S A o el 239,038 160,296 1,314,833 63,263 101,825 381,245 2,260,500
Exchange realignment [ S - (11,494) (8,458) - (2,584) (5,992) (28,528)
Acquisition of senior housing business B b & 5
(note 45(b)(i)) (FiHE45(b) (1)) - - 55,335 - - 6,510 61,845
Additions NE - 216 16,894 - 6,561 41,902 65,573
Disposals e - = (3,800) = (13,098) (22,676) (39,574)
Transfer to investment properties BERENE - - (10,546) - - - (10,546)
Increase in fair value ML (S = = = 383,397 = = 383,397
At 31 March 2014 REF—-NWEZR=1—H 239,038 149,018 1,364,258 446,660 92,704 400,989 2,692,667
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BT R
At 1 April 2012 RZF—-Z4ENA-H 62,270 62,673 139,721 30,653 45,070 174,193 514,580
Exchange realignment i - (906) (670) - 702 1,318 444
Charged for the year (note 9) EEATE (it 9) 6,125 2,574 24,753 2,430 12,896 37,426 86,04
Impairment loss (note 7) BIEER (H:7) - - - - - 4516 4516
Disposals HE - - - - (9,701) (8,435) (18,136)
Disposal of subsidiaries B A - - - - (885) (2,367) (3,252)
Transfer to investment properties L EY/§ L IE - - (2,283) - - (462) (2,745)
At 31 March 2013 p R EZRE A 68,395 64,341 161,521 33,083 48,082 206,189 581,611
Exchange realignment I LA - (3,901) (2,485) - (2,146) (4,446) (12,978)
Charged for the year (note 9) SRR (H9) 6,125 2373 31,519 2,430 12,231 44,995 99,673
Disposals HE - - (558) - (11,977) (19,267) (31,802)
Transfer to investment properties LEY§-L/E - - (2,847) - - - (2,847)
Increase in fair value NS = = = (35,513) = = (35,513)
At31 March 2014 pF-TEZR=+—A 74,520 62,813 187,150 - 46,190 207471 598,144
Carrying value JR
At 31 March 2014 RoE-NE=A=+—H 164,518 86,205 1,177,108 446,660 46,514 173,518 2,094,523
At31 March 2013 BoF-ZEZA=4A 170,643 95,955 1,153,312 30,180 53,743 175,036 1,678,889

HEEREBERAT 15)
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foi T s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-Z

—PE=H =+ —H IR

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

15 Y3k ~ Wm Kkl (450

The Group (continued) AL (4H)
Notes: BitiE -
(a) The carrying values of properties comprise: (a) W MR DS -
2014 2013
. S K4S R =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Freehold land and buildings thereon KK ZERE L S A L b M 776,112 735,957
Leasehold land and buildings thereon FHE b R @ e b 2 M 1,098,379 714,133
1,874,491 1,450,090
(b) Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a total carrying (b)  BRTAT AL (A 1,364,178,000 JC ( & — =4« i
value of HK$1,364,178,000 (2013: HK$930,169,000) for the purpose of securing # 930,169,000 7C) Z W2 ~ BB KR RS
banking facilities granted to the Group. 1 fERIRTAERBITEEZER -
(c) Revaluation of staff quarters (c) HEMBETIESE

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had measured the staff quarters under the
revaluation model. The fair values of the staff quarters as at 31 March 2014 had
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank
Petty Limited, which is an independent firm of qualified valuers having appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on
Properties published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market evidence of
transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the net income allowing for
reversionary potential.

Fair values of staff quarters are generally derived using the direct comparison
method. Direct comparison method is based on comparing the property to be
valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate
adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that may
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under consideration.

If the staff quarters were measured under the cost model, the carrying value would
be as follows:

REF-EEZA=+—H > AEMCEEW
BAFRATHEE - B THEER T g
A =4 — 2 A e fE TR A S BIRT AT A4 R
ox ) (B2 w2 57 45 SRS A B AT > A
I [ AT AT ) S A (B 2 0 A S R
T AT 2 A 2 SR E AT 1y o R (B )8
SEA B B A T 2 A v T R R e
S E MR O 2 M LR 25
Pt SARIEEE A R RTH -

B LA & 2 8 fofE— bR T Bk L i w545
Hy o FHR L T ST M B Al (E 2 ) SRR
38 Gy 2 H Al A He A S A T L o SR
1o BT A S 2 Z ARV - 5 R
RIS AR AT E PR R - AR
R

R AR AR A T B A > R BR T (K
BUTE -

2014 2013
R4 e S

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T

Cost %S 63,263 63,263
Accumulated depreciation 25T (35,513) (33,083)
Carrying value M T {E 27,750 30,180

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

16 Goodwill 16 F#
The Group AR M
2014 2013
—Z2 e
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T BT T
At beginning of the year ) 681,743 129,696
Acquisition of senior housing business W B 22 2 B i S
(note 45(b)(i)) (Pt 5% 45(b) (1)) = 558,852
Impairment loss (note 7) WAE R (M 7) = (6,805)
At end of the year R 681,743 681,743
Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 38 to T8 2 LML AT A0 G 15 0 8 I 5 U5 ik 3R
the consolidated financial statements. FE38 °
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foi T s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
e

17 Other Intangible Assets

—PE=H =+ —H IR

oAt 42 T2 2

The Group ZIK 4L
Cold
Roads, storage and
drainage public  Trademarks
and bonded of
waterworks warehouse restaurant Favourable
license licenses and bar leases Others Total
B B R BRI
Bok#%  ARREHE R
TR B Z ik HARE Hit bk
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT T BT T
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 AR H—H 26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 9,548 74,713
Exchange realignment [ 523 % - - - - (275) (275)
At 31 March 2013 “E-ZHE=A=1-H 26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 9,273 74,438
Exchange realignment Eﬁﬁ.uﬂ B = = — — 478 478
Acquisition of senior housing WU 2 b & T
business (note 45(b)(i)) (BEE45(b) (i) - - - - 5,193 5,193
At31 March 2014 AE-TE=A = 26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 14,944 80,109
Accumulated amortisation ZH R B
and impairment
At 1 April 2012 WoZE—"HFNA—H 26,534 3,000 3,129 3,705 4,702 41,070
Exchange realignment i b, 3 4 - - - - (152) (152)
Charged for the year (note 9) AE RS (M3 9) - - 1,584 2,964 949 5,497
At31 March 2013 REF— A=A A 26,534 3,000 4713 6,669 5,499 46,415
Exchange realignment I 3¢, 7 %% = = - - 418 418
Charged for the year (note 9) SEFEHESY (Fs9) - - 1,585 2,964 2,528 7,077
At 31 March 2014 R —-NE=H=+—H 26,534 3,000 6,298 9,633 8,445 53,910
Carrying value Eﬁm{ﬁ
At 31 March 2014 = =1—H - - 17,478 2,222 6,499 26,199
At 31 March 2013 o S - - 19,063 5,186 3,774 28,023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Intangible Assets (continued)

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks license
(“License”)) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
following estimated useful lives or license period:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years
Trademarks of restaurant and bar 15 years
Favourable leases 4 years
Lease-in-place 3 years

The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of this License is at minimal
cost and the Group would renew this License continuously. This License is
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life and will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite
upon reassessment of its useful life annually by the management of the Group.
Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The trademarks of restaurant and bar and favourable leases were purchased as
part of business combinations in prior years. The trademarks and favourable
leases are considered by the management of the Group as having finite lives
of 15 years and 4 years respectively. These intangible assets will be tested
for impairment whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The lease-in-place of senior housing business was purchased as part of
business combination for the year ended 31 March 2014. The lease-in-place
is considered by the management of the Group as having finite lives of 3
years. The lease-in-place will be tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of impairment testing are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

17

fof o B 5 e M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

L Ath 406 T 8 7 (at)

FAET VA (BB ~ S BOK B T AR I
(THER D) S8 TOLA LA R4 91 A8t P G 4
MRS MR 5 1 2 S T 8

VAT R % TR AR T i R 4
R R TR 2 T A AR
A FIF Pu4E
B R AR

EHRRS o TR > R EM
TR 1 S R A BT ST o A A PO L R

Bl o T A AR SR R LR L AT P A 0 A
AR REAR AR B T R AR A IR
1k o L A5 4F B AE H 3R A AT A I B G
HEAT SR R o 7 B (R M Bl R A
B AHS R M T 38 o

R BT 2 T AR LA B A R B DLAE AR
BEAR By B A iiF < — TR M o ASHE [
L 25y MM A R A L B 2 A B
SEHA I B A AR RPU AR o e AE M BT
T HH BUAT AT AE (B P SR AT S WA o AT
B (L Tl RE IR O A 15 B S SRR M 38

LB S B E T A
S = AR AR 2 2 O — AR T
WA o AL [ T R A BUAE AR B 2 AT BT
B AR = 4% o BUF AL DI th BLAT 7T fiE
PR SR AT B T o A7 B E W2
FEBHOA AR A A5 AR M 5 38

Interests in Subsidiaries 18 P Adi Bt & 2 Wl 2 M #5
The Company A2 H]
2014 2013
ZEB g ZER A
HK$’000 HK$’000
i SN T oo
Non-current: FEWE -
Investment cost less impairment P& A W 955,231 955,231
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE s o} J 2 ) B K 2,239,072 2,234,354
3,194,303 3,189,585
Current: WE -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST BF B 2 ) AR K 2,451,445 2,480,524
Amounts due to subsidiaries TEEAST 6 J28 2 ) J K 2,789,829 2,777,599

HIEREBHERA R
—E—-OER
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

18 Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
The Company (continued)
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 were set
out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets are unsecured,
interest-free and considered equity in nature.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets/liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; except for a sum
of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling HK$276,374,000 (2013:
HK$313,401,000) which were interest bearing at prime rate of The Hong Kong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“Prime Rate”) or Prime Rate
plus 3.0% or Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 2.4% (2013:
Prime Rate or Prime Rate plus 3.0% or HIBOR plus 2.4%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current
assets/liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated
in the following currencies:

18 P B I8 23wl Z i 4 (40

A ()
e L e e N = P ot 3y - /A
ZREIB R AR A B IR M T 46 -

SMRR R VY A 2 SR 2 R
HEH S CI R 2 B A L o

BRI R B A TR
SO IR - G S R R R > ME M i B
J& N FI MR A L W 276,374,000 0 (& — =
4E 313,401,000 TC) 2y 1 HE L i IE A AR
1T PR T 2 e s R 2 ([ B BRI R ) 5§
o PR EE R 3R 001 3,00 B S SR AT ) 26 4R R ([
HEERATIRI ZESR B ) Jn2.4% (& —=4F 5@
I Rl b {8 B RN 3,006 5 vk $R AT ] 2
PR 2.4%) 5 -

TG ARIR T 2 A AT B 2
HRAR Z MR T B SRR AR

JEE g B J 2 R K 2 MR T B TS L R B B
B

2014 2013
it 2 11 2 CE AR

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T

Canadian dollar Y N 191,018 208,402
Hong Kong dollar i 4,118,190 4,181,610
Renminbi N 231,434 184,877
Singapore dollar Hrmg oo 119,264 126,121
Others HoAtb 30,611 13,868

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to subsidiaries are denominated in
the following currencies:

W 2 7 B 3 2 M T A7 B F 91 5
AL

2014 2013
b S I11 i R

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T

Euro ek 2 60,399 56,105
Hong Kong dollar fietias 2,371,446 2,432,743
Macau Pataca ki 357,984 286,677
US dollar FEIT = 2,074

The Directors of the Company were of the view that as at 31 March 2014, there
was no individual subsidiary that had non-controlling interests that were
material to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Interests in Associates

bk 1 B 2 A P
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

19 Feflilgi e 2 vl Z f 4k

The Group The Company
A4 A w]
2014 2013 2014 2013
SEoWE CE-SE B OWE %S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

W T T

T T oo

Non-current: FEw sy
Interests in associates, R =/ NI ET
including goodwill (EEraE

Amounts due from associates (note b)  JEIEH S/ mllEK (M3 b)

Current: WE

Amounts due from associates (note b)  JEUS I 45/ FIIEZ (M b)

Amount due to an associate

(note b) (ft&ED)

The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year are

JREASH— R 5 2 R ARk

507,344 560,250 89,594 89,594
242,467 413,264 - -

749,811 973,514 89,594 89,594

318,122 33,830 15,057 38,083

29,372 — — —

AR AR N BT AL B A ) 2 R i S T 2

analysed as follows: Brimr -
2014 2013
ZE PR ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
At beginning of the year HEH] 560,250 539,152
Exchange realignment [TFE 5, 37 % (725) 2,545
Additions N 78,735 4
Share of results T Ak 24 79,376 96,583
Share of other comprehensive income JUT A FL At 2 TR AR 3,865 -
Dividends % & (214,157) (78,034)
At end of the year R 507,344 560,250
Notes: Fff =

(a) Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2014 were set out in

note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free, except for the
Group’s balance of HK$144,620,000 (2013: HK$73,652,000) which bears interest at

rates mutually agreed between relevant parties.

Amounts due from associates of the Group under non-current assets are considered
equity in nature while amounts due from/to associates under current assets/

liabilities are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under current assets/

liabilities approximate their fair values.

(@) MoEF-MEZA=Z+—HA&EEREAFZ
R TR A S B R M e 47

(b)  FEUCHRE A F R L FEAE AT A 0 5L > AR SR
GG U 144,620,000 G ( E — A - K
73,652,000 JG ) 4% A7 B 77 FE ] 15 7 1 F %5 H R, o

S i 8 Y TS 2 A A S 4 A R
Wt B R HERR TR - TR A R IE T
B WA F R R A SR A

TR HRIE T 2 BB HE AT A W
L IR (R B SO (AR A o

HtEMEEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

19 Interests in Associates (continued) 19 Fiflilhes A vl 2 RE4R (%)
Notes: (continued) FiFE - (4%

(b) (continued) (b) (%)

The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are denominated in the JESCHE: 45/ ARk 2 R TH(EL ) AR 5] £ e oy B
following currencies: L :

The Group The Company
ARSI A2 H

2014 2013 2014 2013

SEeWE CFoSE CROWE . %Sk

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

W T T W T T oo

Australian dollar LS 901 - 471 -

Hong Kong dollar s 338,582 209,919 14,586 38,083

Renminbi NG 221,106 237,175 - -

The carrying amount of amount due to an associate is denominated in Hong Kong JREASE— R 225 2 W) Rk 2 B T ) DA s e /e .
dollar. £ o

(c) Chevalier (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (“CHK Group”), Toshiba Elevator (c)  Hid: (Fruk) ARRA w) I E A & ([ H A

(China) Co., Ltd. (“TCE”) and Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. (“STE”) SEME ) WEEMH (PR ARAF ((HEE

have a similar risk profile, are engaged in similar business activities and related R ) LR ER BN ARAR ([H

to each other, which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material to the Group. BEEE (VERE) ) BRI > AL

Set out below is the summarised financial information for CHK Group, TCE BEMR T e RAAR B o SR A

and STE. CHK Group, TCE and STE are engaged in the manufacturing, sales, TS EER o DLRRIIH AU E -

marketing, installation, repair and maintenance of the lift and escalator business BEEE PR R ER () 2 S SR

and accounted for using the equity method. MEBE o H- LA ukdEm - R ER (PE) B2

TR (T ) R S T A8 B R PR S B 2 G
SHE  EE R HEE R ORAE KRR R

A ©

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position Gy A S R O B b
2014 2013
e L e
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Tt T T
Non-current assets I 1t B ¥ 358,595 358,315

Current B

Assets B 4,230,969 3,743,813
Liabilities 1 (3,314,458) (2,957,630)
Net current assets it ) VR 916,511 786,183
Net assets & A 1,275,106 1,144,498
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
bR A A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

. . . S = > v .
19 Interests in Associates (continued) 19 Fidlilie vl Z HE4R (40
Notes: (continued) BifaE o ()
(¢) (continued) (o) (&
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income A AN A N
2014 2013
e S R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T wHTT
Revenue A 8,017,079 7,551,307
Profit before taxation [ il e ) 413,655 370,996
Income tax expenses P (83,152) (73,606)
Profit for the year AE JE i ) 330,503 297,390
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year 4FJ¥ HAb 2 (B 7)) i3 (1,107) 1,112
Total comprehensive income for the year A A THI M 45 487 329,396 298,502
Dividends received from associates SRl 4 &= /Nl 3 5 75,364 68,149
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated financial bt R S L N R AR BB IR R A 2 51
statements of the associates, adjusted for differences in accounting policies between BH S T A A B 2 R e et BOR R IR T
the Group and the associates. The information above is the amount before inter- LR R I <@ S DED/N/NEI R ol T
company eliminations. [
Reconciliation of summarised financial information B H R 2 2 R
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying T 52 5 B AR BT A T A m M R 2 IR
amount of the interests in associates is provided as follows: T 2 RS R
2014 2013
R4 —F—-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Net assets at beginning of the year AEY) 2 R I 1,144,498 978,723
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders AF B S SRR A 785 330,503 297,390
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income AT J3E R TR A A 4 T
for the year attributable to shareholders (BIZ) W zd (1,107) 1,112
Dividends & & (204,529) (139,080)
Exchange realignment [ifE 5, 54 4% 5,741 6,353
Net assets at end of the year AERZEETE 1,275,106 1,144,498
Interests in associates” JIT A g v A ) 2 R A ¢ 372,194 332,294
Goodwill [k 32,795 32,795
Carrying value at end of the year AER Z MR HAA 404,989 365,089
# As at 31 March 2014, the interests held by the Group in CHK group, TCE and # AT —EZH = —H o AREE S
STE as associates were 49%, 20% and 20% respectively (2013: 49%, 20% and FFEA AR - WEES (hER)
20% respectively). T AL BN (R B A 7 2 49%

20% K 20%fERE (& —=4F © Rl A
49% ~ 20% }% 20%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

19 Interests in Associates (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(d) The aggregate summarised financial information of the Group’s associates that are
not individually material is set out below:

19 PirfiliWhi e 24 v 2 M4k ()
WiE (40
(d) AR T 2 A S T 24 ) B 0
[N

2014 2013

R4 e S

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T BT T

The Group’s share of results S SETRIE S (35,281) (7,430)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive income A% A [ BT A A A T 6 3,865 -

The Group’s share of total comprehensive expenses A4 [ Jir il 4> T B <7 444

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests 7S£ [H] I ik L 45 B 45 28w E 26

(31,416) 7,430)

in these associates 2 WA T 344,822 608,425
20 Interests in Joint Ventures 20 i B s
The Group A
2014 2013
= UK k=
HK$’°000 HK$’000
W T T
Non-current: e
Interests in joint ventures, including goodwill i A B L > AT 300,895 330,083
Amounts due from joint ventures (note b) EWA B A ZER (Bt b) 1,206,438 893,046
1,507,333 1,223,129
Current: WiE)
Amounts due from joint ventures (note b) JENCA 2 A SE IR (Kt b) 128,799 378,065

The movements in the Group’s interests in joint ventures during the year are
analysed as follows:

ARAETAE N T A & B A S 2 HEAR B2 ) 2 oA
LU

2014 2013

B TR AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

At beginning of the year HEH] 330,083 347,811
Exchange realignment [ifE 5, 5 4 5,347 3,714
Share of results RS (9,033) (18,611)
Dividends i35 (25,502) (2,831)
At end of the year AR 300,895 330,083
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

. . . I\ X ) Y R
20 Interests in Joint Ventures (continued) 20 i B2 RELR (@)

The Group (continued) AL (4)

Notes: BtiE -

(a) Particulars regarding the principal joint ventures as at 31 March 2014 were set out (a) MoFE—NE=ZH=T—HEFEFEREZ
in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements. R HOR G5 A FAHS R M T 48

(b)  Amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured and bear interest at rates mutually (b)  MET A 2 A 2R A K42 A B O 3L 1R W
agreed between relevant parties except for the balance of HK$64,000 (2013: EMFIEEE > 45 R 1 64,000 0 ( —F— =
HK$78,000) which is interest-free. A 1 s 78,000 70) BB -
Amounts due from joint ventures under non-current assets of HK$522,253,000 JE IR B E AT N 2 MRS S A SR
(2013: HK$404,000,000) are considered equity in nature and HK$684,185,000 522,253,000 70 ( % — =4 © ¥ % 404,000,000
(2013: HK$489,046,000) are not repayable within one year while amounts due from JC) WA b A 25 T B s W 684,185,000 7T (-
joint ventures under current assets are repayable on demand. F— ZAF ¢ i 489,046,000 70 ) B ZE R — 4

PR PR (A - 1o O 7 T 2 MR A3
HRAR HI e R A -

The carrying amounts of amounts due from joint ventures under current assets U U TR 2 BB A SRR R T
approximate their fair values. SN FUfEARA ©
The carrying amounts of amounts due from joint ventures are denominated in the JRE ST 45 75 A SE R 2 MR TAT (BT LA T 3 65 1 B
following currencies: A
2014 2013
R R
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Hong Kong dollar priate 861,381 874,560
Renminbi NG 473,856 396,551
(c) Set out below is the summarised financial information for Ji{#f L + 5 %5 47 (c)  EEHRRL AR A SR PR W AR AR
R A which, in the opinion of the Directors, is material to the Group. This joint [ 7 5 o K > S R B S A DL N S -
venture is engaged in the property development business and accounted for using WMo A AR S ) S i S T {4 1wt
the equity method. Ao
Summarised consolidated statement of financial position Err B IR DL T 2
2014 2013
S .
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT
Non-current assets B B % 4,379 4,593
Current W
Assets PR 1,493,724 1,364,075
Liabilities A (1,086,527) (937,192)
Net current assets It B VR 407,197 426,883
Net assets W 411,576 431,476

HEEBEBERAE 3]
—Z—nEg



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

foi T s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
WE_F-NE=A=+—HILFE

20 Interests in Joint Ventures (continued) 20 i B2 LR (@)
The Group (continued) 7&%@ (#8)
Notes: (continued) FfFGE - (4
(c) (continued) (o) (&
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income SRy A VWAL 4 FE T
2014 2013
“ S
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T BT T
Revenue A 55,198 —
Loss before taxation BB T e 4 (23,568) (26,377)
Income tax expenses BB i - -
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year 4 Ji 5 45 J 2 1fi P 3 4840 (23,568) 26,377)
Dividend received from a joint venture Cil— M a8t ERE = -
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated financial Al R R A A S A A B IR ER N 2 A
statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in accounting policies BE TR SE LA 2 e EOR R IE T
between the Group and the joint venture. F iR -
Reconciliation of summarised financial information 5 R 2 2 IR

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying JIT 25 B R BRI A A A 2 M A 2 IR
amount of the interest in the joint venture is provided as follows: T (B2 BHRHG T -
2014 2013
e S0 TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
b3 o BT
Net assets at beginning of the year V2 E T 431,476 454,373
Exchange realignment R 3,668 3,480
Loss for the year attributable to shareholders AF B AU AL B 1 (23,568) (26,377)
Net assets at end of the year ERZEETE 411,576 431,476
Interest in a joint venture (49%) Bk A2 M (49%) 201,672 211,423
Goodwill [k 45 45
Interest in a joint venture, including goodwill, ERZI GBS
at end of the year (BL 5 7 58 ) 201,717 211,468
Amount due from a joint venture at beginning N2 IS E A
of the year B 249,638 -
Net advance to a joint venture ] £ A 2 P A 2 1 B 212,570 249,638
Amount due from a joint venture at end of the year — 4F A 2 JEU /480 SE IR X 462,208 249,638
Carrying value at end of the year AER Z MR A 663,925 461,106
R F A = ﬂ = H o HE T AR U

As at 31 March 2014, charges were created on interest in the joint venture
with a total carrying value of HK$201,717,000 (2013: nil) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group and a joint venture

partner.
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20 Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
bR A A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

20 i B2 RELR (@)

Notes: (continued) BifaE o ()
(d) The aggregate summarised financial information of Group’s joint ventures that are (d) IR TR 2 A 5 A S A5 R 2t
not individually material is set out below: Ko
2014 2013
TR “E-ZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
3o aTH T
The Group’s share of total comprehensive ks SE R IR il ey
income/(expenses) (BASZ) #a%8 2,515 (5,686)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests AR F BT AG ML 55 8 A R A
in these joint ventures 2 AAR T (E 843,408 762,023
21 Available-for-sale Investments 21 Wt BE
The Group The Company
A p /A
2014 2013 2014 2013
CEME S-SR CEWE %S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T o BT T
Listed investment, at fair value: AT s A ARME
— equity securities listed — A B A T IR
overseas (note a) (fftsEa) 29,900 - - -
Unlisted investments, at fair values: ~ JF_E & » $/N fufH ¢
— equity securities — A J5 11,640 3,880 3,880 3,880
— private funds (note b) —RABEEES (FEED) 214,093 189,012 214,093 189,012
— convertible preference — AR S
shares (note c) (B 5t o) 200,408 - = -
426,141 192,892 217,973 192,892
456,041 192,892 217,973 192,892

HLER
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B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

21 Available-for-sale Investments (continued)

134

The carrying amounts of available-for-sale investments are denominated in

21 Al B Z I ()
A B 4 MR () DA 9 e R

the following currencies: i
The Group The Company
A M A

2014 2013 2014 2013
SECWE CFSE S CWE F o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T T e o T
Australian dollar T 200,408 - - -
Euro Rk 2 24,851 23,286 24,851 23,286
US dollar EN 183,389 158,629 175,629 158,629
Vietnam Dong O 29,900 - = -
Others HAtb 17,493 10,977 17,493 10,977
456,041 192,892 217,973 192,892

Notes: B - ‘
(a) The fair value of the listed investment of the Group is determined based on the (a) AW DTG 2 N FO B T4 BAAS 5 I ik

quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchange. LR ABE -

(b)  The fair values of the private funds of the Group and the Company are primarily (b) AL SARN Al 2 AL H G 2 A Fu i) E AR

determined based on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed investments.

(c) The fair value of the convertible preference shares of the Group is assessed by
Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of qualified valuers,
using the discounted cash flow model. The model uses post-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering four-
year period and a 12% discount rate per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ik 1 B 25 A P
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

Properties under Development 22 R
The Group AR M
2014 2013
ZZ LR ZE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
L3 T WET I
At beginning of the year ) 914,543 803,067
Exchange realignment [T b, 5 7,293 6,551
Additions W 246,371 104,925
At end of the year R 1,168,207 914,543
Analysed for reporting purposes as: R T A
Non-current assets FE R B G E 757,459 702,569
Current assets TLE A E 410,748 211,974
1,168,207 914,543

The balance is related to a property development project in Changchun,

Mainland China.

The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is disclosed

in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless the

construction period of the relevant project is expected to complete beyond

normal operating cycle. The amount classified as non-current assets as at 31

March 2014 was not expected to be realised within the next twelve months.

% St B B e A MR R T TR 2 B R TE
Al o

B8 B e ) A 2 M8 A e BT
Mk 8 B -

BRI R B A E o BRIJEABRIH
FI 2 e S ST 19 L AR D S8
HCFE-EEA =4 BB RE G
FE 2 G RTERT AN E IR ARA A A N

Other Non-current Assets 23 H Al IE W B E
The Group AL
2014 2013
ZF g —E =
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T oo
Deposits paid for a property development CAT—IEY) 4 R TH H
project (note a) %4 (Hf5Ea) 70,233 67,599
Amounts due from related parties (note b) M BRI N - 2 KOE ([ EEb) 19,725 -
Others HoAth 43,901 38,538
133,859 106,137
Notes: Fi5E -

(a) The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in

Changchun, Mainland China.

(b) The amounts are secured, bear interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant

parties and not repayable within one year.

(a) ZESERA PR AR YRR R I 2
A4 -

(b)  FEABEE AN~ HAR B T 2 2 AT
PR — R R -

Ht+EREmARA
—T-mEH
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B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

24 Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

136

24 RN AP E T Z B E

The Group The Company
AR Y /|
2014 2013 2014 2013
e~ 111 S —E Y4 TR =R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T
Listed investments: i
Held for trading FHFEE B %
— debt securities — s RS 167,279 97,407 = -
— equity securities listed in — & Ei AR
Hong Kong W I5 66,059 59,549 32,966 31,756
— equity securities listed overseas — AN BT 2 AR R I 3,815 110,793 = -
— exchange-traded funds — 25 I B E 680 606 680 606
— mutual and hedge funds LR YNE I RUIE- = 1,404 - - -
239,237 268,355 33,646 32,362
Unlisted investments: JEEHE -
Held for trading FEIEE B A
— debt securities — B RS 33,283 28,077 = -
— mutual and hedge funds — BB B A 15,387 42,235 207 506
— foreign exchange linked notes — HNFEH G 2R = 18,380 = -
Designated upon initial recognition — FHJ 45 MR IF 8L 15 E
— debt securities —EHES 32,825 48,647 = 15,512
81,495 137,339 207 16,018
320,732 405,694 33,853 48,380

The fair values of the listed investments of the Group and the Company are

determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant

exchanges and the unlisted investments of the Group and the Company are

determined based on financial models or with reference to quoted prices from

relevant financial institutions.

KRB BARNF 2 L THEZ A RETIEA
B 22 5 BT B i 2 T O AR T O - A 4R
B /A e S e | 4 < /A W | DEE R
BRE - BHA B A BB N 2 R -

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss are F O MBS B 1 B B 2 4 2 G (B

denominated in the following currencies: THI W L AL
The Group The Company
A M AR

2014 2013 2014 2013

ZEPYLE TR o LE:D R4

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T BT T BT

Hong Kong dollar ki 71,078 64,598 32,966 31,756

Japanese Yen H I8 3,815 110,793 = -

Renminbi NG - 18,380 - -

US dollar B 245,839 211,923 887 16,624

320,732 405,694 33,853 48,380
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

Inventories 25 F8&

The Group AR M
2014 2013
—E ZE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Raw materials JE MR 12,034 14,269
Finished goods BT 155,397 186,022
Consumables FER YK 2,075 3,403
169,506 203,694

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales
amounted to HK$747,930,000 (2013: HK$682,223,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value of
HK$28,613,000 (2013: HK$47,174,000) for the purpose of securing banking

LR 78 4 S0 H3I0 B A B B AR 2 7F B AR
Fy s 15747,930,000 7T ( & — ZAE R

682,223,000 7C) ©

R TAT AR (B M 528,613,000 7C (. — =4F «
47,174,00070) Z A7 B EAFIEH - (EBIZTAE

facilities granted to the Group. BISRAT R R ISR -
Properties for Sale 26 TFEWE
The Group AR M
2014 2013
R4 TR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
#H T wHET T
Unamortised prepaid land leases AHRE TE AT L b FH B
— Hong Kong — ik 26,532 26,629
— Mainland China and overseas — [ A b R 3 b 7,581 8,912
Development costs BE R AR 20,695 21,707
54,808 57,248

Properties for sale included the Group’s share of joint operation with an
aggregate book value of HK$18,129,000 (2013: HK$18,129,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$2,580,000 (2013: HK$53,477,000).

No properties for sale was pledged for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group (2013: HK$1,900,000).

B ) 2 A0 45 T T 40 25 75 18,129,000 0T (—
E— AR HEH18,129,0007T) Z A H G A

LB 30 31 81 B BUAR 2 BB 0 3 AR 0 Ui i
2,580,0007C (- F—=4F : #k#¥53,477,0007C) ©

S 0 15 ) E AR AE B % T A A RAT
fEEZIER (TR — =4 #11,900,000T) -

HIEREBHERA R
—E—-ER
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

27 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

138

27 REWOIRSK ~ 17 4% & M T AT sk

The Group The Company
A4 1 AR

2014 2013 2014 2013

e~ 111 e S —E Y4 B =

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T Y e aPTH Wi Tt ik apTH

Trade debtors H 7 FEUIR K 495,804 410,237 = -

Less: Provision for impairment W I E R (19,920) (18,450) - -

Trade debtors, net B 5 REWIRR - A 475,884 391,787 - -

Retention receivables JRE e A 55 B IE 204,516 183,763 = -

Less: Provision for impairment R =R 4] (33,570) (33,595) - -

Retention receivables, net TE WA B8 Kk IE > AR 170,946 150,168 = -
Other debtors, deposits and A EYIREK ~ A7 4% 4

prepayments PSRN e 378,690 400,146 3,181 1,530

1,025,520 942,101 3,181 1,530

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its
core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors is 60 days,
except for insurance business where credit period granted to certain debtors is
over 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows:

RAEME K EZLEREF O ARG
BHK - B TESEF 2 VFHESEM 60
Ko WG TR ER 235 THF E S8
6o K o

A R 5 BENSOIR A Z AR B AT I T

2014 2013

&N TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

0 - 60 days 0-60K 296,405 248,933
61 —90 days 61-90 K 23,264 41,437
Over 90 days 790 K 156,215 101,417
475,884 391,787
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

(continued)

As at 31 March 2014, gross trade debtors balances totalling HK$40,554,000
(2013: HK$39,162,000) were individually determined to be impaired, which
were related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The management
assessed that only a portion of these balances was expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific provision for impairment of HK$19,920,000 was
recognised as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$18,450,000). The Group did not
hold any collateral over these balances. The movement in the provision for
impairment during the year is as follows:

for B B s e M i
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

27 REWCORAK - 17 ¥k & K AT s 0H

(#4)

R oF—NEZA=+—H o RAF TR
WRF 28 5 REWR ARG I A
40,554,000 JC ( & — =4 ¢ 3k #39,162,000
J6) > T A B E R T - HA e
FEAG > TE 0 AR U (R A L SR A5 B o R >
AT — A= H = A — R A W
5 5 W 119,920,000 T8 ( & — = AE ¢ dE
18,450,00075) ° AHE [F 37 e R M0 55 4% Bk 15 1T
AT FEAH S o A7 RS R < B AN T

2014 2013

ZEB g ZE A

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T oo

At beginning of the year X 18,450 16,611
Exchange realignment [T 50, 9] (16) )

Impairment loss recognised OB I (E 1R 6,476 4,502
Impairment loss written back RAIEE SORIEN 7 15| (3,754) (730)
Uncollectable amounts written off TS AS ATk [m] 2 4% (1,236) (1,924)

At end of the year FER 19,920 18,450

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be impaired is
as follows:

BN T I (E 2 B2 5 E R AR 2 MR 20 A7
LU

2014 2013

SEeWE CE ok

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T T

Neither past due nor impaired 7 48 7 4] B U 246,702 202,225
Up to 60 days past due i 60 KA 189,207 149,404
61 — 90 days past due w61 - 90 K 13,945 12,904
Over 90 days past due 3 #A 76T 90 K 5,396 6,542
Amount past due but not impaired B 36 1 H 2R W (E 208,548 168,850
Total M 455,250 371,075

Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly relate to
individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers for more than
six months with no history of default in the past.

VRN R al b PN EVERE R (Wit SN
TE A EI AR

HtEREEARALT
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B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE

—PE=H =+ —H IR

27 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

140

(continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated in the
following currencies:

27 MEWCORAK - A7 ¥k & K AT SO0H

(#8)
AR 42 B 4 B B i R K 2 R I (BT DA T 31 £
T

2014 2013
. e

HK$’000 HKS$’000

W T T

Australian dollar It 4,123 1,393
Hong Kong dollar ki 385,809 286,888
Macau Pataca L[ e 20,432 9,386
Renminbi N 7,565 1,262
US dollar B 40,794 66,536
Others HoAth 17,161 26,322
475,884 391,787

As at 31 March 2014, retention receivables amounted to HK$33,570,000
(2013: HK$33,595,000) were individually determined to be impaired, on
which the Group experienced unexpected difficulties during the collection
process from the customers. The management assessed that the balance was
not expected to be recovered and full provision for impairment loss was
recognised.

The carrying amounts of other debtors and retention receivables as at 31
March 2014 and 2013 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of other debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2014
and 2013 approximated their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments was the Group’s share of
receivables of HK$684,000 (2013: HK$266,000) in relation to joint operation.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments with a total
carrying value of HK$52,758,000 (2013: nil) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

TE-PEZA=Z+H - B EE
XMk M33570,0007C (& — = 4F Mk
33,595,0007% ) EL 11 FIl 9 8 5 Al T - ToAR
SE B B & i e R O R A bR b
B R S o 40 75 B 2 BT o TEUD A B i [
RN 2 e Ry (R 1

AE AR E A EE A=
oAt R IR R &W?H&(%Eﬁ’ I 2 R T R T 22
DAV B N B o B

PR - CAE S S+ —H
H A JRE AT R R B B WA T 2 i T (L B8 A
AR ©

JES BR R ~ A7 H 4% & R TR B N B AL A
SE AT B A R T A 2 B K - B
684,000 70 (ZF—=A4F + #5¥5266,000 70) ©

I THT 48 7 W 52,758,000 7T ( % — =4F + i)
ZEWCHR K~ 77 R 4 M T A BRE R K
o VER B TASEEBIT S E IS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BB IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

28 Amounts Due from/to Customers for Contract Work

28 R A A TR &5 WO S A

Z K
The Group AR M
2014 2013
e S 112 —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi Tt o
Contracts in progress at end of the year: TR Z it T A4
Contract costs incurred T4 Z A HIA 6,800,891 6,956,657
Recognised net gains BRTERY VR 38,565 86,807
6,839,456 7,043,464
Less: Progress billings W HERE A (7,217,211) (7,450,934)
(377,755) (407,470)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: L s B
Amounts due from customers for contract work CL LG A B kS 4 LR
included in current assets [0 % UL 2 5O0E 171,754 175,155
Amounts due to customers for contract work ELELE A T ) B A A 4 LA
included in current liabilities HE [ % 7 A 2 ik E (549,509) (582,625)
(377,755) (407,470)

WA H) TARMCBUR T8 AT 305 W 15 17,500,000
JO( " — =4 - J#¥7,653,00000) o N7 E LS
A EATHR KA ©

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to
HK$17,500,000 (2013: HK$7,653,000) and included in creditors.

29 Derivative Financial Instruments 29 i LR
The Group The Company
L AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZER AR ZE-EF - S 111 F 3 —E—=
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT W T T
Financial assets/(liabilities) in respect fiT4: BAH TH 2
of derivative financial instruments ~ B#&E (B 1E)
— interest rate swap contracts — F R A 4
(note a) (f5Ea) 1,082 (5,207) 1,082 (5,207)
— foreign currency forward — AN 4
contracts (note b) (ft3ED) (4,141) (632) = (601)
— put option (note c) — R HARE (BT 5E ) — 75,975 =
— put option granted — 1% R I RE - (25,000) - -
— others — HoAh 6,307 6,307 - -
3,248 51,443 1,082 (5,808)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: gtk & &5 ¢
Current assets T 10,342 82,364 1,082 62
Current liabilities T A (7,094) (30,921) = (5,870)
3,248 51,443 1,082 5,808)

HEEREBERAT  14q
.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

29 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)
The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

142

Their fair values are determined with reference to fair values of comparable
instruments in the market or quoted prices from counterparties. The net

carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated in the following currencies:

29

fir A Ja s L H ()
TR TR 4 28 0 2 8 SR o 72
TR 208 SRR T AR T L TR 2 35 4
S AT A o i T 2 R
BT LA T 90 £ Ry B

The Group The Company
A G A ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E Mg CF - DR NE CF -
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT T T T

Australian dollar L™ (7,034) - - -

Euro [ 4 2,460 (601) - (601)

Hong Kong dollar et s 7,389 52,075 1,082 (5,207)

Others HoAt 433 (31) - -

3,248 51,443 1,082 (5,808)

Notes: BFGE -

(a) Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a total notional (a) ARSI B AR W) 75 6 07 B ) R L) 2y [ 58 R 3R
amount of HK$800,000,000 (2013: HK$1,070,000,000) were entered to swap B Ly A [ TR B R 2 4 T T S A R
floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between different floating #y o FLAA 385 5 s 1K 800,000,000 7T ( —F
rates. These contracts will all be matured on 29 September 2015 (2013: period from — =4 #E%1,070,000,000 7G) o IEEE A A1
14 July 2013 to 29 September 2015). R = E—TAFENH L (ZF =4

RoF =LA EE S F AL
ZAJUAER K B -
(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company with a total (b)  AKE [ KA ) bt AR [) SN i 1) 2 At 58 S

(c)

notional amount up to HK$367,532,000 (2013: HK$79,744,000) were entered to
swap various foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These contracts will
mature within the period from 8 April 2014 to 16 June 2017 (2013: period from 9
April 2013 to 2 July 2015).

The put option in relation to the disposal of 20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries was exercised by the Group at an exercise
price of HK$81,660,000 during the year. The transaction was completed on 11 June
2013.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

MR S AME S A > HAZ RS L
5 367,532,000 G (& — = 4F + #5%5 79,744,000
JC) o WA A T — AR VH B
F—LFEANATANEHHAN (CZFE =48 )
TE-CAENH LA E S E-TAELA A
) F3

AR o A A 4% 47848 75 1 81,660,000 7
AT RN WIRE L 1 45712 Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited S BB 2 711 209 BAHE © 1638 5 B
I Ay = el 591 A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with financial
institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair
values.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the
following currencies:

fo 1 A A M e
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

30 SRETHE A RBE

AT A A BB B T RR LG~ JRUAT B
B 2% = A1 5 LA Ay 2 e B SR AT A7k S A A
Bt 2 Bl o SR 2 IR (B A AL
{EARAT o

SRATHEAF B & 2 MR AT (L) LR 51 68 M oy B

fir -

The Group The Company
AR A

2014 2013 2014 2013
TR g = TR PE DR
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
b aTH W T i1 T T T
Australian dollar ST 19,417 32,250 1,221 13,533
Canadian dollar JIE-P N 25,856 34,368 102 10,120
Hong Kong dollar pretie 504,340 496,491 72,553 17,125
Macau Pataca e 17,806 14,676 = -
Renminbi UNGRL 304,626 314,039 58,760 119,714
Singapore dollar oy oo 7,869 5,207 21 57
US dollar B 291,968 355,572 46,514 49,658
Others Hfthy 28,953 27,413 6,541 5,748
1,200,835 1,280,016 185,712 215,955

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank balances of HK$199,673,000 (2013:
HK$235,085,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2014, the effective interest rates on short-term bank deposits
of the Group and the Company were 1.6% and 2.0% (2013: 1.5% and 2.6%)
per annum respectively; and these deposits had average maturities of 20 days
and 23 days (2013: 28 days and 29 days) respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, bank balances and cash of HK$113,434,000 (2013:
HK$136,491,000) were held in Mainland China and subject to local exchange
control regulations, under which the balances could not be exported freely
out of Mainland China. The repatriation of funds out of Mainland China are
possibly conducted by way of dividends or other means as complied to the
regulations.

ATEPAEZA = H o AEEZ AT
4 11 %5199,673,000 7T (& — = A4E ¢ ik M
235,085,000 7C) ELAKHT4R1T > 1E 2 T 44k
BRI TG S 2 WER -

R TE-WAEZH = —H o AREE R ARNT
W ERATAE AR 2 B B A 23R A3 Bl B 1.69% B
2.0% (. F—=4F 1 1.5% &% 2.6%) > BLEEAFEK
ORI H A R 20 K K23 K (R —=
A28 KL 29°K) o

RoF—EZH=4—H > HARPERK
M2 SRAT &5 A7 S B 4 v 1 113,434,000 00 (&
— AR N 136,491,000 JC) ZE B Hb A FE
BHIEE > PRI > LSS AT A EE S
B A b o 4 T 3 e S B At S R E
Jy 2R e A b, o

HIEREBHERA R
—E—-ER
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B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

31 Creditors, Bills Payable, Deposits and Accruals 31 MEATIRAK ~ MEAT 0% - FA#%E
Kt E M
The Group The Company
A H AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR TR R S B
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

T T L T

Trade creditors and bills payable B 5 EASH Rk e A B 213,510 179,121 - —
Deposits received S AR 4 391,113 60,815 24 24
Retention payables JREAH % B I 106,039 119,301 - -
Accrued contract costs TEAR G & A 121,544 175,423 - -
Other creditors and accruals At AT R R S TE R 382,363 377,770 5,330 15,695
1,214,569 912,430 5,354 15,719
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable is as A B [ 1 ) B A MR S AT SR 2 BR % 43 4T
follows: o
2014 2013
e e LK e S
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T T
0 — 60 days 0-60K 193,294 145,494
61— 90 days 61-90 K 4,944 3,381
Over 90 days i 90 K 15,272 30,246
213,510 179,121
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable are B S @Zﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁ B HE Ao S0 2 R T
denominated in the following currencies: JIAR BB 5
2014 2013
e UK Rk
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T T T
Hong Kong dollar ki 162,125 134,176
Macau Pataca L[ e 18,068 7,472
US dollar #IT 20,100 16,959
Others ot 13,217 20,514
213,510 179,121
The carrying amounts of other creditors and retention payables as at 31 March ﬁ;# T AR R ? HE=A=+— ‘EI N
2014 and 2013 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar. /\W—WEHR& S A B B I 2 M T DA
WAL -
The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 O L i e S Sy j: H -
approximated their fair values. %HB‘ETJ\&EH IR 2 HR A (E B SL(E AR
E‘ o
Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the Group’s FEATRRE - MEASR - A A S R N
share of liabilities of HK$547,000 (2013: HK$51,000) in relation to joint C @R HENE547,00000 (% =4F - 551,000
operation. TC) I RS F AT B S A T 2 B
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i B B R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IE= A=t — B R

32 RURBREH
IS 2 R B A SR —

32 Outstanding Insurance Claims
Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually settled

within one year: i

— Employee compensation — R B

— Motor third party liability IR =HFAT
— Public liability — N REAE

The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows: B (FIBRFORBR) PEZE T ¢
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
ZERNE ZERIE ZE-RE DR ZR-CTF -2 RN Bk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
WL T W W WWT W T BT BT

Estimate of cumulative claims ffi il 251 R &

At end of accident year B AME T ARGk 88,767 39,575 57,615 87,099 131,582 155,800 197,078
One year later —HE% 84,866 50,541 57,145 54,009 105,091 122,921 -
Two years later G 55,288 45,852 52,207 67,192 113,384 - -
Three years later SR 44,324 40,146 46,556 63,648 - - -
Four years later T4 44,418 38,954 43,356 - - - -
Five years later AR 45,708 39,814 - - - - -
Six years later NER 46,140 - - - - - -
Cumulative claims ZARHE 46,140 39,814 43,356 63,648 113,384 122,921 197,078 626,341
Less: Cumulative payments 3 : Z5FE AT HUA (44,713) (38,091) (39,857) (39,586) (46,877) (32,165) (16,725)  (258,014)
Claims outstanding REF—E=A
at 31 March 2014 =t—HZRRZEE 1,427 1,723 3,499 24,062 66,507 90,756 180,353 368,327
Claims outstanding RZF-=F=H
at 31 March 2013 =t—HZERRERE 1,736 1,398 14,046 37,677 81,459 140,615 = 276,931

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will
occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of
insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of
claims, actual benefits paid which are greater than originally estimated and
subsequent development of long tail claims.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits, approval
procedures for transactions that involve new products or that exceed set
limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of reinsurance and
monitoring of emerging issues.

The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection and the
implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements of reinsurance,
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims as well as the
investigation of possible fraudulent claims. The Group also enforces a policy
of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the
Group.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks over a number of
years and, as such, reduces the variability of the outcome.

PR A #TE T 2 JEl B )5 48 A B R PR 2
B o L4 S AN R R R AR AT ol e A
R o AL BRSSO w2 T
B J Ry 2y T AR R T < A A R P L i
WRTHT (B » UL U932 B AR - RO AR
JEE - T PR AT R A R B AR A A R
Ess 2 X

AR FIE R R AR - E AW R
SO R 2 b 2 R~ W7 E AR
1~ A v T IR B 2 Pl O IR B A ] R LA
B AR o

A% 4 T DA 7 2 SR B 2 S B AT A
TR T UM R AR SRS ~ PR R B AR AT
R ER DL AT AG B AT 2007 R A AR A 2 R
DA e i) A A HRFE ke 2 R o AR SR BIOREAT
T MR 2L S DI PR W 2 BOSRE > LA D T
RE S A% 42 [ 3t A ) B 2 S T LA R A
Je 2 JE o

AR T 2 R AR SR I 5 5K — {18 2 Wi ~F- A 19
HLA R 5 2 A AR HERF— I th P 2 S UEL B
ALY RER AL LA BURRBE E o

HtEREEARALT
“z-meg 14
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B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

33 Bank and Other Borrowings

146

33 GRAT R A AR Sk

The Group The Company
A HE y: A
2014 2013 2014 2013
L = e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
W T T BT T T T
The borrowings are repayable 18 FAE 1
as follows: wmr
Within one year —4ER 653,968 944,285 52,000 47,000
More than 1 year but not —4EPL FH
exceeding 2 years N R 1,832,176 1,389,036 1,496,375 213,000
More than 2 years but not WAFE A FfH
exceeding 5 years AR AR 748,865 1,989,470 9,000 1,639,271
Exceeding 5 years R AR A 832,046 = - =
4,067,055 4,322,791 1,557,375 1,899,271
Less: Amount due within one year — J : i’ —4F A £ 456
disclosed under current TE LB & N B R
liabilities Z & (653,968) (944,285) (52,000) (47,000)
3,413,087 3,378,506 1,505,375 1,852,271
Represented by: 2507
Secured EEE il 2,378,120 2,054,220 13,000 15,000
Unsecured ST 1,688,935 2,268,571 1,544,375 1,884,271
4,067,055 4,322,791 1,557,375 1,899,271

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings approximate their

bk 1 B 25 i M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

33 S4T R Ab A X (40
PR R 30 40185 3 LA V7 B R R 5 HEL

H oA ﬁ%ﬁ?&ﬁ\:

fair values as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rate. The i %?ﬁ\ZE&E{E,V\/\ﬂ{E*E% o BRAT K I

bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: M Ty LR 5 £ e fy B8
The Group The Company
A4 1 YN/ |
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZER A e ZE g —E =

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WBHT T BT BT T

Canadian dollar I N 28,347 47,174 - -

Hong Kong dollar il e 2,919,706 3,016,846 1,557,375 1,899,271

Renminbi NG 162,875 363,861 = -

US dollar ESn 956,127 894,910 - —

4,067,055 4,322,791 1,557,375 1,899,271

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank and other borrowings as at

WEAZ+ R 847 R AR TR A

31 March were as follows: FZAR
The Group The Company
A4 M AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
SEWE CB-SE SR F g
Canadian dollar JIE-P NI 2.3% 2.3% = -
Hong Kong dollar el 2.2% 2.3% 2.6% 2.7%
Renminbi UNY: 5.9% 6.6% = -
US dollar eV 4.5% 4.9% - -
Bank and other borrowings of HK$2,378,120,000 (2013: HK$2,054,220,000) SRAT M A 3 %5 2,378,120,000 7C ( %
were secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 14, 15, — =A% %2 054 220,000 7C ) J3 LA A 42 4
25, 26 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements. AR > R AR S MBS R M R 14 15
25~ 26 % 30 %
34 Share Capital 34 JlgA
Number of shares Share capital
Jety % H JBe AR
HK$°000
T
Ordinary shares of HK$1.25 each o TR (B VA W 1,25 02 53 A
Authorised: Wi A
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 RWZFE-TAFH—H - 2R ==
and 31 March 2014 = t—HER=F—VE=H =1+—H 540,000,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT RS RBA
At 1 April 2013 WoFE A —H 281,386,811 351,734
Issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes FRAE DL ACE S B 1T Iy 11,487,192 14,359
At 31 March 2014 WoE—E=ZH=+—H 292,874,003 366,093
At 1 April 2012 W E—TARM I —H 277,564,090 346,955
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme AR DA B AC S 5 ) B 7 By 3,822,721 4,779
At 31 March 2013 R E A=A 281,386,811 351,734
HIBEREERRAR 147
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for A s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-F-MNE=A=+—HILFE

35 Reserves

35 fitifhi

The Group AR M
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
LY N A
Capital Investment Otherassets  Hedging Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation ~revaluation  revaluation Other fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve resetve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
KA &g JbEE Hi SPIE L
Rl ARG EPGE O EWEE O EHME O THRE URRE RBRE  REEAN b
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$'000
BT EWTx  BWTx BRIk ERTx #RTx @Rt @Rt #WTx #WTx
(note)
(k)
At April 2013 REF-ZFNA-H 453830 363,480 8,785 B8 210,89 41 - 510462 3897817 5,469,085
Profit for the year EEEF = = = = = = = = 470,369 470,369
Fair value surplus of properties upon ~ #/ % i% G4 £R5) %
transfer to investment properties CARMERS = - - - 33,540 - - - - 33,540
Fair value surplus of properties ERHIE NN A
for own use fak = = - - 39790 - - - -3
Release upon disposal of a property i E—TE i
for own use HEG LS = = = = (123) = = = = (123)
Share of reserves of an associate Friba A a i Rt - - - - 4,254 (1,446) 1,057 - - 3,865
Impairment loss on A& 2B
available-for-sale investments E e
transferred to consolidated HRELEs
income statement s - - - 10,532 - - - - = 10,532
Exchange difference on translation A IENHBAR -
of operations of overseas BEATRAELE
subsidiaries, associates and ZERREEZ
joint ventures SESHER - - - - - - - (163%9) - (163%9)
Change in fair value of it E HENARR
available-for-sale investments, net 28, 35 = = = 23,348 = = = = = 23,348
Fair value adjustments on RERHAREH
the derivative financial instruments i LR
designated as cash flow hedge ks
in respect of interest rate BHRARE
swap contracts Eikd - - - - - 1,041 - - - 1,041
Total comprehensive income R AT
for the year i - - - 33,880 387,461 (405) 1,057 (16,399) 470,369 875,963
Dividends paid RIS - - - - - - - - (409%9)  (2409%9)
Issues of shares under scrip REURREHE
dividend schemes S 143,45 - - - - - - - - 14
Deemed disposal of interests W& HEA A
in subsidiaries b 1) - 577 - - - - - - - 577
At31 March 2014 REE-ME=F=1—H 597,184 364,057 8,785 57,658 598,351 (364) 1,057 494063 412747 6248138
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35 Reserves (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
i B B R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IE= A=t — B R

35 it (40

The Group AR M
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR ERA AN L
Capital  Investment  Other assets Exchange
Share Capital  redemption  revaluation  revaluation Hedging  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
e fig RbgE SME L
R wARG  EEEE  EHRE O EURE O HWREE FERE REEH 2
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EHTT  wRTE  E%TE #ETT BETn T #MTr BT BMTx
(note)
(k)
At 1 April 2012 RZZ—"4NA—H 417,860 363,480 8,785 34,890 179,057 - 493,118 3,149,580 4,646,770
Profit for the year A A - - - - - - - 1,011,923 1,011,923
Fair value surplus of properties ¥4 3 4 &4 5
upon transfer to investment NEZME
properties Bk - - - - 31,833 - - - 31,833
Impairment loss on Wik &2 7
available-for-sale investments {13 [
transferred to consolidated ey
income statement i % - - - 4,639 - - - - 4639
Gain on disposal of gt E
available-for-sale investments B (st
transferred to consolidated LT
income statement KHE - - - (289) - - - - (289)
Exchange difference on translation #5i5N B4 »
of operations of overseas BalukaahE
subsidiaries, associates and EHFEEZ
joint ventures SMES R - - - - - - 17,344 - 17,344
Change in fair value of {2 R
available-for-sale investments, /A AL EH »
net e - - - (15,462) - - - - (15,462)
Fair value adjustments on RERREREHM
the derivative financial TR TR
instruments designated as R
cash flow hedge in respect AW ARE
of interest rate swap contracts [l - - - - - 41 - - 41
Total comprehensive income A2 i t4
for the year ki) - - - (11,112) 31,833 41 17,344 1,011,923 1,050,029
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - - - - (263,686) (263,686
Issues of shares under scrip RSN
dividend scheme BIRG 35,972 - - - - - - - 35,972
At31 March 2013 REF-=F=A=1-0 453,83 363,480 8,785 23,778 210,890 4l 510462 3897817 5,469,085

Note: The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past
including redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of group

entities.

WIRE © ASER LA A 2k 2 IR B AL SR > (4R
AATEM - SRR R RALAAL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWEZF-UE=ZH=+—H IRFEE

35 fafifh (40

35 Reserves (continued)

The Company AN ]
Capital  Investment
Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation Hedging Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
g %
Bt i i YN Y Ik AR Hib Gk [ il A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
WL T T T i T WL
(note)
(WH3E)
At 1 April 2013 NoE—-=FNA—H 453,832 95,413 8,799 25,212 41 623,714 1,207,011
Profit for the year (note 13) R (HEE13) - - - - - 313,772 313,772
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Wikt G
investments transferred to REEREEE
income statement i#% - - - 10,208 - = 10,208
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A fikHi & 2 # EH9 /A
investments, net 28 > FH - - - 39,603 - - 39,603
Fair value adjustments on the derivative 87 43 &3 & £
designated as cash flow hedge in respect (i TEABIFI%
of interest rate swap contracts EHEKNAR AL - - = = 1,041 = 1,041
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 Ji 2 i 45 4344 - - - 49,811 1,041 313,772 364,624
Dividends paid EftHE - - - - - (240,939)  (240,939)
Issues of share under scrip dividend schemes 45 A &5 51 #1217 iy 143,452 - - - - - 143,452
At 31 March 2014 BoF-EE=A=+—H 597,284 95,413 8,799 75,023 1,082 696,547 1,474,148
At 1 April 2012 BoF—HENA—A 417,860 95,413 8,799 36,324 - 880,517 1,438,913
Profit for the year (note 13) R (3T 13) - - - - - 6,883 6,883
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale g g g
investments transferred to income Ml sz
statement i % - - - (289) - - (289)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A fi i 7 B 193 e
investments, net B8 FH - - - (10,823) - - (10,823)
Fair value adjustments on the derivative  $8/€ S & EH Y
financial instruments designated as ik LAHR
cash flow hedge in respect of interest lEsur el
rate swap contracts VS IREE kS - - - - 41 - 41
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income 42 (i) /e
for the year Eit - - - (11,112) 41 6,883 (4,188)
Dividends paid EARE - - - - - (26368)  (263,686)
Issues of shares under scrip dividend scheme Hg§ AR Bt #1571 0 35972 - - - - - 35972
At31 March 2013 REF-=H=A=1—H 453,831 95,413 8,799 25,212 41 623,714 1,207,011
Note: Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets BFGE © AT R T A2 T R I BB 2 ) 2 W TR (E

of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares

issued for their acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the

contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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36 Deferred Taxation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:

bk 1 B 2 A P
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

36 WHEFLIA
T SCHT TS AR B R AT R A R AT T R
2 EERIEBIAA R (GE) kLS

Accelerated  Revaluation Allowance
tax of for doubtful Tax
depreciation ~ properties  Trademarks debts losses Others Total
b
BUHBE  EME MR REEE BUHER b k|
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
wTr  EWT BT EWTx BTk W%t BT
At 1 April 2013 BoF—=FENA—A 45,665 124,174 3,013 33 (22,023) 8,325 159,187
Exchange realignment ot 3% 92 877 - - - 159 1,128
Charged/(credited) to consolidated income FEREGA NG E
statement for the year (note 10) B/ GEA) (H3E10) 3,905 9,019 (256) 10 (22,530) 8,982 (870)
Charged to other comprehensive income TEAE R Hfh A T ik s
for the year k - 69,120 - - - - 69,120
At31 March 2014 AE-NE=A=TH 49,662 203,190 2,757 43 (44,553) 17,466 228,565
At1 April 2012 BB EmA—A 43,790 110,540 3,269 % (19,615) 15,400 153,412
Exchange realignment HE 51,39 (124) 919 - - - 136 931
Charged/(credited) to consolidated income ~ fE4F & Al i
statement for the year (note 10) b/ GEA) (it 10) 1,999 12,715 (256) 5 (2,408) (7,211) 4,844
At 31 March 2013 CE-CHEZAZEH 45,605 124,174 3,013 33 (22,023) 8,325 159,187
For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position presentation, LG &5 A BB IR R 2 5 7 = > TR
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the JERTE G A S AR A ORI EE o IR AE B TH S
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes: SRAE B IR B2 AT T
2014 2013
e Ui TE-EAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Deferred tax liabilities % AL I B A 262,421 185,510
Deferred tax assets R B I (33,856) (26,323)
228,565 159,187

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$2,234,287,000
(2013: HK$2,011,074,000) available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of HK$172,450,000 (2013:
HK$111,569,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset had been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$2,061,837,000 (2013: HK$1,899,505,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses were losses
of HK$16,192,000, HK$65,833,000 and HK$76,109,000 (2013: HK$5,304,000,
HK$65,103,000 and HK$13,499,000) of subsidiaries in Macau, Mainland
China and the United States of America (“US”) that will gradually expire until
December 2016, December 2018 and March 2034 respectively; the remaining
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

—EZA=—H » AEEKEHZ
T TE s 1 5 1 1 2,234,287,000 7T ( & — = 4F
H#H2,011,074,0007C) > A FIVEHERE A2 2 s
B A o Horp i #6172,450,000 00 (% —=4F ¢
51 111,569,000 70) 2 B JE B 1H £ 58 B 8 4E
BRI o (R ) M LATE B - SO0 e sk B
T 2 Bl JE U 1R U 1 2,061,837,000 UG ( —F — =
4 ¢y 1,899,505,000 7T ) Tl FR 2 1R JiE i JE
FE o ﬁlﬁféﬁfﬁ@%iﬁﬁﬁ e ] [ b e SR B
A ([ S5 ) B 2wl A il 22 =% —
ErTH Y T A HAZQ?;E@*
A 2 i ¥ 16, 19200071: 7t ¥ 65,833,000 JC %
5 1 76,109,000 7T ( —F— —4F 1 {55 5,304,000
gt > #5%65,103 ooomjzdé‘ﬁ@ls ,499,0007C) 5 1
Bk 2 BEIE G 1 r] SRR A5 -

\#?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

foi T s A M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

36

37

152

Deferred Taxation (continued)
As at 31 March 2014, deferred tax liabilities of HK$20,834,000 (2013:
HK$17,032,000) had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such
amounts were expected to be reinvested.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had unrecognised deductible temporary
differences of HK$53,218,000 (2013: HK$8,522,000). No deferred tax asset
had been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it
is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Segment Information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the Directors of the Company, the chief operating decision-
maker, that are used to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider
the business from a product/service perspective. Principal activities of the
segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for
aluminium building materials and curtain walls, building construction,
electrical and mechanical, lift and escalator, pipe technology and environmental
contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft, aircraft
liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold storage
and logistics, senior housing and hotel operations.

Food and beverage: Restaurant and bar.

Others: Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and business
machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles, grocery trading
and fresh produce supply.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group’s share
of revenue of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate consolidated
basis. The sales from associates and joint ventures to the Group and sales
between individual associates and joint ventures are not eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of segment results. This measurement includes the Group’s share
of results of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate consolidated
basis. Unallocated corporate expenses, finance income and costs, income tax
expenses and other major items that are isolated and non-recurring in nature
are not included in segment results.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B IR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

37 Segment Information (continued) 37 S EER )
Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current assets as I RE B E AR A MR LR N R 2
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except prepaid TLEE E IR E A METEATRLE - R
tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and other BCRAT 451 SR 4 ~ IR E Bl T & s M Hifth R
unallocated assets. I3 HL A BRAL -
Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current SERAEEE LS MR R AP EE 2
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position MEEE LR A HE SR A
except current income tax liabilities, bank and other borrowings, deferred tax &~ SRAT M oAt (5 3K ~ 48 A Bl I £ K HoAth
liabilities and other unallocated liabilities. E N WEL
Revenue and results PN E 35
Construction Insurance
and and Food and
engineering  investment Property beverage Others Total
R
BMTE  RERRE % ) Hib ki

HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000
T BT #WTx BWTx #WTx #%Tx

For the year ended 31 March 2014 REZB-NE=A=+—HIEE
REVENUE A
Total revenue AN 1,606,628 363,623 973,252 572,114 704,539 4,220,156
Inter-segment revenue PEZRIA - (45,446) (47,962) - (13,367) (106,775)
Group revenue ERA 1,606,628 318,177 925,290 572,114 691,172 4,113,381
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures FrifBE AR RAERERIA 2,120,165 - 118,217 86,608 2,052,686 4,577,766
Proportionate revenue from a joint venture BHEKE-MABELEL

eliminated B (30,424) = = - = (30,424)
Segment revenue iz L/ON 3,696,369 318,177 1,043,507 658,812 2,943,858 8,660,723
RESULTS 3
Segment profit/(loss) AERA /(B8 292,536 61,730 407,300 22,276 (41,569) 742,073
Included in segment profit/(loss) are: MERAL/ () B
Share of results of associates VR - UNGES 119,419 - 363 (2,745) (37,661) 79,376
Share of results of joint ventures frih A EEs 514 - (9,547) - - (9,033)
Depreciation and amortisation, net of capitalisation 7% J 8 - fFREA(L (6,339) (1,315) (61,451) (28,783) (7,279) (105,167)
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEMEZ N REEM = = 201,510 = = 201,510
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments {2 BE R EER - (10,532) - - - (10,532)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate TR — B A R K 2 B - - - (908) = (908)
Impairment loss on amount due from a joint venture  JEUT— [ & 1A Z SR - - (14,087) = = (14,087)
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value through #5372 (f5 AR i8S 2 4 A

profit or loss KEH EE = (863) = = = (863)
Write down of inventories to net realisable value, net  #{iffF &2 i ZHFH  F4 3 - = = 971 974
Tmpairment loss written back/(recognised) on trade 1%/ (REzR) % 5 KL AENL

and other debtors W2 ol (e 1,541 (118) (4,120) - 8 (2,689)
Impairment loss written back on retention receivables  [f] % fET i B4 2R 2 i (5 25 = = = = 25
Unrealised (loss)/gain on derivative financial EMELEZ ARS8

instruments (E1) /I ) 5,842 = 5,685 (1,011) 10,514
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

37 Segment Information (continued) 37 EE R )
Revenue and results (continued) WA B SR ()
Construction Insurance
and and Food and
engineering  investment Property beverage Others Total
HER
BHITR  RERRE VES B i Fitl
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z-=HEZA=+—HILEE
REVENUE A
Total revenue ETON 1,952,629 220,371 811,273 589,443 678,658 4,252,374
Inter-segment revenue MEZFIA - (9,782) (42,943) - (10,391) (63,116)
Group revenue SEBIA 1,952,629 210,589 768,330 589,443 668,267 4,189,258
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures B a AT RAEAERA 1,979,322 - 62,454 166,401 753,261 2,961,438
Proportionate revenue from a joint venture CHEKA-HagtE
eliminated AT ON (59,894) - - - - (59,894)
Segment revenue i 1IN 3,872,057 210,589 830,784 755,844 1,421,528 7,090,802
RESULTS *8
Segment profit/(loss) HERAL/ (BR) 301,614 96,037 919,154 (11,190) (38,658) 1,266,957
Included in segment profit/(loss) are: SR/ () -
Share of results of associates Rl - YNGE S 110,615 - 43,070 (32,203) (24,899) 96,583
Share of results of joint ventures Prih et ELs 872 - (19,483) - - (18,611)
Depreciation and amortisation, net of capitalisation  4fr & 488 - fUBREA{L (6,420) (1,064) (44,173) (30,269) (8,029) (89,955)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REmEZ AN - - 670,113 - - 670,113
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #)% ~ % Kk 2 B[ - - - (4,516) = (4,516)
Impairment loss on goodwill a7 WEER - - - (6,805) - (6,805)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments At E 7 R BN EEE - (4,639) - - - (4,639)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate T — e A IR 2 AR - - - (2,316) - (2,316)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through /A A2 (5 AR 3 38 2 4 & A9
profit or loss REB - 41,886 - - - 41,886
Write back/(down) of inventories to net 3% / () T B 2 T B IR >
realisable value, net i 124 - - - (7,835) (7,711)
Write down of properties for sale to net WA EWETTEREE
realisable value, net R - - (199) - - (199)
Impairment loss (recognised)/written back on trade (HERR) /T 8 5 B AR 2
and other debtors Ak (1,673) 56 (734) (1,229) (190) (3,772)
Impairment loss on retention receivables T B2 20 7 R (32,606) - - - - (32,606)
Unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments i/ BTH TR Z # &8s - 15,940 - 39,356 - 55,296
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Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management with

reference to market prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B IR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEE—IES A=t — B R

37 Segment Information (continued) 37 HHEER @)
Revenue and results (continued) We A B 4 (7)
Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group’s revenue in the RN B A 4E B A AR A IR R IR 22 U
consolidated income statement as follows: WIRMT -
2014 2013
e I Ei s
HK$’000 HK$’000
i SN T oo
Total segment revenue YRR 8,660,723 7,090,802
Add: Proportionate revenue from a joint o Bk —MAEE
venture eliminated A2 2 Fr el A 30,424 59,894
Less: Share of revenue of associates and W G AR A
joint ventures MEdRA
Construction and installation contracts HERLHELH 1,759,390 1,657,212
Fresh produce supply S B R VA 1 1,344,964 -
Sale of motor vehicles and others VR S HiAth 7 B 907,307 752,896
Provision of maintenance and other services BRI AR R H A IR 5 361,436 322,746
Food and beverage BR 86,698 166,401
Sales and leasing of properties Y2 E RS 81,986 24,001
Hotel operations Tk 4 35,985 38,182
4,577,766 2,961,438
Total revenue in the consolidated income REEA W R 2 B A
statement (note 5) (BfF3E5) 4,113,381 4,189,258
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as 43S0 P BRI v ) AR AR
follows:
2014 2013
e I Ei ZE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
i 8 aPTH T oo
Segment profit Gy JTs A 742,273 1,266,957
Unallocated corporate expenses KAOEASZES N (29,165) (26,767)
Finance income BB UA 14,355 14,606
Finance costs W52 (117,012) (74,403)
Profit before taxation 48 miT v A 610,451 1,180,393
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE_F-UE=ZH =+ —H IRFEE

37 Segment Information (continued)

156

37 BEER @)

Assets and liabilities Bk aE
Construction Insurance
and and Food and
engineering  investment Property beverage Others Total
HER

BMIE  RERGE LES B i ok

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

T B T BT B T
At31 March 2014 REZF-WE=A=1—R
ASSETS &
Segment assets LRV L4665 _LISZO00 9578653 329,720 _LI6LOI6 13499544
Included in segment assets are: NEEEA
Interests in associates il A 7 2 M 423,806 - 30,627 41,553 253,825 749,811
Interests in joint ventures =t ¥4 11,454 = 1,495,879 = = 1,507,333
Amounts due from associates FEBE A IR 3 14,593 - 38 20,222 283,269 318,122
Amounts due from joint ventures A atERR 64 - 128,735 - - 128,799
Additions to non-current assets (note) REFREEE () 8,209 96 158,685 13,126 7,372 187,488
LIABILITIES Ak
Segment liabilities g VU 1,003,350 655,327 608,506 98,467 64514 2,430,164
Included in segment liabilities is: MRS
Amount due to an associate T — ] A Rl 30K - - 29,372 - - 29,372
At 31 March 2013 RE-ZE—-=F=A=1—H
ASSETS 0
Segment assets SR B 1,127,915 1,069,473 8,879,226 369,499 893354 12,339,467
Included in segment assets are: IR
Interests in associates Pt s A 2 s 382,145 - 165,525 6,683 419,161 973,514
Interests in joint ventures frifia ek i 10,941 - 1,012,188 - - 1,023,129
Amounts due from associates TN & A R R 3K 12,271 - 3 18,748 2,779 33,830
Amounts due from joint ventures TEle A 8 R 78 - 377,987 - - 378,065
Additions to non-current assets (note) WEF B (M) 10,619 112 1,050,244 49,613 41,727 1,152,315
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities NEAR 1,070,565 509,319 231,745 99,945 77,228 1,988,802
Note: BT

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including interests

in associates and joint ventures) and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 Segment Information (continued)

Assets and liabilities (continued)
Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and liabilities is
provided as follows:

fof B B s e M i
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

37 HEER (50

W & £ (40
SR e N (R R R

2014 2013

e I Ei ZE A

HK$’000 HK$’000

i SN T oo

Segment assets Iy 13,499,544 12,339,467
Prepaid tax TEAHBL A 6,282 5,153
Unallocated bank balances and cash RO TLERAT R AT L4 383,115 422,207
Deferred tax assets IR JIE 5 T 33,856 26,323
Other unallocated assets Hofth 2R 43 i & i 2,629 2,629
Total assets g 13,925,426 12,795,779
2014 2013

ZE g —E =4

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T

Segment liabilities B 2,430,164 1,988,802
Current income tax liabilities A AT AS B B A 53,591 55,990
Bank and other borrowings SRAT S HABA 3K 4,067,055 4,322,791
Deferred tax liabilities % AL I B A 262,421 185,510
Other unallocated liabilities oA 40 ic & & 35,396 31,644
Total liabilities AR 6,848,627 6,584,737

Geographical information

The Group’s operations in construction and engineering business are mainly
located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Australia and Macau. Insurance and
investment business is mainly conducted in Hong Kong. Property business
is mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, US, Canada and
Singapore. Food and beverage business is carried out in Hong Kong, Australia
and Macau. Other businesses are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, US,
Canada and Thailand.

The associates’ and joint ventures’ operations in construction and engineering
business are mainly located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and
Singapore. Property business is mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Food and beverage business is carried out in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. Other businesses are carried out in Mainland China and
Australia.

b [

A S [ 5 R MR R 2E S AR -
B A~ S B R P AR o DR PR R A 2
TEAEREE - YT LEAETE P
B A~ SR IR BRI A o AR AR
EBALTW - U BB PR - AR T
B ~ SRR~ IR AR BT

Wi 2 T B A S 2 A S R AR
A P P B n
F o W 265 T2 A A s S v I o AR A
BRI 7 s B B TR A o LAt SRS
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37 Segment Information (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

37 BEER @)

Hi [ BB (4)

Segment revenue by geographical areas

B 5 2 AR
Company Associates Company Associates

and and joint 2014 and and joint 2013

subsidiaries ventures Total subsidiaries ventures Total

ARk BEAAE %N KAk BEARAR  ZF-=F

B 4 ] HERE ik WA HEbE s
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 % HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 %
ERFr  ERFx BRI Al W T wET LA
Hong Kong Fits 2,213,545 486,850 2,700,395 31 2,864,052 520,414 3,384,466 48
Mainland China R 3t 64,505 2,365,031 2,429,536 28 52,777 2,124,392 2,177,169 31
Australia M 175,991 1,344,964 1,520,955 17 179,967 - 179,967 2
Macau T 570,681 47,402 618,083 7 284,853 11,590 296,443 4
Us * 587,943 - 587,943 7 366,194 - 366,194 5
Canada JIIE YN 396,526 - 396,526 5 352,384 - 352,384 5
Singapore Hinsk 12,880 302,552 315,432 4 12,576 244,610 257,186 4
Thailand % 72,442 - 72,442 1 62,443 - 62,443 1

Others HoAth 18,868 543 19,411 - 14,012 538 14,550
4,113,381 4,547,342 8,660,723 100 4,189,258 2,901,544 7,090,802 100

! The proportionate revenue from a joint venture is eliminated.

The Group maintains healthy and balanced portfolio of customer basis. No

customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group for the

year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current assets

other than financial instruments (including interests in associates and joint

ventures) and deferred tax assets analysed by geographical areas:

bORE MR AR B A T -

AL R P 2 B P MA - BEC
F—PUEZH =+ — B IRAFERE > MRS
A SE [ 2 AL AR 10% B LA | (TR —=

) -

W

VUR 2 BR BB TR (B T A A m S 5
e Mg ) S AE R I 7 DL A% [ ) 23
Z IR E) A AR A (E AT -

Non-current assets

B & A
2014 2013
R ZE -
HK$’000 HK$000
W T T
Hong Kong s 3,655,977 3,454,045
Mainland China Fp R A b 1,596,188 1,438,678
UsS FH 1,298,459 869,407
Singapore S 523,946 507,617
Canada YN 163,826 184,035
Macau L 25,645 27,697
Australia T 11,749 13,201
Others HiAth 20,095 19,640
7,295,885 6,514,320
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38 Impairment testing of Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business

combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are allocated,

at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from such intangible

assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 had

been allocated as follows:

38

bk 1 B 25 i M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_F-E=ZH=+—H ILFE

P B Lt S8 ¥ 7 - A Bk
HEAT W WS A DA 2 T

RELRE ~ WA~ A MR B B At T A S R

Eﬂiiﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%’ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂ}%‘?*%%Zfﬁﬁé
AL B E AR R S

4+ Ao & aZIRHECESRMT -

Favourable
Goodwill License  Trademark leases Others
[k T (i1 A HAls
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
w0 Wi Wi Wi T
Cost BAR
Construction and engineering A T AR
— roads, drainage and waterworks — Bk~ BEH BOKH LR - 26,534 - - -
Insurance and investment TRbg K& - - - - 5,215
Property %%
— cold storage and public bonded T R e R R B
warehouse (note a) (WEE a) 66,027 3,000 - - -
- senior housing (note b) — R A (MEkb 569,105 - - = 5,199
Food and beverage Bk
— restaurant and bar (note c) — R SR (FF T o) 183,880 - 23,776 11,855 =
Others HoAh - - - - 4,530
819,012 29,534 23,776 11,855 14,944
Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss 2 518 WA 16 18
Construction and engineering A T AR
— roads, drainage and waterworks —H B~ RN ROKE LR = (26,534) = = =
Insurance and investment 1B K G = = = = (5,205)
Property %%
— cold storage and public bonded T R e R R B
warehouse (note a) (WEE a) (1,461) (3,000) - - -
— senior housing (note b) —GH g (HEED) - - - = (1,339)
Food and beverage Bk
— restaurant and bar (note c) — R R (R ) (135,808) - (6,298) (9,633) =
Others HoAh - - - - (1,901)
(137,269) (29,534) (6,298) (9,633) (8,445)
Net book value at 31 March 2014 N_F—-NEZA=Z+—H
Z IR EHE 681,743 — 17,478 2,222 6,499

HIEREBHERA R
—E—-OER
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38 Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other Intangible

160

38 P B At TR B A 2 WA A

Assets (continued) (%)
Favourable
Goodwill License  Trademark leases Others
7 A iR 73 1 AHHE Hith
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T i T T BT
Cost A
Construction and engineering A R TR
- roads, drainage and waterworks — M R BOKE TR - 26,534 - - -
Insurance and investment b K %G - - - - 4,743
Property L/ES
— cold storage and public bonded — VR S SN AR B
warehouse (note a) (i3t a) 66,027 3,000 - - -
- senior housing (note b) —G# g (HEED) 569,105 - - - -
Food and beverage Bk
— restaurant and bar (note c) — B E R (P EE ) 183,880 - 23,776 11,855 -
Others HAt - - - - 4,530
819,012 29,534 23,776 11,855 9,273
Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss 2 518/ WA 16 18
Construction and engineering HE R TR
- roads, drainage and waterworks —HEBE R BOKE LA - (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment Wb Mg - - - - (3,598)
Property /S
— cold storage and public bonded — R BUR R A RRBLR
warehouse (note a) (FtEEa) (1,461) (3,000) - - -
— senior housing (note b) — 2 E A (D) - - - - -
Food and beverage Bk
— restaurant and bar (note c) — S JE R TR (R ) (135,808) - (4,713) (6,669) -
Others Hit - - - - (1,901)
(137,269) (29,534) (4,713) (6,669) (5,499)
Net book value at 31 March 2013 R_-Z—-=4=ZH=1+—H
Z Wi 681,743 - 19,063 5,186 3,774

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there

are indications that they might be impaired.

The Group tests other intangible assets for impairment whenever there is an

indication that they might be impaired.

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired

require estimations of the higher of the value in use or fair value less cost

to sell. Both approaches require the entity to estimate the future cash flows

expected to arise from CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

present value.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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38 Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets (continued)
The recoverable amounts of CGUs in restaurant and bar business are
determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable
amounts of CGUs for other businesses are determined from value-in-use
calculations approach.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate the
discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs.

Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Management determined
budgeted growth rates and gross margins based on past performance and
market expectation. The discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

(a) Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business

Goodwill of HK$64,566,000 (2013: HK$64,566,000) is allocated to
the Group’s cold storage and public bonded warehouse business. The
estimated recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use
approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year period.
Cash flows beyond the period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate
per annum and a 9% discount rate per annum.

(b) Senior housing business

Goodwill of HK$569,105,000 (2013: HK$569,105,000) and lease-in-
place, after amortisation, of HK$3,860,000 (2013: nil) are allocated to
the Group’s senior housing business. The estimated recoverable amount
is determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering one to three-year period. Cash flows beyond the
period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate per annum and a 9.2%
discount rate per annum.

(c) Restaurant and bar business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$48,072,000 (2013: HK$48,072,000),
trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$17,478,000 (2013:
HK$19,063,000) and favourable leases, after amortisation, of
HK$2,222,000 (2013: HK$5,186,000) are allocated to the Group’s
restaurant and bar business. The estimated recoverable amount
is determined based on fair value less costs to sell approach. The
calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash
flows beyond the period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per
annum up to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the
sixth year to fifteenth year and a 15% discount rate per annum.

fof B B s e M i
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-NE=A=+—HILFE

38 PR B At TP B A 2 WA B

(%)

A HE T N SE R 2 B4 A A A 2 AT i [l <
W SRR 5 AR R A R E > =
T A SE S 2 B4 7 A B A 2w i el G
T P R R RE

% WA O IR 2 T B R A A A RS B
A~ IR A T B AR B AR 2 T S ) -
L A AE S LRI 45 8 R I (] 4B
(B BB A B AT B 2 B R A o

T A5 4B T B4 B AR 22 538 A AR 488 A 16 481 T
T R A WA 2 ST E o R ARS8
T 2 B R i Uy T 06 TR R R R B A
Ao JIT B A Ty BRBUAR > 07 S e BELAR B 3L
B B e 2 R SR

(a) LA RN BRBA X

e 64,566,000 70 ( & — = 4F ¢ ki
64,566,000 JT ) Z P 2B oy it AL F 2
8 T T B FRARTBL A A o ARl i
[ia] 5 B 4 A AR (B L T - AR
BARPEE B AL 2 — MM BT E 2
PRBIAE B &M B TEN - SRR H e
it 12 AR R AT 300 18 12 238 T 900 Fl BLAE 224
e

(b) REPEHEH

# #569,105,000 0 ( — & — = 4 i
569,105,000 7C ) 2 T B % 1 85 1% ok
3,860,000 7C ( —&F — =A4F - M%) Z B4R
WO B AR 2 L e - Ak
AT A (] 4 KE T 4 (0 P A (0 o
B AERBEEMEMZ Y — 2 =41
PABS TR 2 BRBIAR B A i s ) - A
IR & B4 0 & 1 ) B4 4% B R R K
9.206 HEBIAF SR ML o

(c) ‘B ME BTN 35

W £ 148,072,000 T ( L F — =
AE 7 548,072,000 00 ) 2 M EE ~ fHE B
1% e 117,478,000 70 ( & — = 4F ¢
19,063,000 70 ) 2 P A K B B A% T M
2,220,000 JC ( — & — =4 #:155,186,000
TG 2 A IR 0 i 28 A 4R o) 2 2 e
TN ZERS o AGFE AT In] 5 B 5 4% A (B
FUBR B R A L T o BB AR
G A 2 — A W I ES T 2 PR BLAR BL
SR TEN o ARV IR 2 A W R
FAF 390 W R R H 258 WA SE S 2
55 b AR 2 IR R K 15% B BLAE R
o

HEEBEEERAT o]
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39 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management

39 FRLARREMANBEZHE

Directors’ emoluments HRME
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: A RS TR ST
2014
e S 112
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits  contribution Total
Bk BT B
HHM S Ho At 15 A Z itk A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
b aTH b TR Wt W T
Executive Directors AT S
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) JE IRV (2 /) = 11,930 = 11,930
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and A

Managing Director) (] 3 5 e S AR - 14,838 522 15,360
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy L[] 4%

Managing Director) () # A HE) - 12,353 351 12,704
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEAEIE - 4,200 240 4,440
Ho Chung Leung ] 77 R - 2,700 158 2,858
Ma Chi Wing g - 3,000 150 3,150
Lily Chow JEESTE ] - 1,500 113 1,613
Non-Executive Directors JEPITESR
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph* JE B A # 200 = — 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* HRpHE 200 = = 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* Wl 250 - - 250
Poon Chung Kwong* ootk 200 - - 200
Ko Chan Gock, William = B 100 - - 100

950 50,521 1,534 53,005
2013
E =
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
s X Y/ NGE
R 4 oAt A8 | Z kK A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T oo BT T T
Executive Directors WAT#E S
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) JE IR (2= /) - 11,913 - 11,913
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and e

Managing Director) () T e AR AE ) - 15,000 473 15,473
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy S

Managing Director) (f 3 H A ) - 11,000 315 11,315
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEIHETE - 3,200 165 3,365
Ho Chung Leung o] 2 4 - 2,600 150 2,750
Ma Chi Wing B - 2,000 105 2,105
Lily Chow JEIFA - 1,400 105 1,505
Non-Executive Directors FEBITESR
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph? JE I A # 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* RpHE 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* s 250 - - 250
Poon Chung Kwong® (note) Wt (k) 52 - - 52
Ko Chan Gock, William =B 100 - - 100

802 47,113 1,313 49,228
# Independent Non-Executive Director # FESr JESATE S
Note:  Appointed on 28 December 2012 BPar o = — AR ] N HERAE -
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39 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)
Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals include four (2013: four) Directors, details
of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2013: one) highest paid individuals are as follows:

39 FELAHMRAETHABZHE
(%)

1 B 1 <

FIEA iU NS RO P e Sl

g

24) R W ZMEFHE T RS E o S2h
THB A (ZF 24 %) Bra A

ez M A
2014 2013
ZB s CE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Hrar o RS R HAb AR F) 2,183 1,974
Performance-based bonus Y RBLEE I 2 fEAL 3,706 2,532
Contributions to retirement scheme JEARFET# 2 A3 57 95
5,946 4,601
The emoluments of the remaining one (2013: one) highest paid individuals Hp—2 (ZF— =40 — &) sz A

fall within the following bands.

ARG REE Oy AR o

2014 2013
- S I11Ei =

HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 % 4,000,001 JC — # ¥ 5,000,000 JG - 1

HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 5% 5,000,001 JC — # ¥ 6,000,000 JG 1 -

1 1

The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees also
represent only benefits paid to the Group’s key management during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

bt 1 S A BT A 2 < I B

BE-EFWNER-FE-ZF=H=+—

H

A o AN A ] A B S A 2 A A o

Ht+EREmARA
—T-mEH
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40 Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

40 SRR EME

REE-EZA =+ —H - AEFMEED
W AT ) 2 WS PRI BAR LA

2014 2013

R &

HK$’000 HK$’000

i aPTH T

Banking facilities granted to associates RTEE AT Z M7 EE 98,818 119,255

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture BZr—HAaEEtEZRITHEE 136,235 112,975

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner % T —# A& B2 RITHEE 168,300 168,300
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities HTHRITHI TYENA THRZ

granted to certain buyers of properties FE AR A5 B IS R 158,313 -

561,666 400,530

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

REE-EZA=+—H - AARHEED
) A A ) 2 P8 PR BAR B

2014 2013

- kiR &k

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries T E AT Z AT EE 1,650,401 2,245,947

Banking facilities granted to associates 2T H S AR 2 SR AT 5 98,818 119,255

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture BT —HEENEZBITEE 136,235 112,975

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner % T —Z&& B2 H|ITEE 168,300 168,300
Performance bonds and demand bonds of R 5 2 FIAR 8 T A 49 2 TR K R 8 I

subsidiaries under certain contracts RIERE 84,963 42,101

2,138,717 2,688,578

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s share of contingent liabilities of its joint

AT EIAEZ ] A H o AR A

ventures was as follows: GEMCEZSRAMNT
2014 2013
e e
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T BT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage STHRITHE T REREZ
facilities granted to certain buyers of VISER T H R 2 s
the joint ventures’ properties [ERERINERTS 25,318 24,466
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Commitment 41 7K
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had commitment as follows: AR = =+ —H o AREEZKYE
LI
2014 2013
= S 11 E£ 3 —F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT T
Contracted but not provided for in the R F I H O & AERAE
consolidated financial statements in respect of 4G MBS IR R N FHE Z R IS
— acquisition of plant and equipment . INEY S 1,797 1,716
— a property development project — — {2 RIEA 346,477 472,906
348,274 474,622
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of R 2t R IE 5 SRR
a property development project REETT B R RS 1,757,417 1,782,282
2,105,691 2,256,904
As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s share of commitment of its joint ventures AT E-AEZH =+ —H » AEFEPTEHE
was as follows: GECEZIRIEWT
2014 2013
R —F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T
Contracted but not provided for TR A H R FHR 113,875 142,581
Authorised but not contracted for B HEE R ZL) 430,971 653,705
544,846 796,286

Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall
due as follows:

42 BEME
A5 1 2 AR AL
% 45 B A L MR AR T SR 2 AL 0
T 26 o A ok 2 B AL % 4 8 L0

Joan

B

2014 2013

B TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

il ¥ e

Within one year — AR 85,280 78,754
In the second to fifth year inclusive BOEREN (B EME) 97,156 141,554
Over five years F 27,999 8,215
210,435 228,523

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic rentals,
and do not include commitments for additional rental payable (contingent
rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by applying pre-
determined percentages to future sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the amount of such
additional rentals.

E A B R E IR AT SR SN
TRARAMEATR & (SRS () ZKiE
PR FEAMIE 4 — ARTE T R A Bl B 2 TR E 4
LUl 25 HHL B 2 BEAHH i e o RIS T RE

HHC R RHAME 8 2 R o

HIEBREEERATF

—z-meg 100
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42 Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

As at 31 March 2014, investment properties and properties for sale
with carrying values of HK$3,565,053,000 and HK$37,403,000 (2013:
HK$3,257,253,000 and HK$37,402,000) respectively were rented out under
operating leases. These properties have committed tenants within the next
five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods is as

42

BEME @

AR AR 2y AL

R oFE—IE=ZH =4 —H > UEEHEH
T 2 BE Y 3 I o 85 W 25 2 SR TH(E 43 Tl 75 s
5 3,565,053,000 7C M ¥ ¥ 37,403,000 G ( — &
— =AF ¢ #WE3,257,253,0007T M # 1537,402,000
JG) o WA W) SE A AR R R R R AR N AR
F o AR A T 50 45 A T AR BB R AT 1 2 s

follows: R BT A R A 2 B S R
2014 2013
R T
HK$’000 HK$’000
i aPTH T
Within one year —4E A 123,547 89,713
In the second to fifth year inclusive BOEREN (EEEREWE) 74,026 100,300
197,573 190,013

43 Retirement Benefits 43 BHEF

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit
of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF
Schemes”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group and in funds under the control of trustees. The
ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both employees
and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic
salary, depending on the length of service with the Group. For members of
the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per
employee, at a maximum of HK$1,250 per month during the year ended 31
March 2014, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in countries or
locations where the Group operates. The Group is required to make defined
contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage or sum of the monthly
payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, there
were no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
ORSO Schemes and which would be available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years. No forfeited contributions utilised in this manner
during the year end 31 March 2014 (2013: nil). As at 31 March 2014,
contributions of HK$2,527,000 (2013: HK$2,337,000) due in respect of the
reporting period were paid over to various schemes in April 2014.
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AT 2w AT A T B (A AT # ) o
w2 AR AR 2 PR A -
M5 ST FR A AT BE o gk ARt il - iR
B RAAE B R B 2 5% % 7.5% 2 i
PR BT R B AR S 2 AR T o AR
B AmMERE e WEREFRSHA
B2 5%EE (HE - F—WE=H=1—H Ik
AR B A 2 il 1,250 70) il iR At
E i AR -

A A S 22 B A 1] R S 2 B AR i [
Z AR BURARE T o ARG R L R B H
P 2 T 4 He sl F A S E R

it 25 A 4 w1 ) B B AL T A S e T A
L V2 ik 3 mT 1 25 A 45 180 ek M A5 L S 2
e AT —PUAE R B —ZAEZA =+ —
H oo S 4 R 2B 4 T 381 B 5 R ST 2 2 4 1
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44 Related Party Transactions 44 AREANLZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with related AR BT B+ 2 EEA G FEE W

parties are as follows:

2014 2013
ZEB g ZE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
i SN T oo
Contract income from a joint venture KEH—HEEMEZALIA 60,419 118,973
Contract services fee to an associate T — s " 2 A HIRE 2 A (812) (6,997)
Management fee income from associates (note 6) A B BN\ 2 BRI (i Tk 6) 30,022 28,478
Management fee income from joint ventures KEEGEMNEZEMEIA
(note 6) (Ff5E6) 3,426 1,826
Maintenance fee to an associate BT MBS A A2 RS (5,678) (5,128)
Management fee to an associate T — MBS A EZ EHE T (370) (375)
Building management fee income from an associate ¢ [ — [H] B8 /8 7] 2 B B A 1,122 860
Rental income from an associate A — W A\ 2 Fl A A 20,917 19,308
Rental expenses to an associate e i) =/ i R vl (145) (152)
Sales and marketing services income from A — T A E 2 8
an associate (note 6) G HE BB U (B3t 6) 23,538 22,224
Secondment fee income from an associate SR i) - /N - A N 1,135 1,100
Sales of food and beverage to associates SHETBE AR 2B 6,282 2,895
Insurance premium from associates SR /N R 6,230 5,602
The above transactions are entered at terms mutually agreed between all Al 3E 5 TR B 45 O TR e 2 ARAKET SL o
parties involved.
The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key AT (P S IRy A ] - A B
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 39 to the HCE ) Z TR AR G BRI T 39 o

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE—

—PE=H =+ —H IR

45 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Cash generated from operations

45

& Bl i R WGk

(a) RHBEZBE

2014 2013
- SIS R =4
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T WET T
Profit before taxation I A0 T Vi ) 610,451 1,180,393
Adjustments for: Bk
Share of results of associates JUTA B O W SE AR (79,376) (96,583)
Share of results of joint ventures }ﬂf{ﬁA%ﬁ%%ﬁf 9,033 18,611
Interest income from bank deposits SRATAE S FLE A (14,355) (14,606)
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and ﬁE{TLi&?E TR FABAE R
bank and other borrowings FE 117,012 74,403
Dividend income from investments LYEEiS =Pl 3sN 0N (32,360) (44,931)
Depreciation iy 98,090 84,432
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR B R T A - 26
Amortisation of other intangible assets FoAb TR 5 7,077 5,497
Increase in fair value of investment S LY/E FA/N W]
properties A (201,510) (670,113)
Loss on disposal of investment properties R EY L R - 300
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - RE KA
equipment Pl & (9,010) (157)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B B A ) 2 1R 787 6,169
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales A AT L 2 SRy
investments i 4 (42) (289)
Gain on investments at fair value 2N SRS A 4 2L
through profit or loss T&i%tlﬁuﬁ (22,551) (42,503)
Gain on derivative financial instruments A TR 2 i s (14,161) (35,587)
Write down of inventories to net O AT 8 2 n] S B
realisable value, net pEiEe) 974 7,711
Write down of properties for sale to T B ) 2 & AT B B
net realisable value, net T - 199
Impairment loss on property, plant LUE DN Y& v
and equipment B = 4,516
Impairment loss on goodwill [k FACREN Fc - 6,805
Impairment loss on available-for-sale CIRE R a'§ <yl
investments B 1H 10,532 4,639
Impairment loss on amount due from JRE i — [T 5 Rl IR R 2
an associate B 908 2,316
Impairment loss on amount due from JEM— A &8 IR
a joint venture A 14,087 -
Impairment loss on trade and other 2 5y Sy A REYS IR R 2
debtors RN 7 2,689 3,772
Impairment loss (written back)/recognised (3% 18]) TR IRE IS AR B ZIE
on retention receivables WAE R (25) 32,606
Operating cash flows before movements R A T 2 A Bl
in working capital NS 498,250 527,626

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A W B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

45 FRA Bl R LM
(#0)
(a) SKEBEZBE (4)

45 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

2014 2013
e S 112 —E =
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi Tt oo
Changes in working capital R )
Net decrease/(increase) in investments N FEF AR 35 R 2
at fair value through profit or loss &> (o) AR 107,513 (70,432)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories & () 24,886 (34,777)
Decrease in properties for sale FEYERE D 2,579 53,065
Increase in properties under development TR R E R (229,217) (92,034)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits PSR ~ A7 4% 4 &
and prepayments FEAFFOE (8 > (112,121) 327,835
Increase in amounts due from JE WA 2 T % SR A
non-controlling interests B33 (20,406) -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due TJ‘EAQE’JIﬁﬂgﬁgF’ WeH 2z
from customers for contract work SIERD () 4,984 (70,066)
Net increase in derivative financial fiTd EJH'%I,\
instruments b D llIREE (4,788) (19,396)
Decrease in amount due to a JREASS B — JE A I £
non-controlling interest MR D (490) (1,499)
Decrease in amounts due to customers WMAK TR F S T2
for contract work FIE R (33,116) (39,982)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, bills payable,  MEfTHRER - MEATZZ9E - A A4S K
deposits and accruals TESRE B () 300,352 (61,755)
Increase/(decrease) in unearned insurance I GUE A B o R oA 388 R e fdh A4
premiums and unexpired risk reserves wom (k) 81,018 (35,439)
Increase in outstanding insurance claims R P A5 B 2% 1 35 91,396 74,094
Decrease in deferred income PEIE YA D (378) (1,882)
Exchange difference ifE b, 2% %5 (2,899) 3,400
Cash generated from operations K B Bl 4 707,563 558,758

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (b) Wl Bt B 2B %
(i) Acquisition of senior housing business (1) W EBEa Y

Pursuant to the agreements dated 4 June 2013 and 1 July 2013,
the Group acquired two businesses operating senior housing
communities separately in North Carolina, US from independent
third parties at cash considerations of US$4,500,000 and
US$4,150,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$34,875,000 and
HK$32,163,000) respectively. The acquisitions were completed on
12 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 respectively.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 11 October 2012, the Group
acquired a business operating senior housing communities in North
Carolina, US from independent third parties at an aggregated cash
consideration of US$119,623,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$928,274,000). The acquisition was completed on 21 December
2012.

W T —=ZF AN K%
—ZAE-LH B2k AL
B N7 B = 0 WS T TE A 1 AR
FEILRBRMN Z Z2BiwFE
B Bl 4a RAE 5 Al £ 4,500,000 3
JC K 4,150,000 F& TG (FH 7 4 i 1
34,875,000 JC M #5 ¥ 32,163,000 JT) ©
W%$A%%M:ﬁ~i$ﬁﬁ
T H R TFE A —H SRR

W -_F— " +A+—HZH
HE o AN ) B ST S = AR
AV 5 10 AL R B AN M 2 % B
o BLA MAE 55 119,623,000 3
I (FHE 7 %075 15 928,274,000 7T ) e
RN —F - AT
A H SR

HIEREBHERA R
—E—-OER
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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45 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)

(%)

(i) Acquisition of senior housing business (continued)

45 iy Bl i i R B R

(b) WO B Hhy 5 36 5 (4)
() W ER &SRB (B

2014 2013
ZZ LR TER A
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: W A A 2 S A
Cash paid CAT B4 67,038 928,274
Fair value of net assets acquired SR E PR E A O
(as shown below) (T 3CHR) (67,038) (369,422)
Goodwill arising from the acquisition (note 16) i = JE & A 2 2 (B 5E 16) - 558,852

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the dates of

P WS B 3T T BT ) R

acquisition were as follows: AR A AT

2014 2013

B TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y ~ R S (Mt 15) 61,845 370,990
Intangible assets (note 17) I E (Kt 17) 5,193 -
Inventories & = 349
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JREMCHR X ~ A7 e 4 S FELART - 6,961
Bank balances and cash SRATHS AT S Bl = 70
Creditors, deposits and accruals TEATEE K ~ fE A4 N e 2 = (4,284)
Deferred income PRI A = (4,664)
67,038 369,422

The goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired

business.

PR R BSOS 2 A RE I A

2014 2013
- S 1 3 R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T
Acquisition-related expenses WA AR 3] 2
(included in administrative expenses) (FEAATEC 1) 4,613 25,839
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: {2 B 40 15 48 -
Cash consideration paid E AT 4 ACE 67,038 928,274
Bank balances and cash acquired O ASRAT 5547 M Bl 4 — (70)
67,038 928,204
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

45 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 45 HEBREREERMEE
(continued) (%)

(b) Wl Bt BB (4)
(i) # #% CAAM Limited ([ CAAM )

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)
(ii) Share subscriptions of CAAM Limited (“CAAM”)

The Group subscribed 5,000,000 ordinary shares (of which 500
and 4,999,500 ordinary shares were alloted on 12 October 2012
and 8 April 2013 respectively, in total representing approximately
38.46% of all the issued ordinary shares) and 29,471,104 preference
shares (of which 28,143,000 and 1,328,104 preference shares were
alloted on 8 April 2013 and 16 April 2013, in total representing
100% of all the issued preference shares) of CAAM at aggregated
cash considerations of AUDS5,000,000 and AUD29,471,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,450,000 and HK$238,421,000)
respectively. The preference shares are convertible into ordinary
shares of CAAM on a 1:1 basis.

CAAM also completed its acquisition of 70% equity interest in
Moraitis Group Pty Limited (together with its subsidiaries, being a
fruit and vegetable grower-aggregator and a fresh produce supplier
in Australia) from independent third parties on 8 April 2013.

The ordinary shares in CAAM are accounted for as interest in
an associate and the convertible preference shares in CAAM are
accounted for as available-for-sale investments.

(iii) Disposal of 20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings)

Limited

Pursuant to the shareholders” agreement dated 7 July 2010, the
Group had a put option in relation to the disposal of its 20% equity
interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited at an exercise price
of HK$81,660,000. The Group had exercised its put option and the
transaction was completed on 11 June 2013.

4y

2 4E 1 2 52 I CAAM 1Y 5,000,000 /1
W (Rt = E A
HE -ZF—=Z4MANHE#ER
B 500 B % 4,999,500 HE T 4 % 0 &
LAk T A B 8 AT 3 4 1 4 38.46%)
129,471,104 B £ 5 B (4 Bl it —
ET—ZAEN A NH K E— =
PO H 75 H S A B 28,143,000 Ak
1,328,104 BB e > A LAk 235
CBEAT RS ) » R4 A0 2
£55,000,000 18 JC K% 29,471,000 1 JT
(CRR 7 4 5 1 40,450,000 7T J% it
238,421,000 7 ) ° iS5G 1
5t 1 E A S AR CAAM (933 %

hZFE—Z=FMHNH > CAAMIR
£ 52 AR ) M8 52 56 = J5 YR Moraitis
Group Pty Limited ( % [7] 3 [ff J&§ 2>
) o TR DAY B 2R A A B
B AR MAIERT) 22 709 A

A CAAM 1) 32 88 JiE A 25 i A W 2
oS ElZ SR o O CAAM R 1 46
B IE AR B ATt 4 2 i o

(iii) i Pacific Coffee (Holdings)

Limited 2 20% B HE

Wi =T LA L H 2 B
i o ACAE L B DR Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited 2 20% % HE #E 45
FRNHIRE > 1715 2 5 W 81,660,000
I o AL E AT ER I I - 22
BB BTN A T HEM o
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46 Principal Subsidiaries

46 FZME AW

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation  shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
AR H A
ARARHC#I Lt/
Raigkith,/ ORI Bk /i k2 itk
ARAH HRMHRHE i1 A Tk /MR Tetrg THhER ZHA  EEEH
Directly Indirectly
fif ik
% % %
Cafe Deco Franchise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar and
ik il 100 restaurant franchising
BRI L RES
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary USS1,000 1,000 - 60 40 Investment holding
Hong Kong T 1L000 T biactalie
ERgmAE/
i
Cafe Deco Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
B i 1007 AR LE
Cafe Deco Macau Limited Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 2 - 60 40 Restaurantand bar
WMRREARAR ik it 25,000 1 RRERE
Changchun New Star Universe Sheng Mainland China N/A RMB583,871,428 N/A - 9% 4 Property development
Chi Real Estate Development T TR R HE 583,871,428 T MER VEZ3
Co., Ltd. (note a)
REMETRHREENS
HREMAT (i)
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Supply and installation of
Hong Kong Limited &k il ik PN aluminium windows
HE (BT FEARAR and curtain walls
A RER Rz %
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Supply and installation of
Limited (note b) b il 100 aluminium windows
Rk GATR) ARAR (Hkb) Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 - and curtain walls
413 B BERREZ ERE R
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common CADS101 200 - 100 - Saleand servicing of
fngx i YEy v automobiles
Rt R I
Chevalier (Building Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Supply and installation
Engineering) Limited (note b) ik L 100 of building materials
H (BHIE) ARAR (kb Deferred HKS2 2 - 100 - BEMBLERRE
it o
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

bk 1 B 25 i M
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

46 FEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
AR R A
RARHC T CH#fikk/
RasaEm/ [ giyEr: Tk /GEMRE A 2 MR
B BENBIRE s by B Tk /REME A RAr#H HEAM ZHAL FEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Wik
% % %
Chevalier Cali Holding (Cal) Inc. Us Common US84,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 - Grocery trading
£ i L0100% HERY
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Mainland China N/A RMB250,000,000 N/A - 100 - Investment holding and
Management Limited (note ¢) HE I Sl CEH250,000,000 6 RN provision of menagement
L (08 frEER service
FIRAT (ko) BERR R EERR
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CADS101 200 - 100 - Sale and servicing of
fnx L U Eyw automobiles
Ve RAE I
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 7 35 Operation of a cold storage
Logistics Limited i b R T warehouse and logistic
ERERTARAT busies
BERWAERIRER
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.67 033 Building construction and
Company Limited Fil i {8 60,500,000 1 maintenance
L (B AR BTRERRE
Chevalier Construction (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 - Building construction
Limited (note b} EE i 11,0007 hyes
HLRE (BB ARAT (i) Deferted HK$10,000 1000 - 100 -
41 10,000
Chevalier (Corporate Management) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Provision of corporate
Limited ik i I management service
HEL(XER ARAR RECEERE
Chevalier Development (§) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary §$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 - Property investment
Ak i 2,500,000 T HIESI4
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 - Installation of electrical
B (BEIR ARAA Eit T 169,200,000 7C and mechanical equipment
and provision of project
management service
FREER M AL
T F
HtEREEERAR

—E—NFR
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

174

46 TEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation  shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
TR
RARHC T CRilA/
st/ CH# TR Tk /G MR 2 MR
Wil e L PR 51 A Tk /i RA Tt TR ZHA  EEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Wk
% % %
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Peso8,750,000 87,500 - 100 - Waste disposal treatment
FrE it 8750000 EFEA K services
BARMERER
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 - Environmental engineering
At Gl ARAR FE it T 148,600,000 7 RRTE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - - Insurance brokerage
et (R ARAR (33 i 841,000,000 il
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - - Insurance underwriting
HLRBARAT Ei L it4200,000,000 e
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Trading and servicing of
R TRARAR Fil T T computers and business
machines
EMRTERRE S R
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 - Trading of computers and
(note d) (HzEd) R L 18,980,000 %5k business machines
Preference BAHTI,020,000 10,200 - 100 - THRRERGEA
% 1,020,000 %5
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 2 - 100 - Building construction
HE (RM) HRAT "M L VP8 100,000 7 and installation of
air-conditioning systems
and aluminium windows
and curtain walls
BTRERERNRELR
RELEE
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Network systems and
R (HERE) AIRAH i tid LI solution services
EEEEV G
Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Trading of telecommunication
Limited K L 15,000,000 %5 equipment
LGy
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
i B B R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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46 FEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
TR
ARMRFHCES CREMA/
RasaEm/ [ giyEr: T/ iR AR 2 MR
B BENBIRE s by B Tk /REME A RAr#H HEAM ZHAL FEEH
Directly Indirectly
B itk
% % %
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 - Trading of computers and
HE(HERS) ARAH Bl il 100,000 78 office equipment
LV EINE ()]
Chevalier Portland Laurelhurst, LLC US N/A 552,000,000 N/A - 100 - Operation of senior housing
#H Nl 2,000,000 TER BRIERE
Chevalier Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
Limited (note b) Fik il 18 360,000,000 1C investment
JEERREARAR (Hitd) Deferred HKS1 51 - 100 - DEERRNE
it o1
Chevalier Property Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Property management and
Limited (note b) Fib i HHE100 T security services
AL ERIEEEARAR (R3] Deferred HK$1,002 1002 - 100 - EEERRIR
4 11,0027
CIH (BVT) Limited British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordinary Uss1 1 100 - - Investment holding
FRERARE i 1£7 HEER
CPC Construction Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$190,500,200 1,905,002 - 100 - General construction and
(noteb) ik i 4 190,500,200 7T trading business
HEEREUEARAR () Deferred HKS25,936,200 239,362 - - - —IREEREES
4 25,936,200 ¢
Food Square Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 30.6 69.4  Food processing and trading
BEBRBARAA B i #1007 BRMLRES
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 25 Property investment
BERRRARAT ik L BT ESivA
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 - Property investment
SREERRLA Fitk i W 100 SV
Kuwai Hei Investments No.| Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 75 25 Property investment
i L B WERE
Lac Kar Investment Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 - Property investment
NmEEERAT Fi i 13,600,000 B3I34S
HtEREBBRAR
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

176

46 TEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation  shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
TR
RARHC T CRilA/
st/ CH#ikARE Tk /G MR 2 MR
Bt BRNBIRE s by B T/ REM R RAr%H TR WML FEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Wk
% % %
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 - Investment holding of
JIEIN il 101,100 % K7 property investment and
hotel operation
HESEE TR
Va3
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 - Property investment
LEIN #il LO00IEATE WERE
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
KR AR Bl i 07 RERAEL
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Uss1 1 - 100 - Property investment
ERERARE i 1% PERE
NC4 Albemarle, LLC Us N/A 15810,056,568 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
#H TR 10,036,568 % 72 AER ATtk
NC4 Covington, LLC Us N/A US83,574,147 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
£B il 3574 MR Ff ARvEhs
NC4 Kingsbridge, LLC Us N/A US$3,116,162 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
£H T 3L61602ET R ARuEhs
NC4 Magereek, LLC US N/A 882,825,463 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
#H IS ¥ 285463 K AR Arvehs
NC4 Magnolia, LLC Us N/A US83,936,947 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
#H TR 39317 ETE TR AR%ERE
NC4 Oliver, LLC Us N/A US82,705,814 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
eS| R 27058147 TR AR%ERE
NC4 Wellington, LLC Us N/A 582,852,479 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
#H FEf 852419 % TE TR AE%ERE
OR4 Beaverton, LLC (formerly known ~ US N/A US8500,000 N/A - 100 - Operation of senior housing
as Chevalier Beaverton, LLC) FH Sk 500,000 7 USR] BETEhA

OR4 Beaverton, LLC (Hif& 5

Chevalier Beaverton, LLC)
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo 1 A A M e

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BWE_F—WE=H=+—H ILEE

46 FEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
AR R A
RARHC T CH#fikk/
Raigith,/ CH#ITRARE Bk /i k 2 itk
Wil LE3 R ELE 51 A Tk /A Tt ThER ZHA EEREH
Directly Indirectly
i Wik
% % %
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
A (Bl AR [ T B RERAEL
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$20 2 - 100 - Property investment
HAERAR Fit T 0 s
Peak Restaurants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
Fi i #1007 AR LR
Proud Rich Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 - Property investment
AR (W3t Fi i 0 B3I
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100 -
it B
Quality King Investments Limited British Virgin Islands~ Ordinary Uss1 1 100 - - Investment holding
EEATREE i £ e
Restaurants Management Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 60 40 Restaurants management
(Hong Kong) Limited ik L T BEEH
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China N/A US$3,650,000 N/A - 100 - Property management
Management Co., Ltd. (note c) e Rif 3,650,000 %0 S and providing property
EEETESAERAT (ko) management consultation
AR
s
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Co,, Ltd. Mainland China N/A 556,500,000 N/A - 100 - Trading of lifts, escalators,
(notec) T AR 6,500,000 %78 Nt electrical and mechanical
HEREBAERAR (B equipment
TR~ EHHRIEE R
iU
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate Mainland China N/A U$518,000,000 N/A - 80 20 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (note a) ] g &R 18,000,000 % ¢ TER investment
LEAARERRARAT (i) HEL LY CE
HtEREEERAR

“E-MFER
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46 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

46 TEME AW @)

Percentage of
issued share
Effective percentage of capital/registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/ capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation  shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
TR
RARHC T Ltk
st/ CH#ikARE Tk /G MR 2 MR
Bt BRNBIRE 51 A Tk /i RA Tt TR WML FEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Wk
% % %
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 10,000 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
A (F k) FIRA Fil i 0 10,000 T BB
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Property investment
KE i 15,000,000 %5 xS
Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
B (FE) AR Fik T #1007 BEREL
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 87,5 125 Logistics services
KA TERFERAR it #il i 30,000,000 7 R
Talent Luck Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
HREEARAR (Htd) Fib £ i 270,000,000 7 investment
Deferred HKS51 51 - 100 - WEERRRE
i s
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - DProperty investment
BT RAT Fi i Tt HESH
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co., Ltd. (notea) Mainland China N/A RMBS5,000,000 N/A - 70 30 Hotel operation
R KEEARAH (Hita) R AR 55,000,000 7 A BRI
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 - Property investment
mEx i 0IEAT e
Notes: BiFRE: -

(a) Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures.

(b)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to participate in
any distribution of the company upon winding up.

(c) Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises.

(d) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares of this

company carry one vote.
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BWE-FE-WE=A=+—HILFE

47 Principal Associates 47 FEEE AW
Effective percentage
of issued share
capital/registered
Place or country of capital held
incorporation or by the Company Measurement
Name of associate registration/operation  Class of shares held indirectly  Principal activities method
AR R
B gL, CEAT IR A Bk
AFAHE [EE S BT P i I 4 0 AEMb B AHES R R
%
CAAM Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 38.46  Fresh produce grower-aggregator  Equity
SRR R T il R AR S R T 43
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and Equity
Het: (F) HRAT ik L maintenance of lifts fEti
and escalators
BH] LR BRI R
HHkbh
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation,  Equity
FCE B (P AR o A N repair and maintenance of fi
lifts and escalators
Bk e 2 B R
{RETHE B BB e
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation,  Equity
TR (R HIA A i A repair and maintenance of T4
lifts and escalators
B B TR B R
TRE TR b
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and supply Equity
MR A RA ik B of concrete 5
T A 7 R A
i A I AT TR ] Mainland China N/A 1229 Trading of food and beverage Equity
A B BEHES i
91| B A R Mainland China N/A 40 Trading of motor vehicles Equity
oh ] 1A Nt and provision of W25
maintenance services
L 5 B IR AR
A RS 0 A R 4 O Mainland China N/A 21.33  Trading of motor vehicles Equity
B AR F R A 3 YNl and provision of i
maintenance services
TRELE 5 BAR LR MRS
Note: FifaE -
The Group’s entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these associates is in proportion A [ LA RE 4 2 PO E SR L I A e W) 2 3 A
to its ownership interest. 518 o
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48 Principal Joint Ventures

180

48 FERAEBME

Effective percentage
of issued share
Place or country of capital/registered
incorporation or Class of share capital held Measurement
Name of joint venture registration/operation shares held by the Company indirectly ~ Principal activities method
AR w e A
WA TR CE TR AR
Gle Al CES BT e ¢ 4 00 AEMM AR R at i
%
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50  Civil engineering Equity
B dE A RA R i Ly AR i
Lam Woo Construction Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 50  Building maintenance Equity
iR A RA R i Ll By RE i
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50  Property development Equity
EHARAF i kil E 33 i
U TRV 375 5 S 7 B Mainland China N/A 44 Property development Equity
HRA T i A ESIYS i
WK FERRA R A Mainland China N/A 49 Property development Equity
T A A ESIYS 5
Note: B GE -

The Group’s entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these joint ventures is in

proportion to its ownership interest.
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